computermm _
= m technologies

Computer And Technologies Holdings Limited
B B X #t & B B B 2 7

(Stock Code g3 1£9%: 00046)

Annual Report 2013
—E-=FFR



Our vision is to deliver
competitive advantages for
enterprises and government
organizations to progress by
optimizing their information
systems efficiency.
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Corporate Profile
RAFN

Computer And Technologies Holdings Limited (and its subsidiaries,
collectively referred to as “C&T" or the “Group”) is a leading Information
Technology (“IT") software and services provider in the region involved in
the design, development, delivery and operations of total IT solutions that
meet customers’ business requirements.

Founded in 1991, C&T has been publicly listed on the main board of the
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong (Stock Code: SEHK 00046) since 1998. The
Group's headquarters are based in Hong Kong with offices as well as
research and service centers established in Beijing, Shanghai, Nanjing and
Shenzhen.

The Group has been building its business on a vision to deliver competitive
advantages for enterprises and government organizations to progress
by optimizing their information systems efficiency. Over the decades,
C&T has a long-standing track record in delivering award- winning, large-
scale IT solutions for numerous prestigious corporations and government
organizations.

Building on its competence in applying advanced IT technologies and
proven track records, C&T is providing all round IT solutions and services
comprising systems and network integration services, application
development and support services, enterprise application software,
operation and business process outsourcing services as well as online
e-Government and e-Business services.
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"/ Corporate Information (continued)
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Hong Kong
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Financial Highlights
MBBE

For the year ended 31 December
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HKS Million HKS Million HKS Million HKS Million  HKS$ Million
EX: Y ER=Yw BEBT BEBT BEBRT
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Chairman’s Statement

EREHRE

BUSINESS AND FINANCIAL REVIEW

Dear Shareholders,

OVERVIEW

On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board”) of Computer And
Technologies Holdings Limited (the “Company”), | am pleased to present
the audited annual results of Computer And Technologies Holdings
Limited and its subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”) for the year ended
31 December 2013. The Group's consolidated net profit attributable to
shareholders for the year increased by 2.4% to HK$48.1 million (2012:
HKS$47.0 million). The basic earnings per share, after taken into account of
the repurchase of 1.1 million shares during the year, was 20.03 HK cents
(2012: 19.50 HK cents) or an increase of 2.7% compared with last year.

For the period under review, the gross profit of the Group increased to
HK$101.1 million (2012: HK$93.6 million) despite the turnover dropped
by 9.5% to HK$187.1 million (2012: HK$206.7 million). The significant
improvement in profit margin is resulted from the mixture of increased
contributions from the Group's proprietary software products and related
services and decreased sales of low margin third parties hardware products.
The Group's effort spent in the transformation to proprietary software and
solution services oriented business has achieved an initial success. Despite
the absence of material revaluation gain on investment properties (HK$16.6
million in 2012 compared with HK$2.6 million in 2013), the Group still
managed to improve its net profit for the year.

During the reporting year, the Group generated HK$42.8 million net cash
inflows from its operating activities and continued to maintain robust
liquidity position with more than HK$300 million cash on hand as at the
end of 2013, having accounted for the payments of HK$2 million for
shares repurchased and payments of HK$36.0 million in aggregate for
the 2012 final and special dividends and 2013 interim dividend. In view
of the sustained healthy financial position, the Board recommended the
distribution of final dividend of 7 HK cents and special dividend of 2 HK
cents (2012: final dividend of 6 HK cents and special dividend of 3 HK
cents), the total dividends per share for 2013 amounted to 15 HK cents,
which is the same as previous year (2012: 15 HK cents).
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Chairman’s Statement (continued)

FRE\E (R

BUSINESS REVIEW

Application Software

The Group's Application Softwarel business managed to deliver an
encouraging result in 2013 by expanding the customer base, extending its
product offerings and winning major industry awards in the region.

Building on its existing customer base with recurring maintenance and
services income, the Group’s Human Resources Management (“HRM")
product suite continued to secure new software orders from both new
and existing customers from various industries. The Group’s Enterprise
Procurement Management™ (“EPM") software product also garnered a
multi-millions milestone contract with multiple-year maintenance services
from a transportation authority in Hong Kong SAR during the year.

Through years of improvement in domain and technical expertise, our HRM
product suite has obtained superior comprehensiveness and flexibility that
enables us to effectively serve customers in various regions and industries
with unique business requirements. During the reporting year, the Group
received three major awards®? recognitions for its superior HRM software
products and services provided across the country.

In May 2013, the Group has taken a further step to expand its Application
Software business by acquiring the entire issued shares of Vitova Limited
("Vitova"), a well-established document imaging and management
software product company in Hong Kong. This acquisition has not only
increased the Group's software revenue with enlarged customer base but
also enriched the Group’s product portfolio to cover the area of Enterprise
Information Management (“EIM")1,

With over 15 years of experience in document management systems,
Vitova served hundreds of customers including multi-national
corporations, government departments, tertiary institutions and local
enterprises. Its comprehensive software product suite focuses in business-
critical information with enhanced data matching and search efficiency
features. Since the acquisition, Vitova has been engaged by several
government bureaus to offer one-stop document management services
and contributed a positive financial result to the Group.

With the rapid adoption of mobile technologies by business sectors in
recent years, the Group has been developing the mobile version of its
HRM and EIM products on both iOS and Android platform and has secured
orders of these new products to be delivered in 2014.
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Chairman’s Statement (continued)

EFRE®E (&)

The management foresees that the growth momentum of Application
Software business will continue and the demand for its products will
remain strong in foreseeable future. Riding on the success of the HRM, EPM
and EIM products, the Group is planning to develop its next generation
integrated software platform with the state-of-the-art Business Process
Management ("BPM") capability that will serve as a common framework
integrating the HRM, EPM and EIM products. With this integration, the
three product lines will be able to leverage on each other’s functionalities
as well as their customer bases to achieve an overall enhancement of
their competitiveness in the market. The management believes that the
enhanced software product portfolio and enlarged customer base will
enable the business unit to grow at a faster pace.

e-Service and related business

The Group's GETSE! and BPO™ business maintained stable profit
contribution to the Group during the reporting year. Although the GETS
business was inevitably affected by the sluggish import and export trading
activities and intensive competition from other operators, the Group
managed to maintain the related profit contributions by enhancing its
operation efficiency and strengthening the promotion on value added
services based on its existing platform and customer network.

In view of the continual intensifying GETS market competitions and the
expiring partnership agreements on GETS paper-to-electronic conversion
service with some trade associations in 2014, the Group has been actively
acquiring new partners and channels on paper-to-electronic conversion
service and developing new forms of value-added services to maintain its
GETS profit contribution. As of the reporting date, a number of new paper-
to-electronic conversion service outlets as well as two new value-added
services had already been launched.

Solutions Services

The Group's Solution Services® business managed to deliver a satisfactory
result in 2013, amid a highly competitive operating environment. During
the reporting year, the Group successfully renewed three categories
of its Standing Offer Agreements for Quality Professional Services 3
(“SOA-QPS3") with the Hong Kong SAR Government (the “Government”)
for a period of four years until 2017. Building on its multi-year service
agreements with the Government and various commercial enterprises, the
Group will be able to generate stable implementation and maintenance
incomes in the coming years.
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Chairman’s Statement (continued)

FRE\E (R

During the reporting year, the Group's Solutions Services business also won
numerous new projects from various organizations of the Government
and large organizations providing a wide range of professional services
based on the latest technologies in the area of EIM, mobility and cloud
computing. The management believes that there are increasing demands
on the Group's services in these areas.

Integration Services

Turnover of such operation had inevitably decreased as the management
has continued to uphold the strategy of transforming its Integration
business in Mainland China from a hardware driven business to a software
and solution driven business. Benefiting from maintenance revenue
generated from existing customers and a series of cost-saving measures
imposed, the Group managed to improve the operating results of its
Integration Services” business during the year under review.

Investments

Without the similar magnitude in revaluation gains on investment
properties recorded in year 2012, the profit of the Group’s investments
segment fell by 67.3% to HK$8.0 million (2012: HK$24.6 million). On the
other hand, the segment revenue increased to HK$4.0 million (2012: HK$1.9
million) as the Group has increased the investment in debt securities and
received more interest incomes. The management foresees this segment
will continue generating stable rental and interest incomes but takes a
cautious view on the investments’ short-term price fluctuations.

PROSPECT

The global economy is now on track for a slow recovery. The economic
outlook of Mainland China and Hong Kong is anticipated to grow at a
steady rate in 2014. Nonetheless, the management takes an optimistic
yet cautious view and the Group will continue to safeguard its financial
strength, manage risks cautiously and set prudent yet flexible business
strategies to cope with the future challenges.

Looking ahead, the management believes that the enhanced customer
base and enriched software products offering couple with the Group's
strong capability in IT technology application and solution implementation
will continue to provide the Group with competitive advantage for long
term sustainable growth. Leveraging on the solid financial position, the
Group will be enabled to pursue new acquisition opportunities to enlarge
its software product portfolio and market foothold.
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/" Chairman’s Statement (continued)

EFRE®E (&)

Footnotes:

(1]

10

The Group's Application Services business engages in the provision of application
software and e-business services for enterprises including (i) the provision of enterprise
application software with implementation and ongoing support services for Human
Resource Management ("HRM"), Enterprise Procurement Management ("EPM”, a product
suite evolved from the Group’s Electronics Tendering and Procurement System “ETPS’)
and Enterprise Information Management (“EIM") (collectively the “Application Software”);
and (i) the Government Electronic Trading Services (“GETS"), cloud services, business
process outsourcing (“BPQO") services and other related value added services (collectively
the "e-Service and related business”).

The Group’s new HRM software product suite won a number of prestigious recognitions
in 2013. Just after winning the China Outstanding Software Product Award for the
second time in early 2013, the Group’s HRM product has gained further accolades by
sweeping both the Gold Award of the Shenzhen/Hong Kong/Macau IT Award [2013)%
EREBRHELEE - R ARF HEMES ] and the China National Software and T
Services Annual Award [2012-2013FF Bl F{Z BRI X FE - RARFENER
4% |, the first of its kind for a Hong Kong HRM product.

Since 2004, the Group has been granted a license (the “GETS License”) from the
Government for the provision of front-end Government Electronics Trading Services
for processing certain official trade-related documents. The Group’s GETS License was
renewed in 2009 for operation of additional seven years until the end of 2016.

The Group's BPO business comprises the provision of services for the operations and
support of specific business functions or processes of customers.

The Group'’s Solution Services business includes (i) Development Services for the
provision of IT solutions implementation and application software development;
and (i) Managed Services for the provision of IT and related operation/infrastructure

outsourcing services.

The Standing Offer Agreement for Quality Professional Services 3 (SOA-QPS3) is part of
the Government's IT outsourcing strategy aiming to enlarge the delivery capacity for
IT services and accelerate the delivery of IT solutions to support the next generation of
e-government services. It also aims to provide business opportunities for the IT sector
and helps further the development of the local IT industry. The total contract value for
the scheme, according to the Government, is estimated to be over HK$1 billion over the
contract period of four years till July 2017.

The Group was awarded as one of the selected services providers for SOA-QPS3
contracts from the Government in July 2013. These contracts will cover three different
types of IT professional services, namely (Service Category 2) on-going services;
(Service Category 3) implementation & combined system development services; and
(Service Category 4) information security and independent testing services on an as
and when required basis. All the related IT professional services of various government
departments under these 3 categories will be awarded to the selected services providers
under the relevant category.

The Group's Integration business covers the provision of IT systems and network

infrastructure with related design, implementation and on-going support services.
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Chairman’s Statement (continued)

FRE\E (R

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue

The Group's revenue decreased by 9.5% to HK$187.1 million (2012:
HKS$206.7 million) when compared with last year. The decline was largely
due to the decrease in revenue contributed by the Integration business
which in sync with the Group's business direction to reduce the sales of
the low profit margin third parties hardware products during the year.

Gross profit

The Group's gross profit for the year was HK$101.1 million, representing
an increase of 8.0% as compared with the amount of HK$93.6 million last
year and the overall gross profit margin improved significantly to 54.0%
(2012: 45.3%). The increment was the combined results of the increasing
contributions from higher margin software products and solution services,
and the decrease in reselling of low profit margin third party hardware
products and the reduction in implementation costs leveraging on its
improved software and service delivery model.

Other income and gains, net (including fair value gains/
losses)

Other income and gains, net (including the fair value gains or losses)
recorded a substantial reduction of 39.9% to HK$19.6 million (2012:
HK$32.6 million). The reduction was a mixed result of the followings.

a. A decrease of 84.6% in fair value gain on investment properties to
HKS$2.6 million (2012: HKS$16.6 million);

b. A decrease of 4.7% in bank interest income to HK$8.8 million (2012:
HK$9.2 million) as the Group had allocated more surplus cash to
acquire debt securities during the year to enhance the overall
interest yield;

C. HK$0.2 million net realized and unrealized loss on the financial assets
(2012: gain of HK$4.7 million) as there was a significant rebound
in stock market in end of year 2012 and the Group had reduced its
holding of Hong Kong listed equity securities investments in 2013;
and

d. HKS$7.6 million foreign exchange gains, net (2012: HK$0.8 million)
recognized due to the appreciation of the RMB against HKD during
the year.
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Chairman’s Statement (continued)

EFRE®E (&)

Expenses

Selling and distribution expenses decreased by 23.9% to HK$23.1 million
(2012: HK$30.3 million). The decrease was mainly attributable to the
significant drop in sales expenses incurred by the Integration business.

General and administrative expenses dropped by 4.8% to HK$42.5 million
(2012: HKS44.6 million) as less administrative overhead was incurred by the
Integration business compared with the same period last year.

Income tax expense

Income tax expense increased by 70% to HK$7.0 million as most of tax
losses for setoff of assessable profits arising in Hong Kong had been
utilized in prior years and thus the assessable profits subject to Hong Kong
profits tax had been increased significantly in 2013. The tax charge at the
Group's effective tax rate was around 12.6% in 2013, comparing with 8.0%
in 2012. The effective tax rate was lower than the Hong Kong statutory
profits tax rate because part of the incomes and gains, including bank and
bond interest income generated in Hong Kong and fair value gain arising
from the revaluation of investment properties located in Hong Kong and
exchange gain of a capital nature, were not subject to the Hong Kong
profits tax.

Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, on 5 March 2014,
the Hong Kong Inland Revenue Department (the “IRD") has issued a
protective assessment to a subsidiary of the Company demanding tax
of approximately HK$2,260,000 for the year of assessment 2007/08. An
enquiry letter was issued to that subsidiary on the same day regarding,
inter alia, the nature and the deductibility of certain expenditure/expenses.
The subsidiary has lodged an objection to the IRD against the protective
assessment and is in the process of gathering the requested information
and documents in support of the deduction claim.

In the opinion of the directors of the Company, it is not practicable at this
early stage to estimate reliably the outcome of the deduction claim and,
therefore, the financial effect (including the amount or timing thereof, if
any) of the foregoing enquiry. However, the directors believe that, except
for certain insignificant tax adjustments, the effect of which has been
reflected in the current year's profit or loss of the Group, and subject to the
availability of the required evidence, the subsidiary has valid grounds to
support the deductibility of those expenditure/expenses. Accordingly, no
further provision for Hong Kong profits tax is considered necessary at this
stage.

Net profit

Combining the foregoing factors, profit for the year attributable to
shareholders increased 2.4% to HK$48.1 million (2012: HK$47.0 million)
while the net profit margin (profit for the year attributable to shareholders
divided by revenue) was increased to 25.7% from 22.7% in last year. The
increase in net profit margin was primarily due to the improvement in
gross profit and gross profit margin as discussed.
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Chairman’s Statement (continued)

FRE\E (R

Non-current assets

The Group’s non-current assets as at 31 December 2013 increased 10.3%
to HK$99.2 million. The increase was due to (i) over HK$10.0 million debt
securities newly acquired in 2013 and being classified as non-current
available-for-sale investments; (ii) around HKS$2.6 million appreciation
in market value of investment properties held; and (iii) HK$3.4 million
goodwill arising from the acquisition of Vitova in May 2013.

The Group considered no impairment indication to the carrying value of
goodwill during the year under review.

Current assets

The Group's current assets as at 31 December 2013 increased slightly by
2.0% to HK$412.4 million as the Group has allocated more surplus cash
generated from operations to acquire debt securities during the year.

The Group maintains strict control over its outstanding trade receivables
and considers that trade receivables (net of impairment provision) are all
recoverable in the foreseeable future.

Current liabilities

The Group's current liabilities as at 31 December 2013 increased 5.7%
to HK$98.1 million. The increase was primarily due to the recognition of
deferred income arising from various maintenance services to be provided
by the Group.

Segment Assets and Liabilities

Segment assets of Application Services business increased in line with the
increase in accounts receivables and goodwill arising from the acquisition
of Vitova during the year.

Segment assets of Integration and Solutions Services business decreased
as the trade and bills receivables and inventories of Integration business
decreased in respect of significant reduction in Integration’s business
activities.

Segment liabilities of Application Services business increased in line with
the increase in deferred income arising from various maintenance services
to be provided.

Segment liabilities of Integration and Solutions Services business decreased
as the accruals and business provisions of Integration business decreased
in respect of significant reduction in Integration’s business activities.
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Chairman’s Statement (continued)

EFRE®E (&)

Segment assets of Investments business increased significantly by 43.0%
to HK$113.8 million. The increase was mainly due to the acquisition of debt
securities in 2013. Consistent with those reported in 2012, the Investments
segment of the Group mainly comprised (i) investment properties located
in Hong Kong, Guangzhou and Nanjing for rental purpose and (ii) debt and
equity securities for trading.

Equity

Total equity as at 31 December 2013 increased by 3.0% to HK$412.4 million.
The change was mainly a result of the retention of the net profit earned
in 2013, partially offset by the reclassification of 2012 final and special
dividends to current liability upon the approval of the dividends at the
annual general meeting held in May 2013 and the declaration of interim
dividend in August 2013.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

At 31 December 2013, the Group had pledged an investment property
with a carrying value of HK$45.0 million (2012: HK$42.8 million), listed
debt and equity securities of HK$18.0 million (2012: HK$22.6 million) and
bank balances of HK$12.3 million (2012: HK$60.1 million) to secure certain
general bank facilities including guarantee/performance bonds facilities
granted to the Group in aggregate of HK$133.5 million (2012: HK$128.6
million) of which HK$5.6 million (2012: HKS5.4 million) had been utilized as
of 31 December 2013.

FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND LIQUIDITY

As at 31 December 2013, the Group's bank balances and cash (excluded
pledged bank deposits of HK$12.3 million) was HK$304.8 million (2012:
HKS$274.8 million).

All of the Group's on hand fundings are in Hong Kong dollars, Renminbi
and US dollars. The Group has not adopted any hedging policies, as these
currencies carry low exchange fluctuation risks.

As at 31 December 2013, the Group had no bank borrowings (2012: nil).
The Group's current ratio representing current assets divided by current
liabilities was 4.2 (2012: 4.4) and the gearing ratio, representing total
liabilities divided by total assets, was 19.4% (2012: 19.0%).
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Chairman’s Statement (continued)

FRE\E (R

REMUNERATION POLICY AND NUMBER OF
EMPLOYEES

The Group remunerates its employees based on their performance,
working experience and prevailing market conditions.

The remuneration policies adopted for the year ended 31 December 2013
are consistent with those disclosed in the Group’s 2012 Annual Report. As
at 31 December 2013, the Group employed approximately 263 full time
employees and 2 contract-based employees.

As at 31 December 2013, the Company operates a share option scheme
and a share award scheme for the purpose of providing incentives and

rewards to the employees who contribute to the success of the Group's
operations.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS

Save as disclosed in this report, the Group has no significant investments
held as at 31 December 2013.

MATERIAL ACQUISITION AND DISPOSAL OF
SUBSIDIARIES

Save as disclosed in note 32 to the report, the Group did not have any
material acquisition or disposal of subsidiaries during the year.

FUTURE PLANS FOR MATERIAL INVESTMENTS OR
CAPITAL ASSETS

There was no specific plan for material investments or capital assets as at
31 December 2013.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Save as disclosed in note 34 to the report, the Group has no material
contingent liabilities as at 31 December 2013.
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Chairman’s Statement (continued)

EFRE®E (&)

DIVIDENDS AND BOOK CLOSE

The Board has recommended final and special dividends of 9 HK cents
(2012: 9 HK cents) per ordinary share payable to shareholders whose names
appear on the register of members of the Company on Tuesday, 27 May
2014. The Register of Members of the Company will be closed from Friday,
16 May 2014 to Tuesday, 20 May, 2014 (both days inclusive) for the purpose
of ascertaining shareholders’ entitlement to attend and vote at the AGM. In
order to be eligible to attend and vote at the AGM to be held on Tuesday,
20 May 2014, all transfer documents, accompanied by the relevant share
certificates, must be lodged with the Company’s Share Registrars, Tricor
Tengis Limited, at Level 22, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong
Kong for registration not later than 4:30 p.m. on Thursday, 15 May 2014.
In addition, the Register of Members of the Company will be closed from
Monday, 26 May 2014 to Tuesday, 27 May 2014 (both days inclusive) for the
purpose of ascertaining shareholders’ entitlement to the proposed final
and special dividends. In order to qualify for the proposed final and special
dividends, all transfers, accompanied by the relevant share certificates,
must be lodged with the Company’s Share Regjistrars, Tricor Tengis Limited,
for registration not later than 4:30 p.m. on Friday, 23 May 2014. During such
periods, no share transfer will be effected.

AUDIT COMMITTEE REVIEW

The Audit Committee has reviewed with the management of the Company
the Group's annual results for the year ended 31 December 2013, including
the accounting principles and practices adopted by the Group.

APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Board and the management, | would like to express our
sincere thanks to all employees, shareholders, customers and business
partners for their supports to the Group during the reporting period.

Ng Cheung Shing
Chairman

Hong Kong, 21 March 2014
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Directors and Senior Management

EShEREERE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Ir. Ng Cheung Shing, aged 52, the founder and Chairman, is responsible
for the corporate strategies and business development of the Group. Ir. Ng
graduated with a Bachelor of Science Degree in Computer Science from
the University of Manchester in the United Kingdom in 1984 and has over
25 years of experience in IT industry. Before establishing the Company, Ir.
Ng held executive positions in companies such as Hewlett-Packard Asia
Pacific Ltd. and Sun Hung Kai (China) Ltd. Ir. Ng is the Honorary Fellow of
Vocational Training Council and The Professional Validation Council of
Hong Kong Industries and a fellow of the Hong Kong Computer Society
and Hong Kong Institution of Engineers. He is a Founding Chairman of the
Hong Kong Information and Software Industry Association, Chairman of
the Advisory Committee for the Department of Electronic Engineering of
the City University of Hong Kong and Chairman of ICT Advisory Committee
of Hong Kong Trade Development Council. Ir. Ng was also the awardees
of “Young Industrialist Awards of Hong Kong” and the “Ten Outstanding
Young Persons Award of Hong Kong” and “Directors of the Year Awards".

Mr. Cheung Wai Lam, aged 50, the Group’s Deputy Chief Executive
Officer, is in charge of the human resource and talent development,
overall operation improvement as well as the Solutions Services business
of the Group. Mr. Cheung has more than 25 years of experience in IT and
consulting business ranging from software development to enterprise
solutions implementation and is one of the founders of Y&A Professional
Services Ltd. (the "Y&A”"). Mr. Cheung joined the Group in 2006 when Y&A
became a subsidiary of the Group. Before Y&A, he held various consulting
positions in IBM in Hong Kong and Australia. Mr. Cheung graduated from
the Chinese University of Hong Kong with a Bachelor Degree in Computer
Science in 1985 and an Executive Master Degree in Business Administration
in2011.

Mr. Leung King San, Sunny, aged 52, is responsible for finance and
administration strategies of the Group. Mr. Leung has over 25 years of
experience in finance, administration and planning in the IT industry.
Before joining the Group, Mr. Leung held senior management positions in
IBM and its associated company in Asia Pacific. Mr. Leung graduated from
the Simon Fraser University in Canada with a Bachelor's Degree in Business
Administration in 1983.

Mr. Lee Allen, aged 49, is in charge of overall technology development as
well as the e-Services and Application Products businesses of the Group.
Mr. Lee has more than 25 years of experience in IT business and technical
management. He has served the Group for about 10 years. He graduated
from the University of Hong Kong with a Bachelor Degree in Electrical and
Electronic Engineering in 1987 and received a Master Degree in Business
Administration from the University of Hong Kong in 1996.
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Directors and Senior Management (continued)

EERSREERE(R)

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Ha Shu Tong, aged 65, joined the Board in 1998. Mr. Ha has involved
in the financial industry for over 40 years and has substantial experience in
corporate finance and corporate development.

Professor Matthew K. O. Lee, Ph.D., aged 54, joined the Board in 1998.
Professor Lee is Chair Professor of Information Systems & E-Commerce at
the College of Business of the City University of Hong Kong (the “University”)
and Director of Communication & Public Relations at the University.
Professor Lee is also the Founding Director of the DBA Programme at the
University. He holds a number of university degrees including BEng (1st
Class Honours) in Electronic Engineering, MSc in Software Engineering,
Ph.D. in Computer Science, MBA, LLB, and LLM in Corporate and
Commercial Law. He is a graduate of the Internet Law Summer Program
at Harvard Law School. Professor Lee has substantial experience and
published widely in leading research journals. He is a professional member
of British Computer Society, a Chartered Engineer (UK Engineering Council)
and a Barrister-at-Law both in Hong Kong SAR and England & Wales.
Professor Lee was a Founding Vice-chairman of the Hong Kong Computer
Society e-Business Special Interest Group. Professor Lee is a member of the
Hong Kong Research Grant Council (RGC) Business Studies Panels. He is
an independent non-executive director of World Wide Touch Technology
(Holdings) Limited (Stock Code: 1282).

Mr. Ting Leung Huel, Stephen, MH, FCCA, FCPA (Practising),
ACA, CTA(HK), FHKIoD, aged 60, joined the Board in 2004. Mr. Ting is
an accountant in public practice as managing partner of Messrs. Ting
Ho Kwan & Chan, Certified Public Accountants since 1987. Mr. Ting is a
member of the 9th, 10th and 11th Chinese People Political & Consultative
Conference, Fujian. He is now a non-executive director of Chow Sang Sang
Holdings International Limited (Stock Code: 116) and holds independent
non-executive directorship in six other listed companies namely, China
SCE Property Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 1966), Dongyue Group
Limited (Stock Code: 189), JLF Investment Company Limited (Stock Code:
472), Texhong Textile Group Limited (Stock Code: 2678), Tong Ren Tang
Technologies Company Limited (Stock Code: 1666) and Tongda Group
Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 698).
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Directors and Senior Management (continued)

EERSREERE(R)

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Lau Sze Yuen, Edmund, aged 54, is responsible for the Group's
business operation in Mainland China and business development in other
North Asia countries. Mr. Lau has more than 20 years of management
experience in software and professional services business. Before joining
the Group in 2013, Mr. Lau was the President of North Asia, Aptean/CDC
Software and responsible for business in Greater China, Japan and Korea.
He also held various management positions in multinational services and
solution providers including Viador and Brighton in US and Greater China
regions. He graduated from Shanghai Jiao Tong University with a Bachelor
Degree in Computer Science in 1982 and received a Master's Degree in
Computer Science from University of Southern California in 1992.

Mr. Ng Kwok Keung, aged 40, is the Financial Controller of the Group
and the Secretary of the Company. He has over 15 years of experience
in accounting, auditing, finance and business advisory. Before joining
the Group, he was a financial controller of a Hong Kong listed company
and has worked a manager of assurance and advisory business services
department of an international accounting firm. Mr. Ng graduated from
The Hong Kong Polytechnic University with a Bachelor of Arts Degree
in Accountancy and is a Certified Public Accountant of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Pubic Accountants.

Mr. Yeung Sai Cheong, Steve, aged 48, is in charge of the corporate
development and communications, as well as other strategic development
aspects of the Group. Mr. Yeung joined the Group in 1998 and has more
than 20 years of IT experience in sales and business development. He
graduated from the University of Hong Kong with a Bachelor of Science
Degree in Computer Studies in 1988 and received a Master Degree in
Business Administration from the Hong Kong University of Science and
Technology in 1999.
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Corporate Governance Report
TRER®RE

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company is committed to maintaining a high standard of corporate
governance within a sensible framework with an emphasis on the
principles of integrity, transparency and accountability. The board of
directors of the Company (the “Board”) believes that good corporate
governance is essential to the success of the Company and to the
enhancement of shareholders’ value.

The Board opined that the Company has complied with the code provision
set out in the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG code”) as stipulated in
Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Listing Rules”) during the reporting year
except on the deviations noted below.

The CG code provision A.2.1 stipulates that the roles of chairman and chief
executive officer should be separate and should not be performed by the
same individual. During the year, Mr. Yan King Shun resigned as executive
director of the Company and chief executive officer (‘CEQ") of the Group
with effect from 11 October 2013 and Mr. Cheung Wai Lam has been
appointed as an executive director of the Company and the deputy CEO of
the Group with effect from 17 December 2013. Deputy CEO mainly focuses
on certain business operations and administrative functions of the Group,
assists the Board to formulate strategies for the Group and to make sure
they are implemented successfully. With the present board structure and
scope of business, the Board considers that there is no imminent need to
appoint CEO. However, the Board will continue to review the effectiveness
of the Group's corporate governance structure and will consider whether
any changes, including the appointment of CEO, are necessary.

The Company considers that sufficient measures have been taken to
ensure that its corporate governance practices are similar to those
provided in the CG Code.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)
EERHRE(E)

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board currently comprises four executive directors and three
independent non-executive directors:

Executive Directors:

Mr.Ng Cheung Shing (Chairman)

Mr. Cheung Wai Lam (Deputy Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Leung King San, Sunny

Mr. Lee Allen

Independent non-executive directors:
Mr. Ha Shu Tong

Professor Lee Kwok On, Matthew

Mr. Ting Leung Huel, Stephen

INEDs constitute more than one-third of the Board. The Company has
received from each INED a confirmation of his independence pursuant
to the independence guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules
and considers that all INEDs are independent. One of the three INEDs is a
professional accountant, which is in compliance with the requirement of
the Listing Rules.

One-third of the directors shall retire from office at every annual general
meeting and all directors (including non-executive directors) are subject
to retirement by rotation once every three year in accordance with the
Company’s bye-laws and the CG Code. Retiring directors are eligible
for re-election at the annual general meeting at which they retire. Any
director appointed to fill a causal vacancy is subject to re-election at the
next annual general meeting of the Company. Separate resolutions are
proposed for the election of each director.

With a view to achieving a sustainable and balanced development, the
Company sees increasing diversity at the Board level as an essential
element in supporting the attainment of its strategic objectives and its
sustainable development. In designing the Board’'s composition, Board
diversity has been considered from a number of aspects, including but not
limited to gender, age, cultural and educational background, professional
experience, skills, knowledge and length of service. Board appointments
will continue to be made on a merit basis and candidates will be
considered against objective criteria, with due regard for the benefits of
diversity on the Board.

The current board composition was also evaluated by reference to, among
other things, the gender, age, cultural and educational background,
professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of service of each
director, against the Company’s business model and specific needs.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)
*ERWE(E)

The Company believes diversity is important to enhance the Board'’s
effectiveness by encouraging a diversity of perspectives and to maintain
high standards of corporate governance. The Company will continue to
monitor and develop new objectives for implementing and achieving
improved diversity on the Board as and when it considers appropriate with
regard to the specific needs of the Company from time to time.

The directors’ biographical information is set out in the “Directors and
Senior Management” section on pages 17 to 19. Two executive directors,
Mr. Ng Cheung Shing and Mr. Leung King San, Sunny, are brother-in-law.
Save as disclosed, there is no relationship between each of the Board
members.

The Board has the ultimate decision on the Group’s overall strategy, annual
budget, annual and interim results, appointment or retirement of directors,
significant contracts and transactions as well as other significant policy
and financial matters. The Board has delegated the daily operations and
administration to the Company’s management.

According to the division of responsibilities between the Chairman and
Deputy CEO approved by the Board, the Chairman is mainly responsible
for long-term strategic development of the Group as well as the operation
of the Board, to make sure that the Board is run in the best interests of
the Group and all the Board meetings are effectively planned and carried
out. Deputy CEO mainly focuses on the certain business operations and
administrative functions of the Group, assists the Board to formulate
strategies for the Group and to make sure they are implemented
successfully. Deputy CEO is fully responsible to the Board for overall
operations of the Group.

Every director is entitled to have access to Board papers and related
materials and has access to the advice and services of the Company
Secretary. In addition, every director has separate and independent access
to the Company’s senior management to facilitate them to make informed
decisions. All directors, in the discharge of their duties, are allowed to
seek independent professional advice in appropriate circumstances at a
reasonable cost to be borne by the Company.

The Company has not established any committee responsible for the
corporate governance function of the Group and the function has
been collectively performed by the Board. The Board acknowledges the
overseeing of the corporate governance function by the Board collectively.

During the year, the Board has reviewed and monitored the training
and continuous professional development of directors and senior
management. The Board has also reviewed and ensured compliance of the
relevant legal and regulatory requirements, the code of conducts, the CG
Code and the disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report.
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Corporéte Governance Report (continued)
EERHRE(E)

CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

Directors should participate in continuous professional development to
ensure their contribution to the Board remains informed and relevant.
Each newly appointed director is provided with necessary induction
and information to ensure that he has a proper understanding of the
Company’s operations and businesses as well as his responsibilities under
the relevant statutes, laws, rules and regulations.

Directors’ training is a continuing process. The Company updates directors
on the latest development regarding the Listing Rules and other applicable
regulatory requirements from time to time, to ensure compliance and
enhance their awareness of good corporate governance practices. Directors
are encouraged to participate in continuous professional development to
develop and refresh their knowledge and skills. In addition, all directors are
provided with monthly updates on the Group's performance, position and
prospects to enable the board as a whole to discharge their duties.

During the year, all Directors have participated in continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills and
provided a record of training they received for the year ended 31
December 2013 to the Company. The type of trainings received are
summarized below:

- reading regulatory updates; and

- attending seminars/forum/workshops relevant to the directors’
duties.
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" Corporate Governance Report (continued)
TEERRE(E)

BOARD MEETINGS AND ATTENDANCE

In order to achieve a high standard of corporate governance, the Board
held at least four regularly meetings at approximately quarterly interval to
discuss the overall strategy as well as the operational matters and financial
performance of the Group. Attendance of each director at the Board
meetings is set out below:

EEZEERNHERR

REFRKEZGEER  EFERIBITOR
EHEE  H8F K W ASEEEERRIA
LEaRREMERE - SEEHFEEESR
ZEREHNIT

Number of meetings
Attended/Eligible to attend

HESR
RE T R B
Executive directors: HITES .
Mr. Ng Cheung Shing (Chairman) REBRE(FE) 6/6
Mr. Cheung Wai Lam (Deputy Chief Executive Officer) (Note 1) SR1B TR 4 (BT 4838 (15E1) 7
Mr. Leung King San, Sunny DR 6/6
Mr. Lee Allen (Note 2) TR E(HE2) /1
Mr. Yan King Shun (Note 3) FRELENH3) 5/5
Independent non-executive directors: BYFHITES
Mr. Ha Shu Tong ERREE 6/6
Professor Lee Kwok On, Matthew TR 6/6
Mr. Ting Leung Huel, Stephen TRERAE 5/6
Notes: B 5T -

1. Mr. Cheung Wai Lam has been appointed as an executive director of the Company
with effect from 17 December 2013. Five meetings were held in 2013 prior to his
appointment.

2. Mr. Lee Allen has been appointed as an executive director of the Company with effect

from 5 September 2013. Five meetings were held in 2013 prior to his appointment.

3 Mr. Yan King Shun resigned as an executive director of the Company with effect from 11
October 2013. One meeting was held in 2013 subsequent to his resignation.

BOARD COMMITTEES

To strengthen the functions of the Board, there are several Board
Committees namely, the Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee,
the Nomination Committee and the Investment Committee formed under
the Board, with each performing different functions.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)
*ERWE(E)

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee was established on 24 April 1999 and during the
reporting period, the three independent non-executive directors, namely,
Mr. Ha Shu Tong, Professor Lee Kwok On, Matthew, and Mr. Ting Leung

Huel, Stephen are the members of the committee and Mr. Ting was elected

as the chairman of Audit Committee.

The principal duties of the Audit Committee include:

to be primarily responsible for making recommendations to the
Board on the appointment, reappointment and removal of the
external auditor, and to approve the remuneration and terms
of engagement of the external auditor, and any questions of its
resignation of dismissal;

to review and monitor the external auditor's independence and
objectivity and the effectiveness of the audit process in accordance
with applicable standards;

to develop and implement policy on engaging an external auditor
to supply non-audit services;

to act as the key representative body for overseeing the Company’s
relations with external auditor;

to monitor integrity of the Company’s financial statements and
annual report and accounts, half-year report and to review significant
financial reporting judgments contained in them;

to review the Company'’s financial controls, internal control and risk
management systems;

to discuss the internal control system with management to ensure
that management has performed its duty to have an effective
internal control system;

to review the financial and accounting policies and practices of the
Group; and

to review the external auditor's management letter, any material
queries raised by the auditor to management about accounting
records, financial accounts or systems of control and management’s
responses.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)
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The Audit Committee shall meet at least twice every year. Attendance of ENEEeRFARTRIMASE  SEFH
each director at the meeting is set out below: EE@EZIBERETT

Number of meetings
Attended/Eligible to attend

HESR
B AHEIRE
Executive director: BITESE:
Mr. Leung King San, Sunny REFFTE 2/2
Independent non-executive directors: BYFHITES
Mr. Ha Shu Tong ERREE 2/2
Professor Lee Kwok On, Matthew TR 2/2
Mr. Ting Leung Huel, Stephen TRERAE 2/2
During the year, the Audit Committee, among other matters, reviewed and FN - BEREZES(HFER)RTREEAEH
provided supervision over the Group's financial reporting processes and s BERAIET R AEEFBERTF
internal controls, reviewed interim and annual results of the Group and [EEE AR BINEZHAIEM °

met with the external auditors.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE FMEES
The Remuneration Committee was established on 22 September 2004 FHEZEeRN _ETWFNLAZTHKY '
and comprises of three independent non-executive directors, namely, Mr. —EBUERITEENER R E - TETHE
Ha Shu Tong, Professor Lee Kwok On, Matthew, and Mr. Ting Leung Huel, RTREBSEURMENTESNRRBEER
Stephen and two executive Directors namely, Mr. Ng Cheung Shing and Mr. RS EEK - ERERTNEERBRAELRE -
Leung King San, Sunny. Mr. Ha is currently the chairman of Remuneration
Committee.
The principal duties of the Remuneration Committee include: FNEZEe s TERERE
to make recommendations to the Board on the Company’s policy - BRARREZRAREBEABZZEBHMIK
and structure for all directors and senior management remuneration REEE - RBRYIERmMABRENRER
and on the establishment of a formal and transparent procedure for HIETHNECE - MESSIREER

developing remuneration policy;

to review and approve the management’s remuneration proposals - HAEESgREIeERH KB Emigs kit
with reference to the Board's corporate goals and objectives; EEIE BB

to determine, with delegated responsibility, the remuneration . EESeERET BEEERWMTEREES
packages of individual executive directors and senior management BEBABZHMFBARBEREER 2
and the terms of their service contracts; it/

to make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration of - MIEMITEFCHeRESSIRLES

non-executive directors;
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to consider and approve the grant of shares and share options to - REARRRRGEEE B R ERERTE E
eligible participants pursuant to the share award scheme and share B ERE B REER DB MBI

option scheme of the Company;

to review and approve compensation payable to executive directors - BERIERARITEERSREEAERE
and senior management for any loss or termination of office or LRI BB EAMAT ZEE - B
appointment to ensure that it is consistent with contractual terms ERZEEERE MG  BERERES
and is otherwise fair and not excessive; and DEF—B - BETBRAFLEE - TEUB
E
to ensure that no director or any of its associates is involved in - BREWESIHEHEABMEATSS2HEE
deciding his own remunerations. EHBDZHM -
The Remuneration Committee shall meet at least once every year. HNEEeEFARIRIT—AEE  SEFH
Attendance of each director at the meeting is set out below: Fem2EnEnmT

Number of meetings
Attended/Eligible to attend

HESS
RE T R B
Executive directors: HITESE
Mr. Ng Cheung Shing REBEE 4/4
Mr. Leung King San, Sunny REFRE 4/4
Independent non-executive directors: BYFHITES
Mr. Ha Shu Tong ERREE 4/4
Professor Lee Kwok On, Matthew TR IR 4/4
Mr. Ting Leung Huel, Stephen TRERAE 3/4
During the year, the work performed by the Remuneration Committee FRN - FNEE@ETZIEA(HPBIE) R
includes, inter alia, the review of the Group’s remuneration policy for REEBZHITESENDREIE BB E L
its executive directors and senior management and their levels of WE 7SR -

remuneration.

Remuneration of Directors and Senior Management EEREREEEZFHH
Pursuant to code provision B.1.5 of the CG code, the remuneration of RIBEEERTREBISKTFRIES  BHEZT
senior management by band for the year ended 31 December 2013 is set —=F+ZA=t—HLEFERLAEEEKEZ
out below: FINEm RN T
Number of Individuals
A
HKS$ 1,000,001 to HKS$ 1,500,000 1,000,001 752 1,500,00078 7T 2
Nil to HK$ 1,000,000 Z%1,000,000/8 7T 1
Further particulars in relation to directors’ remuneration and the five BIE FHRAMERI6BETHECESHFNNRAS
highest paid employees as required to be disclosed pursuant to Appendix S HEE 2 BEEH N RSN T8 &9 °

16 to the Listing Rules are set out in notes 8 and 9 to the report.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination Committee was established on 22 September 2004 and
comprises of the three independent non-executive directors, namely, Mr.
Ha Shu Tong, Professor Lee Kwok On, Matthew, and Mr. Ting Leung Huel,
Stephen and two executive directors namely, Mr. Ng Cheung Shing and Mr.
Leung King San, Sunny. Mr. Ha is currently the Chairman of the Nomination
Committee.

The principal duties of the Nomination Committee include:

to review the structure, size and composition (including the skills,
knowledge and experience) of the Board at least annually and
make recommendations on any proposed changes to the Board to
complement the Company's corporate strategy;

to identify individuals suitably qualified to become Board members
and select or make recommendations to the Board on the selection
of individuals nominated for directorships;

to review the Board Diversity Policy, as appropriate, and review the
measurable objectives that the Board has set for implementing the
Board Diversity Policy, and monitor the progress on achieving the
objectives; and make disclosure of its review results in the Corporate
Governance Report annually;

to assess the independence of independent non-executive directors
and to ensure at least one-third of the Board should be INEDs; and

to make recommendations to the Board on the appointment or
reappointment of directors and succession planning for directors, in

particular the chairman and the chief executive officer.

Attendance of each director at the meeting is set out below:

Executive directors: HITES !

Mr. Ng Cheung Shing REBLAE

Mr. Leung King San, Sunny REFEE
Independent non-executive directors: BYFHTES:
Mr. Ha Shu Tong ERREE
Professor Lee Kwok On, Matthew FRIZHIR

Mr. Ting Leung Huel, Stephen TREBRAE
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During the year, the Nomination Committee reviewed the Group’s
structure, size and composition of the Board, reviewed and adopted
the revised terms of reference of the Nomination Committee, prepared
and adopted a policy on board diversity, assessed the independence of
independent non-executive directors and made recommendations to the
Board on appointment of directors and reviewed succession planning for
chief executive officer.

INVESTMENT COMMITTEE

The Investment Committee was established on 17 May 2012 and comprises
of an independent non-executive directors, Mr. Ha Shu Tong, and an
executive director, Mr. Ng Cheung Shing. Mr. Ng is currently the Chairman
of the Investment Committee. The Investment Committee is responsible
for executing investment guidelines approved by the Board, monitoring
the performance of the investments and proposing investment strategies
to the Board. During the year, the Investment Committee reported the
performance of investments and reviewed the investment strategies with
all directors in the Board meetings.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as set out in Appendix 10 of
the Listing Rules as its code of conduct for dealings in securities of the
Company by the directors. Based on a specific enquiry of the Company'’s
directors, the directors have complied with the required standard set out in
the Model Code throughout the year.

INVESTOR RELATIONS AND SHAREHOLDERS'
RIGHTS

Information of the Company and the Group are delivered to its
shareholders through a number of channels, which includes annual report,
interim report, announcements and circulars. The latest information of the
Company and the Group together with the published documents are also
available on the Company's website.

The Company’s annual general meeting provides a useful platform for
direct communication between the board and shareholders. Separate
resolutions are proposed on each substantially separate issue at the
general meetings.

Shareholders are encouraged to participate in general meetings or to
appoint proxies to attend and vote at meetings for and on their behalf if
they are unable to attend the meetings.
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ARABERAGBESEEHERLBT - AR
(MEFBE)SELERAERIEBRFE -

The process of the Company’s general meeting will be monitored and
reviewed on a regular basis, and, if necessary, changes will be made to
ensure that Shareholders’ needs are best served.

The annual general meeting in 2013 (“the AGM") was held on 22 May 2013. —T—= Eﬂxﬁﬁﬁﬁ’*( [BREREBEFRE R
T—:iﬂﬂ F+ZART - REZLFERERA
EK@ZE/R%WJZZDT :

The attendance record of the directors at the AGM is set out below:

Number of meetings
Attended/Eligible to attend

HESR
REHHEIRE
Executive directors: BITES:
Mr. Ng Cheung Shing (Chairman) REBSREFE) /1
Mr. Cheung Wai Lam (Deputy Chief Executive Officer) (Note 1) @Eﬁ?ﬁ?ﬁi(ﬁg/ﬁﬂ Bz) (B1at1) 0/0
Mr. Leung King San, Sunny R=FR A /1
Mr. Lee Allen (Note 2) SRS (HAE2) 0/0
Mr. Yan King Shun (Note 3) ASEERENF3) 1
Independent non-executive directors: BYFHITES :
Mr. Ha Shu Tong BRIRSESE /1
Professor Lee Kwok On, Matthew TELHIR 11
Mr. Ting Leung Huel, Stephen TRBEA Il
Notes: T

REREERZERARFTNTESE B -F—=
FH-A+EHBEX -

1. Mr. Cheung Wai Lam has been appointed as an executive director of the Company with 1.
effect from 17 December 2013.

FERMALRZERARATRNTEST A -F—=
FHLARRBERR -

2. Mr. Lee Allen has been appointed as an executive director of the Company with effect 2.
from 5 September 2013.

EREREBREAADNTES G -F =6+
Bt+—REEM -

3. Mr. Yan King Shun resigned as an executive director of the Company with effect from 11 3.
October 2013.

The Company’s external auditor also attended the AGM.

According to Section 74 of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (the "Act”)
and Bye-law 58 of the Bye-laws of the Company, shareholders holding
in aggregate not less than 10% of the paid-up capital of the Company
have the right, by written requisition to the Board or the secretary of the
Company, to request a special general meeting to be called by the Board
for the transaction of any business specified in such requisition, and
such meeting shall be held within two months after the deposit of such
requisition.
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Any number of shareholders representing not less than 5% of the total
voting rights of the Company on the date of the requisition or not less than
100 shareholders of the Company are entitled to put forward a proposal for
consideration at a general meeting of the Company. Shareholders should
follow the requirements and procedures as set out in Section 79 of the Act
for putting forward such proposal at a general meeting.

In relation to the shareholders communication, the shareholders can
contact the Company Secretary or the Vice President of Corporate
Development and Communications by email to InvestorRelation@ctil.com
or by mail to 30/F., Prosperity Millennia Plaza, 663 King's Road, North Point,
Hong Kong.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

There was no change in the Company’s constitutional documents during
the year.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

The directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the financial
statements of the Group and have adopted the accounting principles
generally accepted in Hong Kong and complied with the requirements of
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (which include all Hong Kong
Accounting Standards and Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

The reporting responsibilities of the Company’s independent auditors are
set out in the Independent Auditors’ Report on pages 45 and 46.

INTERNAL CONTROL

During the year, the Board has reviewed the effectiveness of the internal
control system of the Group. The review covers all material controls,
including financial, operational and compliance controls and risk
management functions of the Group. No material internal control aspects
of any significant problems were noted. The Board was satisfied that the
internal control system of the Group has been functioned effectively
during the review year.
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AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

Ernst & Young has been re-appointed as the independent auditor of
the Company by shareholders at the last annual general meeting. The
remuneration in respect of services provided by Ernst & Young to the
Group in 2013 is summarized as follows:

B ET BN &

KGR EBAEERRR LERRBFAE
BRESRNRAEYZHEE - R_F—=F BF
KR AN 3B 75 P 17 A 5 B HR AR AR 7% 2 3 B A
LI

HK$'000
TR

Auditing services EIZRTE 1,050
Non-auditing services HEZRTE
Fee for reviewing the interim results for BEEE—_Z—=FA=1HL
the six-month period ended 30 June 2013 NEABEzFHERE 2 ER 84
Total st 1,134

COMPANY SECRETARY

The company secretary, Mr. Ng Kwok Keung, was appointed as the
Company Secretary of the Company on 18 May 2007 and is a full time
employee of the Group. Mr. Ng is a Certified Public Accountant of the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and has confirmed that he
has taken no less than 15 hours of relevant professional trainings during
the reporting year.
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Report of the Directors

EEEHE

The directors herein present their report together with the audited
financial statements of the Company and the Group for the year ended 31
December 2013.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. Details of the
principal activities of its principal subsidiaries are set out in note 18 to the
financial statements. There were no significant changes in the nature of the
Group's principal activities during the year.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The Group's profit for the year ended 31 December 2013 and the state
of affairs of the Company and the Group at that date are set out in the
financial statements on pages 47 to 149.

An interim dividend of HK6 cents per ordinary share was paid on 6
September 2013. The directors recommend the payment of a final dividend
of HK7 cents per ordinary share and a special dividend of HK2 cents per
ordinary share in respect of the year to shareholders on the register of
members on 27 May 2014. This recommendation has been incorporated in
the financial statements as an allocation of contributed surplus within the
equity section of the statement of financial position.

SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A summary of the published results, assets and liabilities and non-
controlling interests of the Group for the last five financial years, as
extracted from the published audited financial statements and reclassified
as appropriate, is set out on pages 151 to 152. This summary does not form
part of the audited financial statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND
INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment, and
investment properties of the Group during the year are set out in notes
14 and 15 to the financial statements, respectively. Further details of the
Group's investment properties are set out on page 150.
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SHARE CAPITAL, SHARE OPTIONS AND AWARDED
SHARES

Details of movements in the share capital, share options and awarded
restricted shares of the Company during the year are set out in notes 28, 29
and 30 to the financial statements, respectively.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company's bye-
laws or the laws of Bermuda, being the jurisdiction in which the Company
is incorporated, which would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a
pro rata basis to existing shareholders.

PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

During the year, the Company purchased certain of its shares on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) and these shares
were subsequently cancelled by the Company. The share repurchase
has enhanced the net asset value per share and the earnings per share,
which the directors believe is in the best interests of the Company and the
shareholders. Further details of these transactions are set out in note 28 to
the financial statements.

Except as disclosed above, neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries
purchased, redeemed or sold any of the Company’s listed securities during
the year.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and the Group
during the year are set out in note 31(b) to the financial statements and in
the consolidated statement of changes in equity, respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

At 31 December 2013, the Company’s reserves available for distribution,
calculated in accordance with the provisions of the Bermuda Companies
Act 1981, amounted to HK$51,685,000, of which HK$21,641,000 has been
proposed as final and special dividends for the year. In addition, the
Company's share premium account, in the amount of HK$38,493,000 may
be distributed in the form of fully paid bonus shares.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

In the year under review, sales to the Group’s five largest customers
accounted for 43.2% of the total sales for the year and sales to the largest
customer included therein amounted to 24.9%. Purchases from the Group’s
five largest suppliers accounted for 24.4% of the total purchases for the
year and purchases from the largest supplier included therein amounted
to 8.3%.

None of the directors of the Company or any of their associates or any
shareholders (which, to the best knowledge of the directors, own more
than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital) had any beneficial interest
in the Group's five largest customers and suppliers.

DIRECTORS
The directors of the Company during the year were:

Executive directors:

Ng Cheung Shing (Chairman)

Cheung Wai Lam (Deputy Chief Executive Officer, appointed on 17 December 2013)
Leung King San, Sunny

Lee Allen (appointed on 5 September 2013)

Yan King Shun (Chief Executive Officer, resigned on 11 October 2013)

Independent non-executive directors:
Ha Shu Tong

Lee Kwok On, Matthew

Ting Leung Huel, Stephen

In accordance with bye-law 86(2) & 87 of the Company’s bye-laws, Cheung
Wai Lam, Lee Allen, Ha Shu Tong and Ting Leung Huel, Stephen will retire
by rotation and, being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting.

All independent non-executive directors of the Company renewed their
appointments with the Company for specific terms of three years but are
subject to retirement by rotation in accordance with the provisions of the
bye-laws of the Company.

The Company has received annual confirmations of independence from
Ha Shu Tong, Lee Kwok On, Matthew, and Ting Leung Huel, Stephen, and as
at the date of this report still considers them to be independent.
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DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S
BIOGRAPHIES

Biographical details of the directors of the Company and the senior
management of the Group are set out on pages 17 to 19 of the annual
report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

No directors proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting has a service contract with the Company which is not
determinable by the Company within one year without payment of
compensation, other than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

The directors’ fees are subject to shareholders’ approval at general
meetings. Other emoluments are determined by the Company’s board
of directors with reference to directors’ duties, responsibilities and
performance and the results of the Group. In addition, the directors’
remuneration is reviewed by the Remuneration Committee annually.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

No director had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, in
any contract of significance to the business of the Group to which the
Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party during the year.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS EENRORIEERDZERZRRAE
IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 December 2013, the interests of the directors in the share capital RIE—=F+_A=1+—H  FSEFRALA
and underlying shares of the Company and its associated corporations REMEBSEAE(EE R B REEEG([EFH &
(within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance BB ]) FEXVED) 2 AR AN R A AR A TR A
(the “SFO"), as recorded in the register required to be kept by the BIEEAE MBS KRN ES2GEEFEZ St
Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to Fracss s iR IE E BT AZESTEHEITESFR FHHEZ
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for PRI SITHR AR R R 2 =T

Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers, were as follows:

Long positions in ordinary shares of the Company: AAREBERZEE -

Number of shares held,
capacity and nature of interest

FEROEE - SO RERNE

Percentage

of the

Directly Through Company'’s

beneficially controlled issued share

owned corporation capital

EARAT

Hi BB EBITRA

Name of director BExnfs ZEFAF ) Bok
Ng Cheung Shing REP (a) 2,002,000 110,000,000 112,002,000 45.87
Leung King San, Sunny REH 1,010,000 - 1,010,000 041
Lee Allen F = 240,000 - 240,000 0.10
3,252,000 110,000,000 113,252,000 46.38
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN BEERNRORMEBERO 2 ERRKXE

SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES (CONTINUED) (&)
Long positions in shares of an associated corporation: N—EREEE RGO ZHE :
Number of shares Percentage of
RGEE the associated
Name of Relationship Directly Through  corporation’s
associated with the beneficially controlled issued share
Name of director corporation Company Class of shares owned corporation capital
{EZ AL E
EEARAF] BHE Zi8 ERITRAE
EEME HBEEER ZE% R 4338 5 BExES ZEHAT Bok
Ng Cheung Shing Computer And Company's Non-voting 1,750,000 3,250,000 N/A
RRE Technologies subsidiary deferred (note FtzE (b)) T
International V. /N=] 4 ERERRT
Limited e =G|
B ZRERA
Notes: Ff3E
() The 110,000,000 shares were held by Chao Lien Technologies Limited (“Chao Lien”), (a) CS. (BV) Limited 2 2 E W B R RIBH R B R A7)
a wholly-owned subsidiary of C.S. (BVI) Limited. Mr. Ng Cheung Shing was entitled to (T &8 1)+ %5 110,000,000 8% B% 15 ﬁﬁﬁﬁ%iﬁ%
exercise or control the exercise of one-third or more of the voting power at general FCS. BV Limited Z BRER A& _E1TESIEFITTHE=
meetings of C.S. (BVI) Limited, which in turn was entitled to exercise or control the Z— AL 2R - TCS. (BV) Umltﬂiﬁ”ﬁ%ﬁ/\f
exercise of one-third or more of the voting power at general meetings of Chao Lien. BEIRRAE E1THESIERIITHE =9 2 — A LR R
Accordingly, Mr. Ng Cheung Shing was deemed, under the SFO, to be interested in all e At - REFEHFRBAERD - RERBFEERS
shares held by Chao Lien. BRNGEEHETIEE ZMBRG P A ER -
(b)  The 3,250,000 non-voting deferred shares were held by Chao Lien. (b)  7%3,250,000A% AR =R LA D TR BHEIE A o
Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2013, none of the directors had MBEXWEEN R_E—=F+_A=+—
registered an interest or a short position in the shares or underlying shares B #EEENEAA 7?ET§EH$QE%P&'ZH§@
of the Company or any of its associated corporations that was required to SRR - A RIRE S KB ERGI 235215
be recorded pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified AT IRBELEMBETAESETESRRS
to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for AVZYEST R BITAIE AN A B M B 3 P 2 BE 2R B4
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers. B o
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DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed in the sections “Share option scheme” and “Restricted
share award scheme” below, at no time during the year were rights to
acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in or debentures of
the Company granted to any director or their respective spouses or minor
children, or were any such rights exercised by them; or was the Company,
or any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the directors
to acquire such rights in any other body corporate.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company operates a share option scheme (the “Scheme”) for
the primary purpose of providing incentives and rewards to eligible
participants who contribute to the success of the Group's operations.
Further details of the Scheme are disclosed in note 29 to the financial
statements.

No share option of the Company was granted, exercised, cancelled or
lapsed during the year.

RESTRICTED SHARE AWARD SCHEME

The Company adopted a restricted share award scheme (the “Award
Scheme”) on 22 May 2008 (the “Adoption Date"). Pursuant to the Award
Scheme, shares of the Company (the “Awarded Shares”) are granted
to eligible employees (including directors) of the Group until the 10th
anniversary from the Adoption Date. The Company shall also pay cash to
the appointed trustee company for its acquisition and holding upon trust
of the Awarded Shares for the benefit of these employees and directors.
The Awarded Shares will then be transferred to these employees and
directors upon vesting. The aggregate number of shares to be awarded
under the Award Scheme throughout its duration shall not exceed 10% of
the issued share capital of the Company from time to time.

Details of the Award Scheme and the shares awarded thereunder are set
out in note 30 to the financial statements.
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RESTRICTED SHARE AWARD SCHEME (CONTINUED) B PR&IBR 17 2R B =t &l (48)

The following table illustrates the number of and movements of the TR EE2—TE—=F+-_A=1+—HItFE
Awarded Shares under the Award Scheme for the year ended 31 December NEEENETEITE T EEAR D 2 BB M EEE) o

2013.

Number of Unvested Awarded Shares

*BREBRGHYE
Weighted
At Awarded  Transferred Vested Forfeited At average
Name of category 1 January during during during during 31December Vesting periodof  fair value
of participant 2013 the year the year the year the year 2013 Award date Awarded Shares  per share
i
i -g-= =1
SEENS -g8-= L3 £ B R t=A it 832
FrEER -A-H ERE BEE E25E 2RK Eqr= RIEREAS RERABES NYE
HKS
Directors
=
Ng Cheung Shing 380,000 - - (200,000) - 180,000 23 July 2008 30 June 2009 to 30 June 2015 061
REE “TT)\F “ZENFRA=THE
tA=1+=H Z2-RFRA=TH
Yan King Shun 380,000 = = (200,000) (180,000) = 23 July 2008 30 June 2009 to 30 June 2015 061
finH “IT)N\E ZZENFAASTHE
tA=t=H ZE-REAA=TH
Lee Allen - - 60,000 - - 60,00 23 July 2008 30 June 2009 t0 30 June 2015 061
FEi “ZTN\F ZEENFEAA=THE
+A=+=H “Z-REARA=TH
Lee Allen - - 250,000 - - 250,000 12 August 2013 30 September 2014 to 158
T2 —F--F 30 September 2018
N\A+=R “Z-MEAA=THE
2 \FNA=TH
YanKing Shun 200,000 - - (50,000) (150,000) - 1 April 2011 30 April 2012 to 30 April 2016 159
ERfE —T—f ZZ-"F¥NA=THE
mA—H 2 "E¥MA=1H
Yan King Shun - 500,000 - - (500,000) - 28 March 2013 30 April 2014 to 30 April 2018 145
ERfE =% “Z-MEMA=THE
=A=1/\A Z2-/\fMA=1H

960,000 500,000 310,000 (450,000) (830,000) 490,000
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RESTRICTED SHARE AWARD SCHEME (CONTINUED) BRI 0 R B a8l (&)
Number of Unvested Awarded Shares
KERRBRGHE
Weighted
At Awarded  Transferred Vested Forfeited At average
Name of category 1 January during during during during 31December Vesting periodof fair value
of participant 2013 the year the year the year the year 2013 Award date Awarded Shares  per share
"
i —B-ZF =1
SRERS = o= £ R £R £ T=A mE¥S
R -A-H 2B BEE E5E EL Er=[ RitiREAS RERHERSD AYE
HKS
Other employees
HibfEE
In aggregate 480,000 - (60,000) (180,000) (120,000) 120,000 23 July 2008 30 June 2009 to 30 June 2015 061
3t “3)E “EINEAASTRE
tAZ+=H —2-h5/A=TH
In aggregate 414,000 = = (138,000) (44,000) 232,000 1 March 2010 30 April 2011 to 30 April 2015 135
i3t . “§——#MA=tAE
=A-H —E-1FNmA=1A
In aggregate 36,000 - - (12,000) - 24,000 3 January 2011 31 December 2011 to 150
st —2——F 31 December 2015
—A=H —T——F+-A=t-HZ
“Z-RFtZA=1—H
In aggregate 144,000 - - (36,000) - 108,000 15 November 2011 30 September 2012 to 120
b —2——F 30 September 2016
+—A+hA ZT-—FNA=1BZ
3 ~ENA=TH
In aggregate - 850,000 - - - 850,000 28 March 2013 30 April 2014 to 30 April 2018 145
&t = “T-NEMA=TRZE
=R=t/NR - \§MA=1H
In aggregate - 350,000 (250,000 - - 100,000 12 August 2013 30 September 2014 to 158
b —T—=F 30 September 2018
NAt+ZR “T-NENA=TEZE
~F-/\fhA=1A

2,034,000 1,700,000 = (816,000) (994,000) 1924000
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Report of the Directors (continued)

EEEgRE (A

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER
PERSONS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 December 2013, the following interests of more than 5% of the
issued share capital and share options of the Company were recorded in
the register of interests required to be kept by the Company pursuant to

Section 336 of the SFO:

Long positions:

Name of shareholder

of the Company Capacity and nature of interest
ADERE
nE/AB FoRERNE
Chao Lien Technologies Limited (@  Directly beneficially owned
BEHRARAA BEREGHEAR
CS. (BVI) Limited (@  Through a controlled corporation
itk NG
Puttney Investments Limited (“PIL") (b)  Directly beneficially owned
BEREGEAR
Hutchison International Limited ("HIL") (b)  Through a controlled corporation
it b NG
Hutchison Whampoa Limited ("HWL") (b)  Through a controlled corporation
MEEHERAR([fE]) BRI AT
Cheung Kong (Holdings) Limited ("CKH") (b), (@ Through a controlled corporation
RIEX(EE)ERAR(RE) it b NG
Li Ka-Shing Unity Trustee Company (b),(© Through a controlled corporation
Limited (‘TUT1") FRTIEIAT
Li Ka-Shing Unity Trustee Corporation (b), (©  Through a controlled corporation
Limited (TDT1") ik el NG
Li Ka-Shing Unity Trustcorp Limited (b), ()  Through a controlled corporation
(TDT2") BBXEHI AT
Li Ka-Shing (b), (0 Through a controlled corporation
FEH BB RA]
Hui Yau Man Directly beneficially owned
X BEREGHER
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FERRREMATRRO RAEER
10z s

K=F—=6+=A=+—A  LTAXAAAE
RS R DI B33 6 AT T E 2
MR R P A 2 A S BT AR A R A AR 5% A
i

wR:

Percentage of
Numberof the Company’s Number
ordinary issued share of share
shares held capital options held
il ERDATHST Frfs
BEREA REBLH BREZR
110,000,000 4505 =
110,000,000 4505 =
29,148,938 11.94 =
29,148938 11.94 =
29,148,938 11.94 =
29,148938 11.94 =
29,148,938 11.94 =
29,148938 11.94 =
29,148938 11.94 -
29,148,938 11.94 =
26,782,000 10.97 -



Report of the Directors (continued)

EEgHRE(E)

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER
PERSONS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES (CONTINUED)

Long positions: (continued)

Notes:

@)

The interest was also disclosed as an interest of Mr. Ng Cheung Shing in the section

“Directors’ interests and short positions in shares and underlying shares” of this report.

PIL is a wholly-owned subsidiary of HIL, which in turn is a wholly-owned subsidiary of
HWL. By virtue of the SFO, HWL and HIL were deemed to be interested in the 29,148,938
shares of the Company held by PIL.

Li Ka-Shing Unity Holdings Limited (“TUHL"), of which each of Li Ka-Shing and Li Tzar
Kuoi, Victor, are respectively interested in one-third and two-third of the entire issued
share capital, owns the entire issued share capital of TUT1. TUT1 as trustee of The Li Ka-
Shing Unity Trust, together with certain companies of which TUT1 as trustee of The Li
Ka-Shing Unity Trust is entitled to exercise or control the exercise of more than one-third
of the voting power at general meetings, hold more than one-third of the issued share
capital of CKH. Subsidiaries of CKH are entitled to exercise or control the exercise of more

than one-third of the voting power at the general meetings of HWL.

In addition, TUHL also owns the entire issued share capital of TDT1 as trustee of The Li
Ka-Shing Unity Discretionary Trust (‘DT1") and TDT2 as trustee of another discretionary
trust ("DT2"). Each of TDT1 and TDT2 holds units in The Li Ka-Shing Unity Trust.

By virtue of the SFO, each of Li Ka-Shing, being the settlor and may being regarded as
a founder of DT1 and DT2 for the purpose of the SFO, TDT1, TDT2, TUT1 and CKH were
deemed to be interested in the 29,148,938 shares of the Company held by PIL.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2013, no person, other than
the directors of the Company, whose interests are set out in the section
“Directors’ interests and short positions in shares and underlying shares”
above, had registered an interest or a short position in the shares or
underlying shares of the Company that was required to be recorded
pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO.

FERRREMATRRO RAEER
7z s (&)

@  FERNNNARESIERNID RABRND 2 B8k
KRB BRNRBERREB AL S -

) PLTHLZZEMEBAR @ HLAAFEZ 2 EHBA
A o IRBFEF R EIEKG - ERHILEARERPILAT
#520,148 938 & A A RIBR A% R R A AERS o

(©  LiKa-Shing Unity Holdings Limited ([TUHL ) (X2 &2
BIIRAETEARTEESHAE =S, —Rk=0=
B )BEATUTI 2 8BE BITIRA » TUTTERThe Li Ka-
Shing Unity Trust Z {5 7E A + ERITUT1YE & The Li Ka-
Shing Unity Trustfs 56 A M A 1 TE S HIA TR AR
RAG LBB=7—REEZETAR  FHEBA
EH—ZREEDBEIRAE - REZHWB AR BER
MERRAE LTSI TERB =9 — 1R -

Itk N+ TUHL 75 # 48 TDT1 ( A The Li Ka-Shing Unity
Discretionary Trust([DT1 I)1EFEAZ & %) RTDT2(BA
S—2REFR(DNDZEEATD) 2 EHE BT
fRZN o TDT1 R TDT2% B ¥ #% A The Li Ka-Shing Unity
TrustZ BEfi ©

RBEEMIERED - R (EATVERT AL
BEARARVEDT D22 B3k A (3h38 5 K A & 165
=)) - TDT1 ~ TDT2 ~ TUTI REE R B iR /ERPILFT
F5H 229,148,938 A A AR D P HE B A ©

BEXHEEEN RZE—=F+-_A=+—
B - BREESEN EX[EZRRD REERG 2
ERMAR | —EiZ AR AESI  METMAL
AR RIS AR (D R E AR E B S M E
1EBIEE3361578 T aosk 2 HEZR SRR ©
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Report of the Directors (continued)

EEERE(E)

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES HAREE

Details of the contingent liabilities of the Company and the Group are set RARRAEE 2 A B EFBEHR T B RKH
out in note 34 to the financial statements. i¥34 °

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT BHABREFERE

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and within BEARBARAABZERTRESAN - RA
the knowledge of the directors, at least 25% of the Company's total issued WERR  AARIBEBITRABEZE D E25%H
share capital was held by the public as at the date of this report. RBRANLTHAE °

AUDITORS 2

Ernst & Young retire and a resolution for their reappointment as auditors KGRV BB ER - MAR BN ERE R
of the Company will be proposed at the forthcoming annual general HAFAS FBIRE—BERER  BEEAKRAD
meeting. AZEIAD

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD RERESFS

Ng Cheung Shing FE

Chairman REB

Hong Kong, 21 March 2014 A ZE—NWF=A=+—H
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Independent Auditors’ Report
B A% B R

e
EY =

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF COMPUTER AND
TECHNOLOGIES HOLDINGS LIMITED

(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Computer
And Technologies Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(together, the “Group”) set out on pages 47 to 149, which comprise the
consolidated and company statements of financial position as at 31
December 2013, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss, the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash
flows for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audit. Our report is made solely to you, as a body,
in accordance with Section 90 of the Bermuda Companies Act 1981, and
for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

FINBAREERRATDERMR
(REHERMA L2 ERAF)

ARZEANE TR ERZEA7E 149 B FTE B R 4t
SEERAB(ERAR])REMBAR (FREI&
KB ) 2REMBRE  EPERER_T—=F
TZA=Z1+—BZBERARMEIRAREK A
REEZALFEZFARGER  HFE2E N
xR RABDREBRNMGERSRER  URkE
EEFT BRI E M A M PR T -

ESHGESUBRENER

BERRESARARREBEHNASHEMZE
B BHREERRBBRAGRIZBEERT @ &
HEEBEERATW2IGAMBHRE  BRES
RRBLE L NFERE  BREAMBRE T FE
B EGF AR M B E A R -

BB EE

RZBEN 2 B ERRIBAZBEN 2 EXAERE %
ERAMBHERERERER - AR 2BE
TRB—NN\—FBRERREEORNBTE
EREERRERE - MARAEEMAR - NMaH
ERBE B AN TR S M AR H E M E R A LB ' 0k
‘R
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Independent Auditors’ Report (continued)

B BE RS (&)

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.
The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgement, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those
risk assessments, the auditors consider internal control relevant to the
entity’s preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a true
and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors, as well
as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at 31
December 2013, and of the Group'’s profit and cash flows for the year
then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
and have been properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Ernst & Young
Certified Public Accountants

22/F CITIC Tower
1 Tim Mei Avenue

Central, Hong Kong

21 March 2014
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss

mEEER

Year ended 31 December 2013 BZE—F—=F+_-_A=+—HIFE

2013 2012
—E-= —F=F
HK$'000 HKS'000
FET THT
REVENUE PN 187,110 206,708
Cost of sales and services THE MRS A AN (85,989) (113,118)
Gross profit EF 101,121 93,590
Other income and gains, net E AU A Rz 558 17,212 9,550
Fair value gains/(losses), net: NFEEW (E18)F5E
Financial assets at fair value through BEAFELESEAR
profit or loss 2T EE (171) 6,262
Derivative financial instruments — PTEVBTA-TEER
transactions not qualifying as hedges B 22 5 - 130
Investment properties REYE 2,558 16,610
Selling and distribution expenses HE RO HF X (23,065) (30,306)
General and administrative expenses —ERATBRAX (42,483) (44,634)
Finance costs V%ER (56) (100)
PROFIT BEFORE TAX MRB DR R 55,116 51,102
Income tax expense FriS iR (6,970) (4,100)
PROFIT FORTHE YEARATTRIBUTABLETO & A T #E AFE(S
OWNERS OF THE PARENT A F R 48,146 47,002
2013 2012
—E—-=fF —E—_4F
HK cents HK cents
AL (il
EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO BATREERBRRE
ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE BiheREF
PARENT
Basic - IN 20.03 1950
Diluted By 19.89 19.34
Details of the dividends payable and proposed for the year are disclosed in REE R R BRI E 2 FHBER M ®E 12
note 12 to the financial statements. Bz -
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

SEeEEHEWRER

Year ended 31 December 2013 HZ —Z—=

PROFIT FOR THE YEAR

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Other comprehensive income to be
reclassified to profit or loss in
subsequent periods:

Available-for-sale investments:
Changes in fair value

Exchange differences on translation of
foreign operations

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

FOR THE YEAR ATTRIBUTABLE TO
OWNERS OF THE PARENT

FH-A=+—HLEE

2013 2012
—E—=
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHT T
BEE R 48,146 47,002
HibZmEUWA
REBER - Et2ERALE
EMOBEEERK
AMHHERE
NHEED (303) 100
MEGINETSIRFE A 2
FEH = 1,461 340
AEZEHMEEUEA
1,158 440
SRRHE ANRIEARFE
ZEMALZE
49,304 47,442
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e TR SRR

31 December 2013 —Z—=F+_A=+—H

NON-CURRENT ASSETS

Property, plant and equipment

Investment properties

Goodwill

Other intangible assets

Available-for-sale investments

Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss

Total non-current assets

CURRENT ASSETS

Inventories

Trade and bills receivables

Prepayments, deposits and other receivables

Due from contract customers

Available-for-sale investments

Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss

Tax recoverable

Pledged bank deposits

Cash and cash equivalents

Total current assets

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Trade payables, other payables and
accruals

Due to contract customers

Deferred revenue

Tax payable

Total current liabilities
NET CURRENT ASSETS

TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Deferred tax liabilities

Net assets

FRBEE

YESN T &

BREME

A

HETEE

AHHERE
BAHESES AR ZMHEE

FRBEERE

REBEE

FE

FEWE 5 Bk MBI 15
BNFOR - e AR KFR
FEW A KPR

AR ERE
BAFERESAREEE

A RIEDIR
BEE IR TIFK
RekFRREEE

RBEERE

REAE

FENE SR - EMREMNFIR
K FEET IR
ENAHEPHIR

BN

FEBBLIR

mE R EAE

RBEEFE

REERRBRE

FRBEE
EERRIE

BEFRE

20
21
22
23

24

25
25

26
23

27

R R

2013 2012
—g-= —F—&
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHT T
5,244 5,880
50,140 47,582
29,211 25813
12,211 2,100
2,416 8,555
99,222 89,930
10,212 11,300
23,211 27,263
6,031 6,042
5,145 3,351
29,862 =
15,569 17,487
5,338 3,803
12,270 60,097
304,777 274,806
412,415 404,149
64,486 69,715
5,008 2,511
18,198 12,419
10,392 8,144
98,084 92,789
314,331 311,360
413,553 401,290
1,135 1,045
412,418 400,245
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position (continued)
AR EK (E)

31 December 2013 —Z—=F+_HA=+—H

2013 2012
—E—= 2
HK$’000 HKS$'000
FEx FA&T
EQUITY RS
Equity attributable to owners of the parent &R F#HEE AELER
Issued capital BEBITRA 28 24,419 24,529
Share premium account AR % B R 28 38,493 38,493
Contributed surplus N 29,619 67,458
Shares held under the restricted RIEE R IR 2B =2
share award scheme BEzZKRHN 28 (4,735) (5,590)
Other reserves Hh 302,981 253,689
Proposed final and special dividends R AR B R RIAR S 12 21,641 21,666
Total equity FGLs 3 412,418 400,245
Ng Cheung Shing R R Leung King San, Sunny 3 2 3
Director &% Director &%
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
AEREagER

Year ended 31 December 2013 BZE—F—=F+_-_A=+—HIFE

At January 2012
Profit for the year
Other comprehensive income
for the year.
Changes in fair value of an
available-for-sale investment
Exchange differences on
translation of foreign
operations

Total comprehensive income
for the year

Repurchase of shares

Purchase of shares held under the
restricted share award scheme

Vesting of shares held under the
restricted share award scheme

Share award arrangements

Final 2011 dividend declared

Interim 2012 dividend

Proposed final and special 2012
dividends

At31 December 2012

RZE-Z6-f-H
RERET
TEEEMZENA

TR
DFERD

AEEIRRE
BB

AERZERAER

BER
BEARIRN %R
HEPETRA
BRAIRAEEEEET
REE

R R
ER=3——FREkRS
“E-CEPERE
RE-E——%%4
RERIRE
RZF-2%
+-A=t-H

Attributable to owners of the parent

BARER AR
Other reserves
ARt
Shares held
under the Available-
restricted Share- for-sale Proposed
Share share based investment Exchange final and
Issued  premium Contributed award  payment  Goodwill revaluation  Reserve fluctuation  Retained special
capital account surplus scheme reserve reserve reserve funds reserve profits  dividends
REERS
REGER AtLE Bk
2R Kt iTHsE  REAR REEf EiRE AR
B EER AABR  ZRH fE BERG BE RBES #E  REEH  RARE
HKS000  HK$000  HK$OOO  HKS000  HKS000  HKBOOO  HK$000  HKS000  HKS00O  HKS000  HK$000
Tér  TAr  TEr  TAn #r  TAr  TEr  TET TR B Thn
(note 31(a)) 31(a)
24604 38493 104770 (5176) 2,704 7227) 840 73 4305 2517 16895 386,158
- - - - - - - - - 47,002 - 47002
- - - - - - 100 - - - - 100
- - - - - - - - 340 - - 340
- - - - - - 100 - 340 47002 - 47442
(75) - (1190) - - - - - - - - (1.265)
- - B (1372 - - - - - - = (1372
- - - 958 (958) - - - - - - -
- - - - 633 - - - - - - 633
- - 7 - - - - - - - (16895) (16868)
- - (14483) - - - - - - - - (14483)
- - (21,666) - - - - - - - 21,666 -
24529 38493 67458 (5590) 2319 (7220) 940 73 4645 252219 21,666 400245
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity (continued)

RERESER(A)

Year ended 31 December 2013 B2 T —=F+_-_A=+—HIFE

Attributable to owners of the parent

BAREE AR
Other reserves
Rt
Shares held
under the Available-
restricted Share- for-sale Proposed
Share share based investment Exchange final and
Issued  premium Contributed award  payment  Goodwill revaluation  Reserve fluctuation  Retained special Total
capital account surplus scheme reserve reserve reserve funds reserve profits  dividends equity
REERS
REGER AtLE Bk
2R R iTHEE  REAR REEf EiRB FHR
B EER AABR  ZRH fE BERG RE RBES #E  REEN REARS ERAR
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
(i3 T TEn TEx TEx TER TEn TEx TEx  TER TEr  TEn  TER
(note 31(a)) (note 31(a)) (note 31(a))
At January 2013 24,529 38,493 67,458 (5,590) 2,379 (7,227) 940 733 4,645 252,219 21,666 400,245
Profit for the year REREF - - - - - - - - - 48,146 - 48,146
Other comprehensive income REEEMZARA :
for the year.
Changes in fair value of AREERE
avalable-for-sale investments ATEEE - - - - - - (303) - - - - (303)
Bichange differences on BEBNETE
translation of foreign EEERER
operations - - - - - - - - 1,461 - - 1,461
Total comprehensive income TEERERNEE
for the year - - - - - - (303) - 1,461 48,146 - 49,304
Repurchase of shares BERA 28(b) (110) - (1,854) - - - - - - - - (1,964)
Vesting of shares held under the BRHIRAREEET
festricted share award scheme RHZE 30 - - - 855 (855) - - - - - - -
Share award arrangements R Bz 30 - - - - 843 - - - - - - 843
Final and special 2012 dividends ER-F—F%
declared REARS - - 81 - - - - - - - (21,666)  (21,585)
Interim 2013 dividend “T-=ERERE 12 - - (14429 - - - - - - - - (14425)
Proposed final and special 2013 BE-E—=Fx5
dividends RERIRE 12 - - (64) - - - - - - - 064 -
At31 December 2013 RZE-=%
+-A=1-H 24,419 38,493 29,619 (4,735) 2,367 (7,227) 637 733 6,106 300,365 21,641 412,418
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

GERTRER

Year ended 31 December 2013 BZE—F—=F+_-_A=+—HIFE

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES R& ZE)2HERE

Profit before tax:
Adjustments for:
Financial costs
Bank interest income
Dividend income from listed investments
Loss on disposal of items of property,
plant and equipment

Loss on disposal of financial assets at fair value

through profit or loss
Fair value losses/(gains), net:
Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss
Investment properties
Derivative financial instruments
- settlement of derivative financial
instruments
Depreciation
Impairment of trade receivables
Write-down of inventories to net realisable
value
Reversal of impairment of trade receivables
Reversal of trade receivables written off
Reversal of impairment of amounts due from
contract customers
Write-off of inventories
Write-off of items of property,
plant and equipment
Equity-settled share-based payment expense

Decrease in inventories

Decrease in trade and bills receivables

(Increase)/decrease in amounts due
from contract customers

Decrease in prepayments, deposits and
other receivables

Decrease in trade payables, other payables and
accruals

Increase/(decrease) in amounts due to
contract customers

Increase in deferred revenue

Cash generated from operations
Hong Kong profits tax paid
Overseas taxes paid

Net cash flows from operating activities

BRELAR A :
RETEE
MBER
RITHE WA
EREREZBRERA
HEWE - BELREERE
&8
HEZRAFELBREAR
ZEATE B ERR
NEBRE, (W) FHE
WA HEZ RS AR
ZHHEE
REWF
TEFHTA
—RETEFMBIA

o
PR 5 5 R
T SR 25 AT SRR

B EIEWE 5 RFORE

B Bl YE 5 BRI

BE WA HEP IR
B

7 B

x -~ BEK&REEE

P 5 B DARR A7 (<P SR B 52

FEAD
U R 585 AR PR R R
RUA (RS HB (410
2
OB - e RN
B
A E S - K
RSB
A GRS HORE,
(RA)
BN 0
EEEHHARE
EMEBFIEH
EVR
EREBHERLREIE

2013 2012
—E—= —EF——F
HK$’000 HK$'000
F#ET T
55,116 51,102
56 100
(8,758) (9,193)
(713) (953)
35 3
40 1,600
171 (6,262)
(2,558) (16,610)
- (130)
1,192 1,521
140 198
102 291
(143) (59)
(4) -
(418) =
- 596
- 83
843 633
45,101 22,920
986 244
5,556 40,213
(1,376) 648
812 271
(7,173) (20,302)
2,386 (508)
2,678 6,482
48,970 49,968
(5,216) (5,924)
(1,058) (6,805)
42,696 37,239
BEERAA — TR
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows (continued)

REBRERER(E)

Year ended 31 December 2013 HE—E—=F+_-_A=+—HI-FE

2013
—g-=

HK$'000

2012
—E——F
HKS$'000

Net cash flows from operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Bank interest received

Dividends received from listed investments

Purchases of items of property,
plant and equipment

Purchases of listed investments

Purchases of available-for-sale investments

Acquisition of a subsidiary

Proceeds from disposal of items of property,
plant and equipment

Proceeds from disposal of financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss

Proceeds from disposal of available-for-sale
investments

Decrease in pledged bank deposits

Increase in non-pledged bank deposits with
original maturity of more than three months
when acquired

Net cash flows used in investing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Repurchase of shares

Purchase of shares under the restricted share
award scheme

Repayment of bank loans

Dividends paid

Interest paid

Net cash flows used in financing activities

NET DECREASE IN CASH AND CASH
EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year

Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, net

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
AT END OF YEAR

ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH AND
CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents as stated in the
statement of financial position

Pledged deposits for banking facilities granted
by a bank with original maturity of less than
three months when acquired

Non-pledged time deposits with original maturity

of more than three months when acquired

Cash and cash equivalents as stated
in the statement of cash flows
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32

28

30

25

FExT THAT
42,696

8,758 9,193
713 729
(532) (1,751)
(5,050) (11,849)
(48,270) =
(563) =
4 3
12,896 13,980
7,994 =
3,854 21,725
(4,064) (41,598)
(24,260) (9,568)
(1,964) (1,265)
- (1,372)
- (22,526)
(36,010) (31,351)
(56) (100)
(38,030) (56,614)
(19,594) (28,943)
277,028 305,609
1,528 362
258,962 277,028
304,777 274,806
6,075 50,048
(51,890) (47,826)
258,962 277,028
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2013 2012
—EgE—= —ET——F
Notes HK$’000 HKS'000
BosE FET T
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FREBEE
Investments in subsidiaries RETB AR ZIE 18 110,218 147,797
CURRENT ASSETS RENEE
Prepayments TERTFRIE 22 253 255
Tax recoverable ARAETIE 4 -
Cash and cash equivalents RekFERReEE 25 2,163 1,651
Total current assets mEEEAE 2,420 1,906
CURRENT LIABILITIES mEIEE
Accruals FEEt kI 26 409 337
NET CURRENT ASSETS MEEEFE 2,011 1,569
Net assets BEFE 112,229 149,366
EQUITY =
Issued capital B EITRA 28 24,419 24,529
Share premium account AR 1% B AR 28 38,493 38,493
Contributed surplus Nk 31(b) 29,619 67,458
Shares held under the restricted BIEA R I ZE T2
share award scheme BB 2 k’Hn 28 (4,735) (5,590)
Share-based payment reserve R&An 1~ Zk 31(b) 2,367 2,379
Retained profits RE =T 31(b) 425 431
Proposed final and special dividends R R B R RIAR S 12 21,641 21,666
Total equity EmiBE 112,229 149,366
Ng Cheung Shing & R [ Leung King San, Sunny 2= %
Director &% Director &%

R R

EARQA] —T=FFR 55
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1.

2.1

56

CORPORATE INFORMATION

Computer And Technologies Holdings Limited is a limited liability
company incorporated in Bermuda. The registered office of the
Company is located at Clarendon House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton
HM11, Bermuda. The principal place of business of the Company
is located at 30th Floor, Prosperity Millennia Plaza, 663 King's Road,
North Point, Hong Kong.

During the year, the Group was involved in the following principal
activities:

sale of computer networks and system platforms, the provision
of system and network integration, information technology
("IT") solutions development and implementation, and related
maintenance services;

provision of enterprise software applications and related
operation outsourcing, business process outsourcing and
e-business, and related maintenance services; and

property and treasury investments.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”") (which
include all Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong
Accounting Standards ("HKASs") and Interpretations) issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA"),
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
They have been prepared under the historical cost convention,
except for investment properties, available-for-sale investments and
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, which have been
measured at fair value. These financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollars ("HKS$”) and all values are rounded to the nearest
thousand except when otherwise indicated.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
B R E M EE (48)

31 December 2013 —Z—=F+_HA=+—H

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (CONTINUED)

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred
to as the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2013. The
financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for the same
reporting period as the Company, using consistent accounting
policies. The results of subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on
which the Group obtains control, and continue to be consolidated
until the date that such control ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income
are attributed to the owners of the parent of the Group. All intra-
group assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash
flows relating to transactions between members of the Group are
eliminated in full on consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts
and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more
of the three elements of control described in the accounting policy
for subsidiaries below. A change in the ownership interest of a
subsidiary, without a loss of control, is accounted for as an equity
transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises (i)
the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary, (ii)
the carrying amount of any non-controlling interest and (iii) the
cumulative translation differences recorded in equity; and recognises
(i) the fair value of the consideration received, (i) the fair value of any
investment retained and (iii) any resulting surplus or deficit in profit
or loss. The Group'’s share of components previously recognised
in other comprehensive income is reclassified to profit or loss or
retained profits, as appropriate, on the same basis as would be
required if the Group had directly disposed of the related assets or
liabilities.
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2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND

58

DISCLOSURES

The Group has adopted the following new and revised HKFRSs for
the first time for the current year's financial statements.

HKFRS 1 Amendments

HKFRS 7 Amendments

HKFRS 10
HKFRS 11
HKFRS 12

HKFRS 10, HKFRS 11 and
HKFRS 12 Amendments

HKFRS 13

HKAS 1 Amendments

HKAS 19 (2011)

HKAS 27 (2011)

HKAS 28 (2011)

HK(FRIC)-Int 20

Annual Improvements
2009-2011 Cycle

Amendments to HKFRS 1 First-time Adoption of
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards -
Government Loans

Amendments to HKFRS 7 Financial Instruments:
Disclosures - Offsetting Financial Assets and
Financial Liabilities

Consolidated Financial Statements

Joint Arrangements

Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities

Amendments to HKFRS 10, HKFRS 11 and HKFRS 12
- Transition Guidance

Fair Value Measurement
Amendments to HKAS 1 Presentation of Financial
Statements - Presentation of Items of Other

Comprehensive Income

Employee Benefits

Separate Financial Statements

Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures

Stripping Costs in the Production Phase of a Surface

Mine

Amendments to a number of HKFRSs issued in
June 2012

Other than as further explained below regarding the impact of
HKFRS 13 and amendments to HKAS 1, the adoption of the new

and revised HKFRSs has
financial statements.
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2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (CONTINUED)

The principal effects of adopting these new and revised HKFRSs are as

follows:

(@)

HKFRS 13 provides a precise definition of fair value and a single
source of fair value measurement and disclosure requirements
for use across HKFRSs. The standard does not change the
circumstances in which the Group is required to use fair
value, but rather provides guidance on how fair value should
be applied where its use is already required or permitted
under other HKFRSs. HKFRS 13 is applied prospectively and
the adoption has had no material impact on the Group's fair
value measurements. As a result of the guidance in HKFRS
13, the policies for measuring fair value have been amended.
Additional disclosures required by HKFRS 13 for the fair
value measurements of investment properties and financial
instruments are included in notes 15 and 37 to the financial
statements.

The HKAS 1 Amendments change the grouping of items
presented in other comprehensive income (“OClI"). Items
that could be reclassified (or recycled) to profit or loss at a
future point in time (for example, exchange differences on
translation of foreign operations, net movement on cash flow
hedges and net loss or gain on available-for-sale financial
assets) are presented separately from items which will never
be reclassified (for example, the revaluation of land and
buildings). The amendments have affected the presentation
only and have had no impact on the financial position or
performance of the Group. The consolidated statement of
comprehensive income has reflected the changes. In addition,
the Group has chosen to use the new title “statement of profit
or loss” as introduced by the amendments in these financial
statements.
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

The Group has not applied the following new and revised HKFRSs,
that have been issued but are not yet effective, in these financial

statements:

HKFRS 9

HKFRS 9, HKFRS 7 and
HKAS 39 Amendments

HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12 and
HKAS 27 (2011)
Amendments

HKFRS 14

HKAS 19 Amendments

HKAS 32 Amendments

HKAS 36 Amendments

HKAS 39 Amendments

HK(FRIC)-Int 21

Financial Instruments*

Hedge Accounting and amendments to HKFRS 9,
HKFRS 7 and HKAS 394

Amendments to HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12 and HKAS 27
(2011) = Investment Entities '

Regulatory Deferred Accounts ®

Amendments to HKAS 19 Employee Benefits -
Defined Benefit Plans: Employee Contributions 2

Amendments to HKAS 32 Financial Instruments:
Presentation - Offsetting Financial Assets and
Financial Liabilities '

Amendments to HKAS 36 Impairment of Assets
— Recoverable Amount Disclosures for
Non-Financial Assets !

Amendments to HKAS 39 Financial Instruments:

Recognition and Measurement - Novation of
Derivatives and Continuation of Hedge Accounting '

Levies !

1 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2014

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2014
3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016
4 No mandatory effective date yet determined but is available for adoption
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ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(CONTINUED)

Apart from the above, the HKICPA has also issued Annual Improvements
to HKFRSs 2010-2012 Cycle and Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2011-2013 Cycle which set out a collection of amendments to HKFRSs
in response to the International Accounting Standards Board's
annual improvements process. Except for the amendment to HKFRS
1, in which no effective date has been specified and, accordingly,
is effective upon its issuance in January 2014, these amendments
are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2014,
although there are separate transitional provisions for each standard.

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of the impact
of these new and revised HKFRSs upon initial application but is not
yet in a position to state whether these new and revised HKFRSs
would have a significant impact on its results of operations and
financial position.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity), directly or
indirectly, controlled by the Company. Control is achieved when
the Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee and has the ability to affect those
returns through its power over the investee (i.e, existing rights that
give the Group the current ability to direct the relevant activities of
the investee).

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than a majority
of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the Group considers all
relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether it has power

over an investee, including:

(@)  the contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of
the investee;

(b)  rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and

(©)  the Group's voting rights and potential voting rights.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

62

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Subsidiaries (continued)

The results of subsidiaries are included in the Company's statement
of profit or loss to the extent of dividends received and receivable.
The Company's investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost less any
impairment losses.

Business combinations and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition
method. The consideration transferred is measured at the acquisition
date fair value which is the sum of the acquisition date fair values of
assets transferred by the Group, liabilities assumed by the Group to
the former owners of the acquiree and the equity interests issued
by the Group in exchange for control of the acquiree. For each
business combination, the Group elects whether to measure the
non-controlling interests in the acquiree that are present ownership
interests and entitle their holders to a proportionate share of net
assets in the event of liquidation at fair value or at the proportionate
share of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. All other components
of non-controlling interests are measured at fair value. Acquisition-
related costs are expensed as incurred.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial assets
and liabilities assumed for appropriate classification and designation
in accordance with the contractual terms, economic circumstances
and pertinent conditions as at the acquisition date. This includes
the separation of embedded derivatives in host contracts by the
acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the previously held
equity interest is remeasured at its acquisition date fair value and any
resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer
is recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. Contingent
consideration classified as an asset or liability that is a financial
instrument and within the scope of HKAS 39 is measured at fair
value with changes in fair value either recognised in profit or loss
or as a change to other comprehensive income. If the contingent
consideration is not within the scope of HKAS 39, it is measured in
accordance with the appropriate HKFRS. Contingent consideration
that is classified as equity is not remeasured and subsequent
settlement is accounted for within equity.

ANNUAL REPORT 2013

Computer And Technologies Holdings Limited

24 TESTHERBE(E)

B R~ J (A&

MBARZEECHARRR 2BER 1
BRI SRR - RABRHIE AR
Z IR E TR AR DR E R R Z IR -

EBatREE

XA IIAMBB AN - FTERAETIA
WIEHEZ AV ENE  ZATFESNEE
BIRCEE - AREERWIET ATHE A
BB RAKESREUR R T E 5T
BTSN B2 A EZ 8 -
REEBEHT - AEEBEEBZ AT ERHIZ
DIEWRBBE T EEFE LD - sTERIKE
772 IRt CRE R A ) - M
TREARBBROZFEEFE LD - AT
BEMIEE RN IR A FERE -
WK AN E LR SSH ©

EAKEWE -HEXBE  @REANIK
K RUREE B 2 BRI RARRAAOR - 7T
iR MBEERAE  AMEHES
DERER - BRORRKEL I EAH
PZASITETA -

WEBAHDEEETT - ERRHH ZBRAE
wIRWIE Rz A EEHAE - MASIH
RIE RN EERT

WHRETT S T8 2 (R S AR ERNEER
oz XFERER - HoBEA—HEEXRE
ZEAREBER—EYBIR UEFES
FHERIFE3RATAESBER - AR AFER
B MAaHEEINERTERKERARE
fEEBAZEE - HIARELTNBEE
SETEAFIGRAAATHRENA - BIREER
ZEBHBRELRGE - DEAERE K
AREBIEENE - HREEANEZER
SIBR



Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
B R E M EE (48)

31 December 2013 —Z—=F+_HA=+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Business combinations and goodwill (continued)
Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of the
aggregate of the consideration transferred, the amount recognised
for non-controlling interests and any fair value of the Group's
previously held equity interests in the acquiree over the identifiable
net assets acquired and liabilities assumed. If the sum of this
consideration and other items is lower than the fair value of the net
assets acquired, the difference is, after reassessment, recognised in
profit or loss as a gain on bargain purchase.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any
accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is tested for impairment
annually or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying value may be impaired. The Group
performs its annual impairment test of goodwill as at 31 December.
For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a
business combination is, from the acquisition date, allocated to each
of the Group’s cash-generating units, or groups of cash-generating
units, that are expected to benefit from the synergies of the
combination, irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities of the
Group are assigned to those units or groups of units.

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable amount of
the cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating units) to which
the goodwill relates. Where the recoverable amount of the cash-
generating unit (group of cash-generating units) is less than the
carrying amount, an impairment loss is recognised. An impairment
loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in a subsequent period.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating unit (or
group of cash-generating units) and part of the operation within
that unit is disposed of, the goodwill associated with the operation
disposed of is included in the carrying amount of the operation
when determining the gain or loss on the disposal. Goodwill
disposed of in these circumstances is measured based on the
relative value of the disposed operation and the portion of the cash-
generating unit retained.
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POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Business combinations and goodwill (continued)
Goodwill previously eliminated against consolidated reserves
Prior to the adoption of the HKICPA's Statement of Standard
Accounting Practice 30 Business Combinations (“SSAP 30") in 2001,
goodwill arising on acquisition was eliminated against consolidated
reserves in the year of acquisition. On the adoption of HKFRS 3, such
goodwill remains eliminated against consolidated reserves and is not
recognised in the statement of profit or loss when all or part of the
business to which the goodwill relates is disposed of or when a cash-
generating unit to which the goodwill relates becomes impaired.

Fair value measurement

The Group measures its investment properties, debt investments
and equity investments at fair value at the end of each reporting
period. Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset
or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement
is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or
transfer the liability takes place either in the principal market for the
asset or liability, or in the absence of a principal market, in the most
advantageous market for the asset and liability. The principal or the
most advantageous market must be accessible by the Group. The
fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions
that market participants would use when pricing the asset or
liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best
interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account
a market participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by using
the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market
participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the
circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to measure
fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and
minimising the use of unobservable inputs.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Fair value measurement (continued)

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed
in the financial statements are categorised within the fair value
hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 - based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets
for identical assets or liabilities

Level2 - based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is observable, either directly or indirectly

Level3 - based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial
statements on a recurring basis, the Group determines whether
transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by
reassessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of
each reporting period.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required (other than inventories,
financial assets, investment properties and goodwill), the asset’s
recoverable amount is estimated. An asset’s recoverable amount is
the higher of the asset’s or cash-generating unit’s value in use and
its fair value less costs of disposal, and is determined for an individual
asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely
independent of those from other assets or groups of assets, in which
case the recoverable amount is determined for the cash-generating
unit to which the asset belongs.
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POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Impairment of non-financial assets (continued)

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount of an
asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value
using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. An
impairment loss is charged to the statement of profit or loss in the
period in which it arises.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period as
to whether there is an indication that previously recognised
impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased.
If such an indication exists, the recoverable amount is estimated.
A previously recognised impairment loss of an asset other than
goodwill is reversed only if there has been a change in the estimates
used to determine the recoverable amount of that asset, but not
to an amount higher than the carrying amount that would have
been determined (net of any depreciation/amortisation) had no
impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. A
reversal of such an impairment loss is credited to the statement of
profit or loss in the period in which it arises.

Related parties
A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(@)  the party is a person or a close member of that person’s family
and that person (i) has control or joint control over the Group;
(i) has significant influence over the Group; or (iii) is a member
of the key management personnel of the Group or of a parent
of the Group; or
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 TESBERME(E)

POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Related parties (continued) BEAL(E)
(b)  the party is an entity where any of the following conditions (b) fﬁ?k/\T@H?EﬂﬂﬂﬁF BNEge AL
applies: Ep =
()  the entity and the Group are members of the same () ZELHAEEER-—SEBZK
group; = W/NC] I
(i) one entity is an associate or joint venture of the other iy —HEEAS—EBANEEAF
entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow subsidiary of AP E( &73 R W= A /N
the other entity); 7 MBARISEERE)
(i) the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the same (i) ZEBEREBEHYAR—F=7
third party; e &R
(iv)  one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the vy —HEEAFE=FETENALD
other entity is an associate of the third entity; ¥ ME—BEBRZF-HEE
Ep)iid=VNG]|
(v)  the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the v) EBRERAREESHEAEEGRE
benefit of employees of either the Group or an entity 2 ERETE B AR A EREE
=i

=

I

related to the Group;

(vi)  the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person (vi) ERBX()FTHBIA TR S E &
identified in (a); and RIS K&
(vii) a person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence (i) REOFTFHBIATHERBEEAKR

over the entity or is a member of the key management
personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity).
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POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and any impairment losses. The cost of an item of
property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price and
any directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working
condition and location for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and equipment
have been put into operation, such as repairs and maintenance, is
normally charged to the statement of profit or loss in the period in
which it is incurred. In situations where the recognition criteria are
satisfied, the expenditure for a major inspection is capitalised in the
carrying amount of the asset as a replacement. Where significant
parts of property, plant and equipment are required to be replaced
at intervals, the Group recognises such parts as individual assets with
specific useful lives and depreciates them accordingly.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off the
cost of each item of property, plant and equipment to its residual
value over its estimated useful life. The principal annual rates used
for this purpose are as follows:

Leasehold land and Over the shorter of the lease terms and

buildings 2% to 4%
Leasehold improvements  Over the shorter of the lease terms and
20%
Computer equipmentand  20% to 33'/3%
software
Furniture, fixtures and other 18% to 25%
equipment
Motor vehicles 20%

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have
different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated on a
reasonable basis among the parts and each part is depreciated
separately. Residual values, useful lives and the depreciation method
are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at least at each financial
year end.

An item of property, plant and equipment including any significant
part initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or when no
future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any
gain or loss on disposal or retirement recognised in the statement
of profit or loss in the year the asset is derecognised is the difference
between the net sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the
relevant asset.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Investment properties

Investment properties are interests in land and buildings (including
the leasehold interest under an operating lease for a property which
would otherwise meet the definition of an investment property)
held to earn rental income and/or for capital appreciation, rather
than for use in the production or supply of goods or services or
for administrative purposes; or for sale in the ordinary course of
business. Such properties are measured initially at cost, including
transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, investment
properties are stated at fair value, which reflects market conditions at
the end of the reporting period.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair values of investment
properties are included in the statement of profit or loss in the year
in which they arise.

Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an investment
property are recognised in the statement of profit or loss in the year
of the retirement or disposal.

For a transfer from investment properties to owner-occupied
properties, the deemed cost of a property for subsequent
accounting is its fair value at the date of change in use. If a property
occupied by the Group as an owner-occupied property becomes
an investment property, the Group accounts for such property
in accordance with the policy stated under “Property, plant and
equipment and depreciation” up to the date of change in use, and
any difference at that date between the carrying amount and the fair
value of the property is accounted for as a revaluation in accordance
with the policy stated under “Property, plant and equipment and
depreciation” above.

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial
recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets acquired in a
business combination is the fair value as at the date of acquisition.
The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed to be either finite
or indefinite. Intangible assets with finite lives are subsequently
amortised over the useful economic life and assessed for impairment
whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may be
impaired. The amortisation period and the amortisation method for
an intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at
each financial year end.
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POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Intangible assets (other than goodwill) (continued)
Research and development costs

All research costs are charged to the statement of profit or loss as
incurred.

Expenditure incurred on projects to develop new products is
capitalised and deferred only when the Group can demonstrate the
technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset so that it will
be available for use or sale, its intention to complete and its ability
to use or sell the asset, how the asset will generate future economic
benefits, the availability of resources to complete the project and the
ability to measure reliably the expenditure during the development.
Product development expenditure which does not meet these
criteria is expensed when incurred.

Deferred development costs are stated at cost less any impairment
losses and are amortised using the straight-line basis over the
expected commercial lives of the underlying products/services
not exceeding five years, commencing from the date when the
intangible assets are available for use.

Leases

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of ownership of
assets remain with the lessor are accounted for as operating leases.
Where the Group is the lessor, assets leased by the Group under
operating leases are included in non-current assets, and rentals
receivable under the operating leases are credited to the statement
of profit or loss on the straight-line basis over the lease terms. Where
the Group is the lessee, rentals payable under operating leases are
charged to the statement of profit or loss on the straight-line basis
over the lease terms.

Prepaid land lease payments under operating leases are initially
stated at cost and subsequently recognised on the straight-line basis
over the lease terms. When the lease payments cannot be allocated
reliably between the land and buildings elements, the entire lease
payments are included in the cost of the land and buildings as a
finance lease in property, plant and equipment.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Investments and other financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets of the Group are classified, at initial recognition,
as financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, loans and
receivables, and available-for-sale financial investments, as
appropriate. When financial assets are recognised initially, they are
measured at fair value plus transaction costs that are attributable to
the acquisition of the financial assets, except in the case of financial
assets recorded at fair value through profit or loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised
on the trade date, that is, the date that the Group commits to
purchase or sell the asset. Regular way purchases or sales are
purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets
within the period generally established by regulation or convention
in the marketplace.

Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on their
classification as follows:

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss include financial
assets held for trading and financial assets designated upon initial
recognition as at fair value through profit or loss. Financial assets are
classified as held for trading if they are acquired for the purpose of
sale in the near term. Derivatives, including separated embedded
derivatives, are also classified as held for trading unless they are
designated as effective hedging instruments as defined by HKAS 39.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are carried in the
statement of financial position at fair value with net changes in fair
value recognised in the statement of profit or loss. These net fair
value changes do not include any dividends or interest earned on
these financial assets, which are recognised in accordance with the
policies set out for “Revenue recognition” below.

Financial assets designated upon initial recognition as at fair value
through profit or loss are designated at the date of initial recognition
and only if the criteria in HKAS 39 are satisfied.
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POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (continued)
Derivatives embedded in host contracts are accounted for as
separate derivatives and recorded at fair value if their economic
characteristics and risks are not closely related to those of the
host contracts and the host contracts are not held for trading or
designated as at fair value through profit or loss. These embedded
derivatives are measured at fair value with changes in fair value
recognised in the statement of profit or loss. Reassessment only
occurs if there is either a change in the terms of the contract that
significantly modifies the cash flows that would otherwise be
required or a reclassification of a financial asset out of the fair value
through profit or loss category.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed
or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market.
After initial measurement, such assets are subsequently measured
at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method less any
allowance for impairment. Amortised cost is calculated by taking
into account any discount or premium on acquisition and includes
fees or costs that are an integral part of the effective interest rate.
The effective interest rate amortisation is included in the statement
of profit or loss. The loss arising from impairment is recognised in the
statement of profit or loss.

Available-for-sale financial investments

Available-for-sale financial investments of the Group are non-
derivative financial assets in debt securities. Debts securities in this
category are those which are intended to be held for an indefinite
period of time and which may be sold in response to needs for
liquidity or in response to changes in market conditions.

After initial recognition, available-for-sale financial investments are
subsequently measured at fair value, with unrealised gains or losses
recognised as other comprehensive income in the available-for-sale
investment revaluation reserve until the investment is derecognised,
at which time the cumulative gain or loss is recognised in the
statement of profit or loss, or until the investment is determined to
be impaired, when the cumulative gain or loss is reclassified from the
available-for-sale investment revaluation reserve to the statement
of profit or loss. Interest earned whilst holding the available-for-
sale financial investments is reported as interest income and is
recognised in the statement of profit or loss in accordance with the
policy set out for “"Revenue recognition” below.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 TESBERME(E)

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or
part of a group of similar financial assets) is primarily derecognised
(i.e., removed from the Group's consolidated statement of financial
position) when:

the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired; or

the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from
the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the received
cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under
a “pass-through” arrangement; and either (a) the Group
has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the
asset, or (b) the Group has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has
transferred control of the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows
from an asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement, it
evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risk and rewards of
ownership of the asset. When it has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset nor transferred
control of the asset, the Group continues to recognise the transferred
asset to the extent of the Group’s continuing involvement. In that
case, the Group also recognises an associated liability. The transferred
asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects
the rights and obligations that the Group has retained.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period whether
there is objective evidence that a financial asset or a group of
financial assets is impaired. An impairment exists if one or more
events that occurred after the initial recognition of the asset have an
impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset or
the group of financial assets that can be reliably estimated. Evidence
of impairment may include indications that a debtor or a group
of debtors is experiencing significant financial difficulty, default or
delinquency in interest or principal payments, the probability that
they will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation and
observable data indicating that there is a measurable decrease in the
estimated future cash flows, such as changes in arrears or economic
conditions that correlate with defaults.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
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POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Financial assets carried at amortised cost

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the Group first assesses
whether impairment exists individually for financial assets that are
individually significant, or collectively for financial assets that are not
individually significant. If the Group determines that no objective
evidence of impairment exists for an individually assessed financial
asset, whether significant or not, it includes the asset in a group of
financial assets with similar credit risk characteristics and collectively
assesses them for impairment. Assets that are individually assessed
for impairment and for which an impairment loss is, or continues
to be, recognised are not included in a collective assessment of
impairment.

The amount of any impairment loss identified is measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present
value of estimated future cash flows (excluding future credit losses
that have not been incurred). The present value of the estimated
future cash flows is discounted at the financial asset’s original
effective interest rate (i.e., the effective interest rate computed at
initial recognition).

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use of
an allowance account and the loss is recognised in the statement
of profit or loss. Interest income continues to be accrued on the
reduced carrying amount and is accrued using the rate of interest
used to discount the future cash flows for the purpose of measuring
the impairment loss. Loans and receivables together with any
associated allowance are written off when there is no realistic
prospect of future recovery.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the estimated impairment
loss increases or decreases because of an event occurring after the
impairment was recognised, the previously recognised impairment
loss is increased or reduced by adjusting the allowance account. If a
write-off is later recovered, the recovery is credited to the statement
of profit or loss.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)
Available-for-sale financial investments

For available-for-sale financial investments, the Group assesses at the
end of each reporting period whether there is objective evidence
that an investment or a group of investments is impaired.

If an available-for-sale asset is impaired, an amount comprising
the difference between its cost (net of any principal payment and
amortisation) and its current fair value, less any impairment loss
previously recognised in the statement of profit or loss, is removed
from other comprehensive income and recognised in the statement
of profit or loss.

In the case of debt instruments classified as available for sale,
impairment is assessed based on the same criteria as financial
assets carried at amortised cost. However, the amount recorded
for impairment is the cumulative loss measured as the difference
between the amortised cost and the current fair value, less any
impairment loss on that investment previously recognised in the
statement of profit or loss. Future interest income continues to be
accrued based on the reduced carrying amount of the asset and is
accrued using the rate of interest used to discount the future cash
flows for the purpose of measuring the impairment loss. Impairment
losses on debt instruments are reversed through the statement
of profit or loss if the subsequent increase in fair value of the
instruments can be objectively related to an event occurring after
the impairment loss was recognised in the statement of profit or
loss.

24 TESTBERBE(E)

MBEERER)

AL EMEIRE
AEREMHRETE - ARERSERE
PR LR A RERER TN R
By —HIREDHE -

AT E B E R TURME - BIEAA (F0kR
ERAS R#HE) ERFQAFEZER B
TURAERN B R ER BERR - BEMW
EEBWAFFIER - WRBERIER

ROBRAIMEEZEBITAME - BUETD
VAR 238 SH K AR 51| Bk 2 B 75 B EE AR R) < 22 R
Al o AT - BB SR AR 2R TR
AN ERIR I A ERZ Z8EE 2 RETE
BORSER B ZERER BRERER R
EER) o REMBWATIHRE E 2 &H|
REREERTSE - ARG EIRERBRR AR
WHRARREREZ N REERG - HET
TARTAEE A F B I8 s R MR R
EEREEE 2 SHFEER - AIEFTAZ
EETRA B B RS R

R R R E AR A] —T=FFR 75



Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
B RS sR S MY EE (48)

31 December 2013 —Z—=F+_HA=+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

76

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities of the Group are classified, at initial recognition, as
loans and borrowings.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and net of
directly attributable transaction costs.

Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends on
their classification as follows:

Loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings
are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective
interest rate method unless the effect of discounting would be
immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost. Gains and losses
are recognised in the statement of profit or loss when the liabilities
are derecognised as well as through the effective interest rate
amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or
premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of
the effective interest rate. The effective interest rate amortisation is
included in the statement of profit or loss.

Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Group are those
contracts that require a payment to be made to reimburse the
holder for a loss it incurs because the specified debtor fails to
make a payment when due in accordance with the terms of a debt
instrument. A financial guarantee contract is recognised initially
as a liability at its fair value, adjusted for transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the issuance of the guarantee. Subsequent
to initial recognition, the Group measures the financial guarantee
contract at the higher of: (i) the amount of the best estimate of the
expenditure required to settle the present obligation at the end of
the reporting period; and (ii) the amount initially recognised less,
when appropriate, cumulative amortisation.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Derecognition of financial liabilities
A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the
liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the
same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an
existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as a derecognition of the original liability
and a recognition of a new liability, and the difference between the
respective carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of profit
or loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount
is reported in the statement of financial position if there is a currently
enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is
an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle
the liabilities simultaneously.

Treasury shares

Own equity instruments which are reacquired (treasury shares) are
recognised at cost and deducted from equity. No gain or loss is
recognised in the statement of profit or loss on the purchase, sale,
issue or cancellation of the Group’s own equity instruments. Any
difference between the carrying amount and the consideration is
recognised in equity.

Shares held under the restricted share award
scheme

Where shares of the Company are purchased from the market for
a restricted share award scheme, the consideration paid, including
any directly attributable incremental costs, is presented as “Shares
held under the restricted share award scheme” and deducted from
equity.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Cost is determined on the weighted average basis and, in the
case of finished goods and work in progress, comprises direct
materials, direct labour and an appropriate proportion of overheads.
Net realisable value is based on estimated selling prices less any
estimated costs to be incurred to completion and disposal.
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POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Deferred revenue

Deferred revenue represents service fees received in advance from
the rendering of the corresponding services. Revenue is recognised
and deferred revenue is released to the statement of profit or loss
when the corresponding services have been rendered.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash
and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand deposits,
and short term highly liquid investments that are readily convertible
into known amounts of cash, are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value, and have a short maturity of generally within three
months when acquired, less bank overdrafts which are repayable on
demand and form an integral part of the Group’s cash management.

For the purpose of the statement of financial position, cash and cash
equivalents comprise cash on hand and at banks, including term
deposits, and assets similar in nature to cash, which are not restricted
as to use.

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or
constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and it is probable
that a future outflow of resources will be required to settle the
obligation, provided that a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount recognised
for a provision is the present value at the end of the reporting period
of the future expenditures expected to be required to settle the
obligation. The increase in the discounted present value amount
arising from the passage of time is included in finance costs in the
statement of profit or loss.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax relating
to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit
or loss, either in other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior periods are
measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to
the taxation authorities, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period, taking into consideration interpretations and practices
prevailing in the countries/jurisdictions in which the Group operates.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all temporary
differences at the end of the reporting period between the tax
bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial
reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences, except:

when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial
recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a transaction
that is not a business combination and, at the time of the
transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable
profit or loss; and

in respect of taxable temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries, when the timing of the reversal
of the temporary differences can be controlled and it is
probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences, the carryforward of unused tax credits and any unused
tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it
is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences, the carryforward of unused tax
credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible
temporary differences arises from the initial recognition of
an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither
the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

in respect of deductible temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries, deferred tax assets are only
recognised to the extent that it is probable that the temporary
differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable
profit will be available against which the temporary differences
can be utilised.

24 TESTBERBE(E)

B

4
Y|

FriS %t (4)
REBERRAMT S - NREBHNEER
AERAGZ HERHRRERMG DR
2R ERAERHRETHERE -

BRI &SN - iR E R IEERIER
RELEFIERAE

EREHR AR BRI ER B S (X
FEEBA  ANETRZHHESR
A RIS B e I R ) PSS
By —REEFRBEMLR K

ERMBARZRERBZERRE
RIEZER - MeeEslEEERTEER
ZBEIRRE - B A R E S

@ o
BB - R ASEERAEEI AR

RBLH LA HIRR 2 BR IEE R  ARTIARAN
A% R ARBIEEE - tnRRA A REHR
FERBOG N - ] AEE % HIBR B A 1
ZR  AGIARBRRE R MRBREERE
DR SELERIAEE

HAENEREZRAHRERA
BERVIZHERA-ERX S (LIFEBHE
Bt BRNETR B R H SRR
RMBEWEZE) S NEEXAE
MR - &

SEMBARZRERBZAIENE
RUEZEME  EEAHEREER
FIRE A RS R M - WA ERTE
MAEBIEEEEREZEZRBN
T DEERRETERIAEE

FRGEREERAT —T=FFR 79



Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
B RS sR S MY EE (48)

31 December 2013 —Z—=F+_HA=+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
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POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Income tax (continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of
each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or
part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred
tax assets are reassessed at the end of each reporting period and are
recognised to the extent that it has become probable that sufficient
taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax
asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that
are expected to apply to the period when the asset is realised or the
liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally
enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets against current
tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity
and the same taxation authority.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the economic
benefits will flow to the Group and when the revenue can be
measured reliably, on the following bases:

(@)  from the sale of goods, when the significant risks and rewards
of ownership have been transferred to the buyer, provided
that the Group maintains neither managerial involvement to
the degree usually associated with ownership, nor effective
control over the goods sold;

(b)  from the rendering of integration and solutions services
and application services (other than the sale of goods or
the provision of maintenance services), on the percentage
of completion basis, as further explained in the accounting
policy for “Contracts for services” below, or when the relevant
services have been rendered;

(©) from the provision of maintenance services, on a time
proportion basis over the terms of the respective contract, or

when the relevant services have been rendered:;

(d)  from the sale of listed investments, on the transaction dates
when the relevant contract notes are executed;
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Revenue recognition (continued)
(e)  rental income, on a time proportion basis over the lease terms;

(f)  interest income, on an accrual basis using the effective interest
method by applying the rate that exactly discounts the
estimated future cash receipts over the expected life of the
financial instrument or a shorter period, when appropriate, to
the net carrying amount of the financial asset; and

(g0 dividend income, when the shareholders’ right to receive
payment has been established.

Contracts for services

Contract revenue on the rendering of integration and solution
services and application services comprises the agreed contract
amount. Contract costs comprise direct equipment and material
costs, labour and other costs of personnel directly engaged in
rendering the services and attributable overheads.

Revenue from the rendering of integration and solution services
and application services (other than those that are recognised on a
time proportion basis over the period of the contract or when the
relevant services have been rendered, as appropriate) is recognised
based on the percentage of completion of the transaction, provided
that the revenue, the costs incurred and the estimated costs to
completion can be measured reliably. The percentage of completion
is established by reference to the costs incurred to date as compared
to the estimated total costs to be incurred under the transaction,
or the value of services performed to date as a percentage of the
value of total services to be performed under the transaction. Where
the outcome of a contract cannot be measured reliably, revenue is
recognised only to the extent that the expenses incurred are eligible
to be recovered.

Provision is made for foreseeable losses as soon as they are
anticipated by management.

Where contract costs incurred to date plus recognised profits less
recognised losses exceed progress billings, the surplus is treated as
an amount due from contract customers. Where progress billings
exceed contract costs incurred to date plus recognised profits
less recognised losses, the surplus is treated as an amount due to
contract customers.
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POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Share-based payments

The Company operates two equity-settled, share-based
compensation schemes including a share option scheme and
a restricted share award scheme for the purpose of providing
incentives and rewards to eligible participants who contribute to the
success of the Group's operations. Employees of the Group (including
directors of the entities comprising the Group) receive remuneration
in the form of share-based payments, whereby employees render
services as consideration for equity instruments (“equity-settled
transactions”).

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees for grants
after 7 November 2002 is measured by reference to the fair value at
the date at which they are granted.

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised, together with
a corresponding increase in equity, over the period in which the
performance and/or service conditions are fulfilled in employee
benefit expense. The cumulative expense recognised for equity-
settled transactions at the end of each reporting period until the
vesting date reflects the extent to which the vesting period has
expired and the Group's best estimate of the number of equity
instruments that will ultimately vest. The charge or credit to the
statement of profit or loss for a period represents the movement in
the cumulative expense recognised as at the beginning and end of
that period.

No expense is recognised for awards that do not ultimately vest,
except for equity-settled transactions where vesting is conditional
upon a market or non-vesting condition, which are treated as
vesting irrespective of whether or not the market or non-vesting
condition is satisfied, provided that all other performance and/or
service conditions are satisfied.

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are modified, as a
minimum an expense is recognised as if the terms had not been
modified, if the original terms of the award are met. In addition, an
expense is recognised for any modification, that increases the total
fair value of the share-based payments, or is otherwise beneficial to
the employee as measured at the date of modification.

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated as if it
had vested on the date of cancellation, and any expense not yet
recognised for the award is recognised immediately. This includes
any award where non-vesting conditions within the control of
either the Group or the employee are not met. However, if a new
award is substituted for the cancelled award, and is designated as a
replacement award on the date that it is granted, the cancelled and
new awards are treated as if they were a modification of the original
award, as described in the previous paragraph.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Share-based payments (continued)

The dilutive effect of outstanding options and shares held under
the restricted share award scheme is reflected as additional share
dilution in the computation of earnings per share.

The Group has adopted the transitional provisions of HKFRS 2 in
respect of equity-settled awards and has applied HKFRS 2 only to
equity-settled awards granted after 7 November 2002 that had not
vested by 1 January 2005 and to those granted on or after 1 January
2005.

Other employee benefits

Paid leave carried forward

The Group provides paid annual leave to its employees under their
employment contracts on a calendar year basis. Under certain
circumstances, such leave which remains untaken as at the end of
each reporting period is permitted to be carried forward and utilised
by the respective employees in the following year. An accrual is
made at the end of each reporting period for the expected future
cost of such paid leave earned during the year by the employees
and carried forward.

Retirement benefit schemes

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory Provident
Fund retirement benefit scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) under the
Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for
those employees who are eligible to participate in the MPF Scheme.
Contributions are made based on a percentage of the employees’
basic salaries and are charged to the statement of profit or loss
as they become payable in accordance with the rules of the MPF
Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately from
those of the Group in an independently administered fund. The
Group's employer contributions vest fully with the employees when
contributed into the MPF Scheme, except for the Group’s employer
voluntary contributions, which are refunded to the Group when the
employee leaves employment prior to the contributions vesting
fully, in accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which operate in
Mainland China are required to participate in a central retirement
benefit scheme operated by the local municipal government.
These subsidiaries are required to contribute a certain percentage
of their payroll costs to the central retirement benefit scheme.
The contributions are charged to the statement of profit or loss as
they become payable in accordance with the rules of the central
retirement benefit scheme.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

84

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Other employee benefits (continued)

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised at the earlier of when the Group
can no longer withdraw the offer of those benefits and when the
Group recognises restructuring costs involving the payment of
termination benefits.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that the Group
incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds, and they are
expensed in the period in which they are incurred.

Dividends

Final dividends proposed by the directors, excluding those relating
to the Company’s own shares held under the Company’s restricted
share award scheme, are classified as a separate allocation of
retained profits and/or other distributable reserves within the equity
section of the statement of financial position, until they have been
approved by the shareholders in a general meeting. When these
dividends have been approved by the shareholders and declared,
they are recognised as a liability.

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and declared,
because the Company’s bye-laws grant the directors the authority
to declare interim dividends. Consequently, interim dividends are
recognised immediately as a liability when they are proposed and
declared.

Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars,
which is the Company’s functional and presentation currency. Each
entity in the Group determines its own functional currency and items
included in the financial statements of each entity are measured
using that functional currency. Foreign currency transactions
recorded by the entities in the Group are initially recorded using their
respective functional currency rates prevailing at the dates of the
transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are translated at the functional currency rates of exchange
ruling at the end of the reporting period. Differences arising on
settlement or translation of monetary items are recognised in the
statement of profit or loss.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Foreign currencies (continued)

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost
in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the
dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items measured at
fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange
rates at the date when the fair value was measured. The gain or loss
arising on translation of a non-monetary item measured at fair value
is treated in line with the recognition of the gain or loss on change
in fair value of the item (i.e, translation difference on the item whose
fair value gain or loss is recognised in other comprehensive income
or profit or loss is also recognised in other comprehensive income or
profit or loss, respectively).

The functional currencies of certain overseas subsidiaries are
currencies other than the Hong Kong dollar. As at the end of the
reporting period, the assets and liabilities of these entities are
translated into the presentation currency of the Company at the
exchange rates prevailing at the end of the reporting period and their
statements of profit or loss are translated into Hong Kong dollars
at the weighted average exchange rates for the year. The resulting
exchange differences are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in the exchange fluctuation reserve.
On disposal of a foreign operation, the component of other
comprehensive income relating to that particular foreign operation is
recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, the
cash flows of overseas subsidiaries are translated into Hong Kong
dollars at the exchange rates ruling at the dates of the cash flows.
Frequently recurring cash flows of overseas subsidiaries which arise
throughout the year are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the
weighted average exchange rates for the year.
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86

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements requires
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and
liabilities, and their accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure
of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and
estimates could result in outcomes that could require a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of the assets or liabilities
affected in the future.

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies,
management has made the following judgements, apart from those
involving estimations, which have the most significant effect on the
amounts recognised in the financial statements:

Operating lease commitments - Group as lessor

The Group has entered into commercial property leases on its
investment property portfolio. The Group has determined, based on
an evaluation of the terms and conditions of the arrangements, that
it retains all the significant risks and rewards of ownership of these
properties which are leased out on operating leases.

Classification between investment properties and owner-
occupied properties

The Group determines whether a property qualifies as an investment
property, and has developed criteria in making that judgement.
Investment property is a property held to earn rentals or for capital
appreciation or both. Therefore, the Group considers whether a
property generates cash flows largely independently of the other
assets held by the Group. Some properties comprise a portion
that is held to earn rentals or for capital appreciation and another
portion that is held for use in the production or supply of goods or
services or for administrative purposes. If these portions could be
sold separately or leased out separately under a finance lease, the
Group accounts for the portions separately. If the portions could
not be sold separately, the property is an investment property only
if an insignificant portion is held for use in the production or supply
of goods or services or for administrative purposes. Judgement is
made on an individual property basis to determine whether ancillary
services are so significant that a property does not qualify as an
investment property.

ANNUAL REPORT 2013

Computer And Technologies Holdings Limited

TEETHHE R AR

EEEAEREANEE MK RER AL
B - fhRT RRR - MARAE - et RER
SHEA  Fx  BERAE  REABHZ
WE - URRARE BB RERERK
FE - REER RGO EE G 2A
HERREXYEZEENABREEEN
BEAHE -

H

FERASKE 2 @FTBERE - BRIA TS R fbat
ZHEHN - EREER T H M B RE DR
RERABARTE 2 HIH -

REHEAR -AEEERHBEA
AEEEREREYRMAGIT L ERAYMEH
%) - BN AL PHER R G I 27HE - K
SEERERBZEAKEHELAYES
AR AE 2 E AR K @R o

REVMXREANEZTE

AEEEEE - BENEELAERER—A
REWE - WEBIEELZAEG 2 ER - &
BYE RHLIREUVE £ 3 & AL B R34
MERMMEFE WX - At - AREZE
MEMRBRZASRE - RERANREBL
RAKERFE 2 EMEE - BETWE—D
FHEWREEREAREE - 5B REL
ENHEE R IR R SAETHAE
ZERDAIBLHESRIERERET A
R - AERESZEFRD @ERIARK © M
EWMATABELLE - EREEESHER
MR ERGHETRAE Z MO L IFE
R BRAMESAGIEREYDE - EEED
SUERIEAE L HIET - UEE R BEERE
ERERZERNEHZMETAERINER



Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
B R E M EE (48)

31 December 2013 —Z—=F+_HA=+—H

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (CONTINUED)

Judgements (continued)

Income taxes

Significant judgement is involved in determining the provision
for income taxes. Determining income tax provision requires
management to make estimates and assumptions and involves
judgement on the tax treatment of certain transactions, assessment
of the probability of tax uncertainties and interpretation of applicable
tax rules. These estimates, assumptions, judgements and assessments
affect the amounts that are reported in these financial statements
and accompanying disclosures. The Group carefully evaluates tax
implications of transactions and tax provisions are set up accordingly.
The tax treatment of such transactions is reconsidered periodically to
taken into account any changes in tax legislation and/or underlying
assumptions.

As a result of the fact that certain matters relating to income taxes
have not been confirmed/agreed/assessed by the relevant tax
authority, accounting judgements and estimates based on, inter alia,
the substance of the matters, certain underlying assumptions and
estimates, and the interpretation of existing legislation in respect
thereof, are required in determining the applicable tax position.
Where the final outcome of these matters is different from that
based on the original judgements, assumptions, interpretations and
estimates, the differences will impact the income tax and tax payable
in the period in which the differences realise.

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of
estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that have
a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are
described below.

Impairment of goodwill

The Group determines whether goodwill is impaired at least on an
annual basis. This requires an estimation of the value in use of the
cash-generating units to which the goodwill is allocated. Estimating
the value in use requires the Group to make an estimate of the
expected future cash flows from the cash-generating units and also
to choose a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present
value of those cash flows. The carrying amount of goodwill at 31
December 2013 was HK$29,211,000 (2012: HKS$25,813,000). Further
details are given in note 16 to the financial statements.
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88

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (CONTINUED)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets (other than goodwill)

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators of impairment
for all non-financial assets at the end of each reporting period. Non-
financial assets with finite useful lives are tested for impairment
when there are indicators that the carrying amounts may not be
recoverable. An impairment exists when the carrying value of an
asset or a cash-generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount,
which is the higher of its fair value less costs of disposal and its
value in use. The calculation of the fair value less costs of disposal is
based on available data from binding sales transactions in an arm'’s
length transaction of similar assets or observable market prices
less incremental costs for disposing of the asset. When value in
use calculations are undertaken, management must estimate the
expected future cash flows from the asset or cash-generating unit
and choose a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present
value of those cash flows.

Estimation of fair value of investment properties

Investment properties are stated at their fair value. The fair value at
the end of each reporting period was based on a valuation on these
properties conducted by an independent firm of professionally
qualified valuers using property valuation techniques which involve
making assumptions on certain market conditions. Favourable or
unfavourable changes to these assumptions would result in changes
in the fair value of the Group’s investment properties and the
corresponding adjustments to the gain or loss are recognised in the
statement of profit or loss.

Further details, including the key assumptions used for fair value
measurement, are given in note 15 to the financial statements.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (CONTINUED)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

Impairment of loans and receivables

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period whether
there is any objective evidence that a loan/receivable is impaired.
To determine whether there is objective evidence of impairment,
the Group considers factors including, inter alia, the probability of
insolvency or significant financial difficulties of the debtors and
default or significant delay in payments.

The Group maintains an allowance for the estimated loss arising from
the inability of its debtors to make the required payments. The Group
makes its estimates based on the ageing of its receivable balances,
debtors’ creditworthiness, and historical write-off experience. If the
financial condition of its debtors was to deteriorate so that the actual
impairment loss might be higher than expected, the Group would
be required to revise the basis of making the allowance.

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all unused tax losses to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against
which the losses can be utilised. Significant management judgement
is required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that
can be recognised, based upon the likely timing and level of future
taxable profits together with future tax planning strategies. Further
details are contained in note 27 to the financial statements.

Impairment of available-for-sale investments

The Group classifies certain assets as available for sale and recognises
movements in their fair values in equity. When the fair value
declines, management makes assumptions about the decline in
value to determine whether there is an impairment that should
be recognised in the statement of profit or loss. The carrying
amount of available-for-sale investments was HK$42,073,000 (2012:
HK$2,100,000). Further details are included in note 19 to the financial
statements.

Development costs

Development costs are capitalised in accordance with the
accounting policy for research and development costs in note 2.4 to
the financial statements. Determining the amounts to be capitalised
requires management to make assumptions regarding the expected
future cash generation of the assets, discount rates to be applied
and the expected period of benefits.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (CONTINUED)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

Useful lives of property, plant and equipment

The Group determines the estimated useful lives and related
depreciation charges for its property, plant and equipment. This
estimate is based on the historical experience of the actual useful
lives of assets of similar nature and functions. It could change
significantly as a result of technical innovation and competitor
actions in response to severe industry cycles. Useful lives are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at least at each financial year
end. The Group will increase the depreciation charge where useful
lives are less than previously estimated lives, or it will write off or
write down technically obsolete or non-strategic assets that have
been abandoned.

Net realisable value of inventories

Net realisable value of inventories is based on estimated selling
prices less any estimated costs to be incurred to completion and
disposal. These estimates are based on the current market condition
and the historical experience in selling goods of similar nature.
They could change significantly as a result of changes in market
conditions. The Group will reassess the estimations at the end of
each reporting period.

Contracts for services

The Group recognises certain contract revenue on the rendering
of services by reference to the stage of completion of the contract
activity at the end of the reporting period, when the outcome of
a contract can be estimated reliably. The stage of completion is
measured by reference to the proportion that contract costs incurred
for work performed to date bear to the estimated total contract
costs to be incurred under the transaction, or the value of services
performed to date as a percentage of the value of total services
to be performed under the transaction. Significant assumptions
are required to estimate the total contract costs and/or the stage
of completion, and the recoverable variation works that will affect
the stage of completion. The estimates are made based on past
experience and knowledge of management.
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OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

For management purposes, the Group is organised into business
units based on their products and services and has three reportable
operating segments as follows:

(@)  the integration and solutions services segment that primarily
engages in the sales of computer networks and system
platforms, the provision of system and network integration,
IT solutions development and implementation, and related
maintenance services;

(b)  the application services segment that primarily engages in
the provision of enterprise software applications and related
operation outsourcing, business process outsourcing and
e-business, and related maintenance services; and

(©) theinvestments segment that primarily engages in various
types of investing activities including, inter alia, property
investment for rental income and/or for capital appreciation
and treasury investment in securities for dividend income and
interest income and/or for capital appreciation.

Management monitors the results of the Group's operating
segments separately for the purpose of making decisions about
resources allocation and performance assessment. Segment
performance is evaluated based on reportable segment profit, which
is @ measure of adjusted profit before tax. The adjusted profit before
tax is measured consistently with the Group's profit before tax except
that unallocated interest income, unallocated other income and
gains, net, corporate and other unallocated depreciation, corporate
and other unallocated expenses, and finance costs are excluded
from such measurement.

Segment assets exclude tax recoverable, pledged bank deposits,
cash and cash equivalents, and other unallocated head office and
corporate assets as these assets are managed on a group basis.

Segment liabilities exclude tax payable, deferred tax liabilities and
other unallocated head office and corporate liabilities as these
liabilities are managed on a group basis.

There were no material intersegment sales and transfers during the
current and prior years.
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KEsHER

=
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4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4, REFBER(E)
(CONTINUED)
(a) Operating segments (a) RBEDER
Group NEE
Integration and
Solutions Services Application Services Investments Total
SRRBRARER JE R R i g
2013 2013 2012 2013 2012 2013
c&-= 82 % 8-z % -8-cf
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Thr BT TEr TR
Segment revenue: AHUA
Sales to external customers HETHAKE 96,886  148% 86271 80011 3,953 1863 187,110 206708
Other income and gains, net EMARNEFE 4,872 49 38 5 1134 (510) 6,044' (76)"
Total 5t 101,758 125,263 86,309 80016 5,087 1353 193,154 206,632
Segment results PHEE 19,672 JAVA] 38,675 30011 8,039 24599 66,386 61,733
Reconcilation: i
Unallocated interest income AAEFERA 8,758' 9193'
Unallocated otherincome and gains, net ~ RATEMMAR
Y5 2410 433
Corporate and other unallocated PEREMAAENE
depreciation (141) (170)
Corporate and other unallocated PEREMAAERL
expenses (22,241) (19987)
Finance costs BEER (56) (100)
Profit before tax BEALER 55,116 51,102
Segment assets AEE B3 41561 38,829 BRI 113763 719539 186365 155031
Reconciliation: HE
Coporate and other unallocated assets — REREMASREE 35272 339048
Total assets BELE 511,637 494079
Segment liabilities P8E 42,757 49347 40,939 32673 558 609 84,254 82629
Reconciliation: HE -
Corporate and other unallocated liabilies £ REMARARERE 14,965 11,205
Totalliabities Bt 99,219 93834
* This represents the consolidated revenue of HK$187,110,000 (2012: 3 HBREAEERZEE WA 187,110,000/ T
HK$206,708,000) in the consolidated statement of profit or loss. (== ——% : 206,708000/87T) ©
A These comprise the consolidated other income and gains, net, of A BREEREERERAZ E A R F5E
HK$17,212,000 (2012: HK$9,550,000) in the consolidated statement of 17,212,000/ 70( ZF— =4 : 9,550,000/ 7C) °

profit or loss.
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4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

(CONTINUED)

(a) Operating segments (continued)

Group

Integration and
Solutions Services

(a) HEDH(E)

REHE

Investments

Total

SRRBANERR
20

2013
“%-=

HK$'000

TR

Other segment information; Hta5Es
Net fair value gains on investment REMFATENR S

properties - -
Net fair value gains/(losses) on BATEEERAR

financial assets at fairvalue through profit ~ BEBEATEM/

orloss (Bl)FE - =
Depreciation i 528 682
Corporate and other unallocated PRREGANRE

depreciation
Write-down of inventories to net FEMRZTERTE

realisable value 102 291
Impairment losses recognised/(reversed)  REHKEER,/ (B2

inthe statement ofprofitorloss, et~ EBIESE 461 (149)
Capital expenditure™ AR 306 914
Corporate and other unallocated EERAMRARER

capital expendiure %

* Including impairment losses recognised in the consolidated statement

*%

of profit or loss attributable to the integration and solutions services
segment and application services segment of nil (2012: HK$145,000)
and HK$140,000 (2012: HK$53,000), respectively, and impairment losses
reversed in the consolidated statement of profit or loss attributable
to the integration and solutions services segment and the application
services segment of HK$461,000 (2012: Nil) and HK$104,000 (2012:
HK$59,000), respectively.

Capital expenditure consists of additions to property, plant and
equipment and including property, plant and equipment from the
acquisition of a subsidiary.

Application Services

ERMRH

2013

&
HK$'000
47

429

(36)

114

MR G REER AR

2013
-%-=

HK$'000

TRR

k&

0m
HKS 000
TH

.

2013
“g-z¢
HKS'000
47

2012
“E--F
HK$'000
T

= 2,538 16610 2,538 16610

= (17M) 6,262 (171) 6,262
575 94 %4 1,051 1351
il 170

1,192 152

= - = 102 21
6 - = 425 (139
646 - = 420 1,560
135 191

555 1,751

o BRERREIBERTERK A S KRS
R 3 R e R 5 B2 REEE D B
BE(ZT— 4 1 14500078 7T ) }.140,0007%
TL(ZT——4F : 5300087L)  RR4REIE
SR BB R B SRR KRRk RIRTE D 3P R fE
PRS2 2B Bl A461,000/8 T ( —B——4F :
48) 121040008 7T (ZF— =4 : 59000/87T) °

= BAHXBEDE BERREBRE AR
BEAKE-HNBARZYE  BERR
BRE -
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4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4., REIWBER(E)
(CONTINUED)
(b) Geographical information (b) HEER
Group rEE
(i) Revenue from external customers () FKEIIREEZKA
Hong Kong Mainland China Total
£ HERH fam
2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012
“E-=f -T——&# CZB-Zf “F--f CB-=fF “T—F
HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAL THL Thn TAL TARL THL
Segment revenue: AHEA
Sales to external customers  HEFIARF 160,421 154,356 26,689 52352 187,110 206,708
The revenue information is based on the locations of WAEBER T AR FEFTEM AR
the customers. % o
(i) Non-current assets (i)  FETEEE
2013 2012
=t —E——F
HK$’000 HKS$'000
THER FAT
Hong Kong a5 75,100 69,803
Mainland China AR B A 9,495 9472
84,595 79,275
The non-current asset information is based on EMEBEEER IR EEMEM
the locations of the assets and excludes financial 2% ERWARETRMBEIA -
instruments.
(c) Information about a major customer () —BXEEFZEH
Revenue from an external customer individually amounting to REINARF 2 WA E GG A& B8
10% or more of the Group's total revenue; W A109%3K A E
For the year ended 31 December 2013, revenue from a major BHE-_ZT—=F+-_A=+—H1It
customer of HK$46,586,000 was derived from the integration FE RE—BEEEPZKRARE
and solutions services segment. 46,586,000/ 7 * BRAESTETIRE &EK
RERRTTRRIE DD
For the year ended 31 December 2012, revenue from a major BHE-_ZT——F+-_A=+—H1It
customer of HK$50,874,000 was derived from the integration FE RE—BEEEPZHRAAE
and solutions services segment. 50,874,000/8 7T - ERASTEIR B KK

KSR TTEBRAE 8D ©
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REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS, NET

Revenue, which is also the Group’s turnover, represents the
aggregate of the invoiced value of goods sold, net of trade
discounts, returns and business tax, where applicable; fees earned
from the provision of system and network integration, IT solutions
development and implementation, enterprise software applications
and related operation outsourcing, business process outsourcing,
e-business and related services; fees earned from the provision of

5.

WA ~ B AU AR K3 R

WA (TRENASEE 2 2 X8 IEFRHER M
ZEZERBHRESIN REREER
(WER) « REEBRRBEEXIRTS - B
R R D RRERER - DXRETFERAR
HEERBIN - RN ETEHR
MERARRISIREN . B A ¢ RRHRE RISIRE
B REMERRZESBALRE AR

maintenance services; gross rental income earned from investment

properties; and interest income earned from treasury investments

during the year.

An analysis of revenue, other income and gains, net is as follows:

Revenue

Sale of computer networks and system platforms,
and the provision of system and network
integration, IT solutions development
and implementation, and related maintenance
services

Provision of enterprise software applications and
related operation outsourcing, business
process outsourcing and e-business, and
related maintenance services

Gross rental income from investment properties
and interest income from treasury investments

Other income and gains, net

Bank interest income

Dividend income from listed investments

Loss on disposal of financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss

Foreign exchange differences, net

Others

WA -

A

HEBKBERERTE  ’H]
RN REERIRTS - BB
IR RBER MBI KR
RARE IRTS

96,886 124,834
TR FE A AR & E SN
H - ERREN - ETES
BR7% DA K AR BER & AR 7S
86,271 80,011
B YE 2 S WA LREE K ER
TEZFBWA 3,953 1,863
187,110 206,708
H AR W55
RITHBHA 8,758 9,193
ETRE ZIRBHA 713 953
HERAFELER AR 2P
BEEE (40) (1,600)
PE 5 = REFEE 7,555 775
Eb 226 229
17,212 9,550
Bl ZREBER AR TE—=FFR 95
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2013
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6. PROFIT BEFORE TAX 6. BRBIANGER
The Group's profit before tax is arrived at after charging/(crediting): NEE Y BRATRFIEIR S (BEA) &
I8 :
2013 2012
—E—= —E— 4
HK$’000 HKS$'000
FET FHIT
Cost of inventories sold BEREFERA 54,831 78,159
Cost of services provided TR ARTE R AR 31,115 34,801
Depreciation* e 14 1,192 1,521
Loss on disposal of items of property, LEME - BE &
plant and equipment REIEE 2 BB 35 3
Minimum lease payments under operating B4R 4 FH &7t + 3 &
leases in respect of land and buildings BFEMN 2z &EESHKIE 6,790 6,275
Auditors’ remuneration 1z ENEM B & 1,050 1,050
Employee benefit expense (excluding BERIMAX(TEEFEES
directors’ remuneration — note 8)#: B & — BT E8 ) -
Wages, salaries and allowances TE& - #e ki 66,654 76,589
Equity-settled share-based payment expense A& #E 45 E AR T 611 395
Retirement benefit scheme contributions RGBT B
(defined contribution schemes) =Gl 4,540 5,400
71,805 82,384
Impairment of trade receivables FEWE 5 R FORE 21 140 198
Write-down of inventories to net realisable  TZ &S U ZE A #15 F A
value 102 291
Reversal of impairment of trade receivables B[l FEUE 5 BE ZORE 21 (143) (59)
Reversal of impairment of amounts due B EIEW A 4% P RIBRE
from contract customers 23 (418) -
Reversal of trade receivables written off [0 FE Y E SRR RS (4) -
Direct operating expenses (including repairs ~ A] BEEVGE € 2 I8 AW B
and maintenance) arising on rental-earning & & Y (BFEAEE &
investment properties RE) 103 99
Fair value losses/(gains), net: NFEEE, (WER)FE
Financial assets at fair value through BAFELESARZ
profit or loss B EE 171 (6,262)
Investment properties WEWZH 15 (2,558) (16,610)
Derivative financial instruments PTEMEITA
— settlement of derivative financial —BEITEV B TR
instruments - (130)
Write-off of inventories FE - 596
Write-off of items of property, Y% - BE MR B s
plant and equipment - 83
Rental income on investment properties less & &Y% H S AR HZLK
direct operating expenses of HK$ 103,000 & F137103,00075 7T
(2012: HK$99,000) (ZZF—4% : 99,00087T) (1,714) (1,469)
Interest income from treasury investments B E 2 M2 A (2,135) (295)
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6. PROFIT BEFORE TAX (CONTINUED) 6. BRBIADGEF (&)
* Depreciation for the year of HK$43,000 (2012: HK$158,000) is included in “Cost of * RNEEZERFTEBOOBEIT(ZT—ZF
sales and services” on the face of the consolidated statement of profit or loss. 15800078 70 ) ARG IBm R 2 HE KR
AR ©
# Inclusive of an amount of HK$31,115,000 (2012: HK$34,801,000) classified under # BEIEALERTIRERBK A ZHE
“Cost of services provided” above. 31,115,000% 7T (= — =4 :34,801,000/87T) °
7. FINANCE COSTS 7. BI%ER
Group
REH
2013 2012
—g—=
HK$'000 HKS'000
FET T
Interest on bank loans wholly repayable ARNAFATBEEEZ
within five years RITERZ AL 56 100
8. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION 8. EEMS
Directors’ remuneration for the year, disclosed pursuant to Section FRNEEMEREETS A NEHIE 16116 &
161 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and the Rules BERBAERIMARATFES EMAA( E
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong TRADEENT -

Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”), is as follows:

Group
REHE
2013 2012
—E-—=fF —FT——4F
HK$’000 HKS$'000
FHET T
Fees: e
Executive directors HITES - -
Independent non-executive directors B EMITES 450 450
450 450
Other emoluments: Hips -
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind He ERREARE 5,351 5,469
Bonuses* TEAT* 1,539 1,694
Equity-settled share-based payment expensef S 4 ARR A S A5 S 232 238
Retirement benefit scheme contributions RIREFET B 5K
(defined contribution scheme) (FrEMtEETE) 48 42
7,170 7,443
7,620 7,893
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98

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (CONTINUED)

*

(a)

ANNUAL REPORT 2013

Certain directors of the Company are entitled to bonus payments which are
determined by the board of directors on a discretionary basis.

During the year and in prior years, certain directors were awarded restricted
shares of the Company, subject to certain vesting conditions, in respect of their
services to the Group, under the restricted share award scheme of the Company,
further details of which are set out in note 30 to the financial statements. The fair
value of such restricted shares, which has been recognised in the statement of
profit or loss over the vesting period, was determined as at the date of grant and
the amount included in the financial statements for the current year is included

in the above directors’ remuneration disclosures.

Independent non-executive directors
The fees paid to independent non-executive directors during
the year were as follows:

Independent non-executive directors: B IERITES
Ha Shu Tong Bz
Lee Kwok On, Matthew TE%
Ting Leung Huel, Stephen TRE#

Save as disclosed above, there were no other emoluments
payable to the independent non-executive directors during
the current and prior years.

Computer And Technologies Holdings Limited

EEME(E)

(a)

ETARREZERENBEESNEET
TSR

RAFERBEFE  BEARR 2 HRS
Wefn RED TR RETHBREZRRT
ETEECHRREALAREMMREHRBER
AABERGIID - BRAE— T FHBERE
BMEMFE0 - ZEFERGIIRMD O AFETS
R B HER  YERBBHAERRR
R Mt ALRFEH BRI CEBINEER
HEREXEFHEHER -

BYkHITES
ER - ZNFBIERTES 20
o -

Group

AEE
2013 2012
—E-= —T——F
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET FAT
150 150
150 150
150 150
450 450

BREXEEEIN RAFERBESF
B EEMEN TBIIFRTESZ
[
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8. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (CONTINUED) 8. EEM= (&)
(b) Executive directors (b) HITEE
The fees and other emoluments paid to executive directors FA XN TFRTES 2GS REMW
during the year were as follows: BT
Salaries, Equity-settled  Retirement
allowances share-based benefit
and benefits payment scheme Total
in kind Bonuses expense contributions remuneration
e RELE
ZHR DY) BB
BYFIR B4 XX B [ ot ]
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
FTHET FEx FE T FEx FERT
2013 —E-=F
Executive directors: MITES
Ng Cheung Shing (‘Mr.Ng")  REE([R%EE]) 2,392 767 30 15 3,204
Leung King San, Sunny il 300 - - 15 315
Yan King Shun* == 2,166 767 131 13 3,077
Cheung Wai Lam” RER 67 5 - - 72#
Lee Allen™ =3l 426 - 71 5 502#
5,351 1,539 232 48 7,170
2012 —ZT—-F
Executive directors: WITEE
Ng Cheung Shing (‘'Mr.Ng")  RERB([R%E4]) 2517 847 57 14 3435
Leung King San, Sunny 22 300 = = 14 314
Yan King Shun =5 2652 847 181 14 3694
5469 1,694 238 42 7443
The directors’ emoluments paid to Mr. Ng included a housing IRNTREECZEEWNESBEREAR
allowance of HK$2,112,000 (2012: HK$2,052,000) which was 2,112,000 L (=ZZF— =4 : 2,052,000
remunerated by way of rental reimbursement. The rentals BIT)ZEEERM  UHSEEZ AN
of the related property were paid directly by Mr. Ng to the S EEMECHCHREEERE
landlord, which is a company jointly controlled by Mr. Ng and TNFTEE  MZEFAEHRLEE
one of his family members. REER—BREKEHRES 2 A
=] o
There was no arrangement under which a director waived RAFERBEFE - EFLEHE
or agreed to waive any remuneration during the current and R BEREE R E 2 24k ©
prior years.
* Resigned as a director of the Company on 11 October 2013 @ §§%_5¢+ R+—B@EARRAA
A Appointed as a director of the Company on 17 December 2013 A RZTE—=F+_RA+tHEZTA
AAREE
AA Appointed as a director of the Company on 5 September 2013 A RZEBE-—=FNARAEZEAELAR
AlEE
# Only include the remuneration of Cheung Wai Lam and Lee Allen for the # EOERERATERNEEREE
period subsequent to their appointment as directors of the Company BARNRESRR 2 HBAF
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9. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES

The five highest paid employees during the year included three
(2012: two) directors, of which one of them was appointed as a
director of the Company during the year (the “New Director”). details

of whose remuneration for the period they are the directors of the
Company are set out in note 8 to the financial statements. Details
of the remuneration of the New Director for the whole year and the
remaining two (2012: three) non-director, highest paid employees
for the year are as follows:

9. HEBRSHHES

FA hEBEFHEREE=2(=F
——F MB)EF HP-HRFRE
RERARAER(HES])  ENHE
ARBEEHHZIHMEFBHARM B RS
FiFEs - BEFE cHEEREHGME(ZF
——F ZR)BRSTMIFEFERE CME
BB -

Group

REE
2013 2012

—g-—= =
HK$'000 HKS'000
FExT FBTT
Salaries and allowances e KEA 3,302 3,271
Equity-settled share-based payment expense BAEEE ARMD IR 206 44
Bonuses TE4T 216 433
Retirement benefit scheme contributions RIREHFT B

(defined contribution schemes) (EEEHEETE)) 45 41
3,769 3,789

The number of non-director, highest paid employees whose
remuneration fell within the following band is as follows:

HNTATER 2 e EEREE Z
AT ¢

Number of employees

BEAH

2013

—g-=

HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000

During the year and in prior years, restricted shares of the Company,
subject to certain vesting conditions, were awarded to one non-
director highest paid employee in respect of his services to the
Group, under the restricted share award scheme of the Company,
further details of which are set out in note 30 to the financial
statements. The fair value of such restricted shares, which has been
recognised in the statement of profit or loss over the vesting period,
was determined as at the date of grant and the amount included in
the financial statements for the current year is included in the above
non-director, highest paid employees’ remuneration disclosures.
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1,000,001/ 7T & 1,500,000/ 7T 3 3
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10. INCOME TAX

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5% (2012:
16.5%) on the estimated assessable profits arising in Hong Kong
during the year. Taxes on profits assessable elsewhere have been
calculated at the rates of tax prevailing in the countries/jurisdictions
in which the Group operates.

10. FTE%H

EBNEHNIBRBEAFERNREBEEZ
HETERB R FIRR R 165%( =T ——F ¢
16.5%) VEH B o EL it [ FERRFRE FI 2 Bt
BENRBEASBELEEBRERRREE
B2 IRITRERTE -

2013 2012
—g—= —ET——F
HK$’000 HKS$'000
FHET T
Group: RER :
Current — Hong Kong BNER— &
Charge for the year FAFEZ 6,136 3,830
Under/(over)provision in prior years TEEL/(Z)REE 638 (674)
Current — Elsewhere BNER— E ftb i [
Charge for the year FARESZ 104 2,771
Under/(over)provision in prior years FTFEEL/(Z)IREE 2 (1,955)
Deferred (note 27) IRAE (P E27) 90 128
Total tax charge for the year FATRIES HERE 6,970 4,100

A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to profit before tax at
the statutory profits tax rate for Hong Kong in which the Company
and the majority of its subsidiaries are operating/domiciled to the

BRARBARARRERBOMBRAREL,
A AR RENGH R A B PSR A
B BIAX L - EIRERR RS E 2 IR

tax charge at the effective tax rate is as follows:

Group

Profit before tax

Tax at the Hong Kong statutory tax rate of 16.5%
(2012:16.5%)

Higher tax rates for overseas subsidiaries
Adjustments in respect of current tax

of previous periods
Income not subject to tax
Expenses not deductible for tax
Tax losses utilised from previous periods
Others

Tax charge at the Group's effective tax rate

SR ¢
2013 2012
—E-=F =%
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET T
B A A 55,116 51,102
BEBEEHRE165%
—ZT——4F :165%)

STEZBIA 9,094 8,432
BINGTB R BB = R 2 887
BB FERNEIFE IE

{EH A% 640 (2,629)
R ST ON (1,421) (3/403)
Rk 51 606
AR A HARE 2 BB E (568) (1,486)
Ehb (828) 1,693
AEERERHETE 2

FRIES N 6,970 4,100
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10.

11.

102

INCOME TAX (CONTINUED)

Under the income tax laws of the People’s Republic of China (the
"PRC"), enterprises are subject to corporate income tax ("CIT")
generally at a rate of 25% (2012: 25%).

Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, on 5 March 2014.
the Hong Kong Inland Revenue Department (the “IRD") has issued a
protective assessment to a subsidiary of the Company demanding
tax of approximately HK$2,260,000 for the year of assessment
2007/08. An enquiry letter was issued to that subsidiary on the same
day regarding, inter alia, the nature and the deductibility of certain
expenditure/expenses. The subsidiary has lodged an objection to
the IRD against the protective assessment and is in the process of
gathering the requested information and documents in support of
the deduction claim.

In the opinion of the directors of the Company, it is not practicable
at this early stage to estimate reliably the outcome of the deduction
claim and therefore, the financial effect (including the amount
or timing thereof, if any) of the foregoing enquiry. However, the
directors believe that except for certain insignificant tax adjustments,
the effect of which has been reflected in the current year's profit or
loss of the Group, and subject to availability of the required evidence,
the subsidiary has valid grounds to support the deductibility of those
expenditure/expenses. Accordingly, no further provision for Hong
Kong profits tax is considered necessary at this stage.

PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF THE
PARENT

The consolidated profit attributable to owners of the parent for the
year ended 31 December 2013 includes a loss of HK$6,000 (2012:
profit of HK$27,000) which has been dealt with in the financial
statements of the Company (note 31(b)).
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12. DIVIDENDS 12. RE

2013
—E—=F

HK$’000
TET

Interim — HK$0.06 (2012: HK$0.06)

HREf — SRR AR 0,067 7T

per ordinary share (ZF——%F : 006/87T) 14,652 14,817
Less: Dividend for shares held under the B IR T AR IR
Company's restricted share award REET 8IS 2R Hh
scheme PSR S (227) (334)
14,425 14,483
Proposed final - HK$0.07 (2012: HK$0.06) R R B — AR E BAR0.0778 T
per ordinary share (ZZ——% : 006/B7T) 17,094 14,717
Less: Dividend for shares held under the W RN R AR HIAR D
Company's restricted share award REETEISAE 2 RD
scheme FriSARE (262) (273)
16,832 14,444
Proposed special — HK$0.02 (2012: HK$0.03) IR Bl — BAR E 8A%0.0278 7T
per ordinary share (ZZ——4% :00387T) 4,884 7,359
Less: Dividend for shares held under the B IR AR B R EIAR
Company's restricted share award REETEIEE 2 RD
scheme FriS RS (75) (137)
4,809 7,222
36,066 36,149

The proposed final and special dividends for the year are subject
to the approval of the Company’s shareholders at the forthcoming

annual general meeting.

R R

EARQA] —T=FFR

AREEE 7 TR AR EA N 5 Bl i B AR AN R RIAX
RNEREREBEASHIER - KA EE -
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13.

104

EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE
TO ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE
PARENT

The calculation of basic earnings per share amount is based on
the profit for the year attributable to ordinary equity holders of the
parent, and the weighted average number of ordinary shares of
240,365,990 (2012: 241,079,575) in issue during the year, as adjusted
to exclude the shares held under the restricted share award scheme
of the Company.

The calculation of diluted earnings per share amount is based on
the profit for the year attributable to ordinary equity holders of the
parent. The weighted average number of ordinary shares used in the
calculation is the number of ordinary shares in issue during the year,
as used in the basic earnings per share calculation, and the weighted
average number of ordinary shares assumed to have been issued at
no consideration on the deemed exercise or conversion of all dilutive
potential ordinary shares granted under the share option scheme of
the Company and the deemed vesting of all dilutive restricted shares
of the Company awarded under the restricted share award scheme
of the Company into ordinary shares.

The calculations of basic and diluted earnings per share are based
on:

Earnings
The calculations of basic and diluted earnings per share are based on

profit attributable to ordinary equity holders of the parent.

Shares

13. BARAEERKRRELAERER

BREXRZNSEIIRES QG EBARARE
FEAEF s A & FF A B B 1T X3 AR N
H80240,3659900% ( = ZT— =4 : 241,079,575
B EHE - WL HIBR AR R A BR HI A% 7 528
FTEIE TR M EL FEEE -

BRESRNSENREG AR L BBRIR
RIEFRENAE - 5TEMBZ TR IE
FHYSHESRERBNMAZERNC#
TEBRBEE  ARERNABEREARE
BRET IR L BT EARREAE
TSR - ARRBEA QR EREID
RETEIR N 2R AEEFERARBIRND
REERBE - ARRERBESTAERTL
BRI o

AESREAREERNPTABIRNT

B85
BIREAR NS BN TZ A B B BRI
FEIERAMFTE

i)

Number of shares

RBE

2013

—g-=

Weighted average number of ordinary shares FSTEHEBREARRT
in issue during the year used in the basic FTRFEREZETE B
earnings per share calculation N8 240,365,990 241,079,575
Effect of dilution — weighted average numberof ~ #FERE — L @A INGE
ordinary shares: T8 -
Restricted shares awarded under the Company’s BB R B A R 67
restricted share award scheme SRR EIR T 2 AR
At 1,690,452 2,007,876
242,056,442 243,087,451
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14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Group

31December 2013

At 31 December 2012 and
at 1 January 2013:
Cost
Accumulated depreciation

Net carrying amount

At 1 January 2013, net of
accumulated depreciation

Additions

Disposals

Acquisition of a subsidiary (note 32)

Depreciation provided during the year

Exchange realignment

At 31 December 2013, net of
accumulated depreciation

At 31 December 2013:
Cost
Accumulated depreciation

Net carrying amount

Z2-=%+-f=1-H

RZE-=F-f-R"
MR ZarinE
AE
HE
W -HNB AR (32
ERiTERE
[ER AR
RZE-=F+ZA=1+-R"
NBZarinE

RIZB-ZFtZA=1+-R:
A

ZithE

TR HE

Leasehold
land and
buildings
HELH
RET
HK$'000

Leasehold
improvements
HE
T
HK$'000
TiEn

14. Y% - BMERZRE

Furniture,
fixtures

and other
equipment
B RER
Rftte
HK$'000
TR

Computer
equipment
and software
R
Ras
HK$'000
TiEn

Motor
vehicles

RE
HK$'000
TR

Total

A
HK$'000
A7

4213 2,180 2,110 1,628 986 3,117
(598) (2,150) (20,349) (1,406) (734) (25,237
3,615 30 1,761 m 252 5,880
3,615 30 1,761 m 252 5,880
- 178 29 64 - 532
. - (24) (15) - (39)
- - 3 - - 3
(93) (47) (951) (49) (52 (1,192)
- 2 % 6 7 40
352 163 1,124 28 207 5,244
4213 231 17,209 559 999 23211
(691) (68) (16,085) (331) (792) (17,967)
352 163 1,124 28 207 5,244
B RSB AR A A —E—=FFR
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14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 14. ¥12% - BERRME(E)
(CONTINUED)
Group NEE
Fumiture,
Leasehold Computer fixtures
landand Leasehold equipment and other Motor
buildings  improvements and software equipment vehicles Total
BELH HE EHRE  AARXER
REF nEEE R Efhikfa & ait
HKS'000 HK$000 HKS'000 HK$000 HKS'000 HKS'000
Tin TATL TATL TR TEn TEn
31 December 2012 ZE-ZE+ZA=t-A
At 1 January 2012 RZE-—5-A-R:
Cost AR 4213 2174 2473 1581 93 31424
Accumulated depreciation ZiifE (505) (2079 (21,289) (1341) (551) (25,764)
Net carrying amount REHE 3,708 9% 1,185 240 43 5,660
At T January 2012, net of RZE-—F-A-RH"
accumulated depreciation M Z3H17E 3,708 % 1,185 240 43 5,660
Additions AE - - 1660 91 - 1751
Disposals e - - - (©) - (6)
Wiite-off s - - (83 - - ®)
Depreciation provided during the year FRTERE 93) (66) (1,075) (104) (183) (1521)
Exchange realignment g - 1 74 I 3 79
At31 December 2012, net of RZE-—%+t-fA=t-H"
accumulated depreciation MR 2:HE 3615 30 1,761 0 25 5,880
At31 December 2012; RZE-——F+-fA=t+-H:
Cost A 4213 2,180 2110 1628 986 317
Accumulated depreciation ZihE (599) (2150) (20349) (1406) (734) (25237)
Net carrying amount REHE 3615 30 1761 m 52 5880
The Group’s leasehold lands are situated in Mainland China and are REE 2 AE T R B R W ARR &
held under long term leases. BRI EFRA
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15.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Group

Carrying amount at 1 January R—A—HBZERAE
Net gain from a fair value adjustment ’R?T ERE 2 W FEE
Carrying amount at 31 December R+=Z—A=+—HZKAE

The Group's investment properties are situated in Hong Kong and
Mainland China and are held under the following lease terms:

Hong Kong: B
Long term leases REEE
Mainland China: FR B A
Medium term lease FHIEE
Long term lease REMAE

The Group’s investment properties consist of two commercial
properties in Mainland China, and one industrial property in
Hong Kong. The directors of the Company have determined that
the investment properties consist of two classes of asset, i.e,,
commercial and industrial, based on the nature, characteristics and
risks of each property. The Group's investment properties were
revalued on 31 December 2013 based on valuations performed
by Landscope Surveyors Limited, independent professionally
qualified valuers, at HK$50,140,000. Each year, the Group's financial
controller decides, after proper approval, to appoint which external
valuer to be responsible for the external valuations of the Group's
properties. Selection criteria include market knowledge, reputation,
independence and whether professional standards are maintained.
The Group’s financial controller has discussions with the valuer
on the valuation assumptions and valuation results twice a year
when the valuation is performed for interim and annual financial
reportings.

R R R E AR A]

AEH
2013 2012
—E—=f T4
HK$’000 HK$'000
TExT FAET
47,582 30,972
6 2,558 16,610
50,140 47,582

AEEZREMEMNEBRDERILR
BATHEFHRE

2013 2012
—E—= 2

HK$’000 HK$'000
TEx FAET
45,000 42,800
2,800 2,650
2,340 2,132
5,140 4,782
50,140 47,582

REBZREYEBIEMEBMA AR B A2
PEMER—BURE B2 TEYE - AR
AESCRESEVEZHE FEER

S IEMERTEMEER(BIEmERT
EEE -WN_T—=F+-_A=1+—8"
AEBZIREVERB L EESERGERM
BRI ERN1THETT 2 [ E E1F A50,140,000
BT o NEEIFEEIRTE - NEYSEE M
R - SELREINBEERMAERNEEY
EZHNEMEE - BUBRIZERIEMIS A - B
B BUMRESHERFEIKE - REE
TR R ER S R i R F L ﬂ%#ﬁziqﬂ
HAITHEEMRANGEERERMEELR
FEITIRET TR °

—T-=gg® 107
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15. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONTINUED) 15. REWXE(E)

The investment properties are leased to third parties under operating
leases, further summary details of which are included in note 33(a) to
the financial statements.

At 31 December 2013, one of the Group’s investment properties
situated in Hong Kong with a carrying value of approximately
HK$45,000,000 (2012: HK$42,800,000) was pledged to secure general
banking facilities granted to the Group.

Further particulars of the Group's investment properties are included
on page 150.

Fair value hierarchy
The following table illustrates the fair value measurement hierarchy
of the Group's investment properties:

REVMFERBEREHELETFE=D7 - 7
B EE N M B MAR M FE33() ©

R-BE—=F+-"A=+—8 K&EEfA
REBZEF -"EHEREVEREEBENAR
45,000,000 7T ( —Z — — £F : 42,800,000
T EERNMGR TAEE  —MRBRITHE
AR o

AEEREMEZE—THBHENFI50H -
D EERER

TRETASERENE 2 A FEAESFR
s

Fair value measurement as at 31 December 2013 using

R-B-=F+-B=+-B2ATEIERANTEE

Quoted
prices in Significant Significant
active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
BX
EE BERAUEE BT
TIZHRE AR ]ARE
(%81/8) (%82F8) (%3f8) et
HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000
T T T FAT
Recurring fair value LEEANTERE -
measurement for:
Commercial properties [EE7ES - = 5,140 5,140
Industrial property TEYZE - - 45,000 45,000
= = 50,140 50,140

During the year, there were no transfers of fair value measurements
between Level 1 and Level 2 and no transfers into or out of Level 3.
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15. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONTINUED)
Fair value hierarchy (continued)

Reconciliation of fair value measurements categorised within Level 3
of the fair value hierarchy:

15. REWZE(H)

NFHESHEB(RA)
BERATHESERBE QNI FEE

Industrial
property
TP
HK$’000

FERT

Commercial
properties

[GEZES
HK$’000
FExT

Carrying amount at 1 January 2013 RIE—=F—-—H—-HZKHE 4,782 42,800
Net gain from a fair value adjustment E{‘Tﬁﬁﬁq:‘ R A ERE
recognised in profit or loss s 358 2,200
Carrying amount at 31 December 2013 R-ZB—=%+"A=+—H2Z
AREE 5140 45,000

Below is a summary of the valuation technique used and the key
inputs to the valuation of investment properties:

TREHREMEHERBZNEZERE
ABBHEME

Significant
unobservable inputs

Fair value Valuation
hierarchy technique
AR E
ERRE fh{ER %
Commercial properties Level 3 Market
comparable
method
[EEZUES E=A MIHLLEVE
Industrial property Level 3 Market
comparable
method
ITEYE ot BBV

EARTAHERAYE
Prevailing price RMB1,105 to
per square foot RMB1,421
FBFHRZBITER AR 105TE
AR 42178
Prevailing price HK$8,069 to
per square foot HKS$9,921
BFARRZBITER 8,069/ T E
9,921 7T
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15.

16.

110

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONTINUED)

Fair value hierarchy (continued)

Under the market comparable method (or market comparable
approach), a property’s fair value is estimated based on comparable
transactions. The market comparable approach is based upon the
principle of substitution under which a potential buyer will not
pay more for the property than it will cost to buy a comparable
substitute property. The unit of comparison applied by the Group is
the price per square foot (“sg. ft.").

GOODWILL

Group

15.

16.

BREW=(H)

NP ESRRE(E)
RETBLBA(FITBALTE) - WEA
FETIART LB 5 REEE S - TIBLLE
SEARMRARER - Bt - BEERET
SRMESRBERME 2 AT LLBE R
¥RS2EW - ARBRAZ ALREN S
BEHRTERRDZERE -

HK$'000
TAT

31 December 2012

Cost and carrying amount at 1 January 2012 and
31 December 2012

31 December 2013

Cost and carrying amount at 1 January 2013
Acquisition of a subsidiary (note 32)

Cost and carrying amount at 31 December 2013

As further detailed in note 2.4 to the financial statements, the
Group applied the transitional provisions of HKFRS 3 that permitted
goodwill in respect of business combinations which occurred prior
to 2001 to remain eliminated against consolidated reserves.

The amount of goodwill remaining in consolidated reserves, arising
from the acquisition of subsidiaries prior to the adoption of SSAP
30in 2001, was HKS$7,227,000 as at 31 December 2012 and 2013.
Such goodwill is stated at cost less cumulative impairment of
HK$3,890,000.

Impairment testing of goodwill

Goodwill acquired through business combinations has been
allocated to the following cash-generating units for impairment
testing:

Application services cash-generating unit; and

Integration and solutions services cash-generating unit.
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—E-—Ft+ - A=t—HBRAKREEE 25,813
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16. GOODWILL (CONTINUED)

Impairment testing of goodwill (continued)
The carrying amounts of goodwill allocated to each of the cash-
generating units are follows:

Application Services

FE R BR %

2013
—2-=

HK$'000
TER

16. EE (&)

AR RE R ()
ARESRSEEEM 2 HBEREMT -

Integration and
Solutions Services Total

SRR BRT R act
2013 2012 2013

=== =z ===

HK$'000 HKS'000  HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TAT TET TR

Carrying amount of goodwill  FERBEE{E 27,188

2,023 2,023 29,211 25813

Application services cash-generating unit

The recoverable amount of the application services cash-generating
unit of approximately HK$65 million as at 31 December 2013 has
been determined based on a value in use calculation using cash flow
projections approved by senior management covering a five-year
period and beyond that extrapolated with a zero percentage growth
rate. The discount rate applied to the cash flow projections is 10%
(2012: 10%) and the cash flow projections are determined based on
past performance and management’s expectations for the market
development.

Integration and solutions services cash-generating unit

The recoverable amount of the integration and solutions services
cash-generating unit of approximately HK$23 million as at 31
December 2013 has also been determined based on a value in
use calculation using cash flow projections approved by senior
management covering a five-year period and beyond that
extrapolated with a zero percentage growth rate. The discount rate
applied to the cash flow projections is 10% (2012: 10%) and the cash
flow projections are determined based on past performance and
management’s expectations for market development.

Assumptions were used in the value in use calculation of the
application services and integration and solutions services cash-
generating units for 31 December 2013 and 31 December 2012. The
following describes each key assumption on which management
has based its cash flow projections to undertake impairment testing
of goodwill:

Budgeted revenue - The basis used to determine the value
assigned to the budgeted revenue is the revenue achieved
in the year immediately before the budget year, adjusting for
management's expected change in market demand and customer
base.

Discount rates — The discount rates used are before tax and reflect
specific risks relating to the relevant cash-generating units.

FEARKREELEEN
RZTE—=FE+-"A=+—8  EARK
IR & EE B 2 A B £ B8 4965,000,000/8
JCc BIREEREAEMET - ZEREER
ﬂ%%ﬂ%ﬁﬁ%%&%ﬁiﬁﬁﬁiﬁﬂ
FABTEOIBREKAEmMTE - 1]
ESRETERIFTAITIRERA10%( == _:¢
10%) @ MIRER=ETE IR ERERE &
BIEESMSER I BEMEE -

ERRERARBRERSELEN

RZE—=F+-_A=+—H ' EXLE
R EREIRGELSE uZT%@iﬁﬁ
23,000,000/ LI EARBFEREEET @ %
FAEENNASHEEBIENTFRS
MERARFERZASLIERREE M
B R RSBRAMEAITIEERE10%(=
T ——4F 10%) ' MRS RETER TR
BERBEREEEYMSER2BHEmME

==

TE °

STEEE—T—=F+-_A=+—HEK=Z

——F+-A=1+—BEARSARER X
R LR 2 B S B A B A R (E B E R
BEFEAETERSR EEREREBEERSRER
BlETEERENS KBNS EEERE
R

BHW A —FEERA TR AR S AT
FENCENZMANE  HE RN
FRREFEW SBIENDE -

HRR-EERANTIRE SRBATRE -
ZTRERREAR S ELE BN 2 TR

& o
2

R R R E AR A] —T=FFR 111



Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
B RS sR S MY EE (48)

31 December 2013 —Z—=F+_HA=+—H

17. OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS 17.

Group

HttEEE

EH

Deferred
development
costs

IE FE B 3 PR
HK$'000
THAT

31 December 2013 and 31 December 2012 R-ZBE—=F+-A=+—-HK
=F-=%+=A=+-H

Cost at 1 January 2012, 31 December 2012, 1 January 2013 —ZE——F—F—H - _F——4F
and 31 December 2013, net of accumulated amortisation +—A=+—H8 Z—EBE—=%F—F—-HK
and impairment ZE—=Ft+ZA=1T—BZKAR
(F0Bxr 2ETHEESE SR B TS ) =
At 31 December 2013 and 31 December 2012: R-ZZE—=F+-"A=+—HK
—E——F+ZA=+—H:
Cost BRAR 13,026
Accumulated amortisation and impairment FEHEERRE (13,026)
Net carrying amount REFE =
18. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 18. RMBARIZIRE

Unlisted investments, at cost FEEMIRE - RAA
Due from subsidiaries PGB BB A B 5RIE
Impairment* RIE*

* An impairment was recognised for certain unlisted investments/amounts

due from subsidiaries in prior years. There was no change in the impairment
amounts during the current and prior years.

The amounts due from subsidiaries included in the Company’s
interests in subsidiaries above are unsecured, interest-free and have
no fixed terms of repayment. In the opinion of the directors, these
balances are considered as quasi-equity loans to the subsidiaries.
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Company
ENN
2013
—E—=

HK$’000

FERT
45,633 45,633
156,228 193,807
201,861 239,440
(91,643) (91,643)
110,218 147,797

x  BEEE  DRETIELTRE FKH
B2 F SORBRAE - LB AR B8 K8
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18. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are as follows:

Apex Consulting Services Limited

Computer And Technologies
(BVI) Limited

Computer And Technologies
International Limited

B R ERAR

Computer And Technologies
Integration Limited

B RN ERAR

Computer & Technologies
International Trading (Shanghai)

Company Limited#
REZaERTE,/ BARES
(LB)BRRRH

Computer & Technologies
(Shanghai) Co,, Ltd.#
LR E R RRARA A

Computer & Technologies
Investment Limited

C&T (Guangzhou) Investment
Limited

M (BN REARAR

Place of
incorporation/
registration
and business

KL,
SMREEBE

Hong Kong
&R

British Virgin Islands/
Hong Kong

REBRAHE/BE

Hong Kong
BE

Hong Kong
BB

PRC/Mainland China
HE /R E A

PRC/Mainland China
HE/ R E A

British Virgin Islands/
Hong Kong

RERAEE/BE

Hong Kong
&R

Nominal value

of issued

share capital/
registered capital
BRIRA/
HMERZEE

Ordinary
HK$2,500,000
LAk
2,500,000/ 7T

Ordinary
US$1,000
EFIR1000%TT

Ordinary HKS2
Non-voting deferred**
HK$5,000,000
LBRBT
BRERET
5,000,000/ 7T

Ordinary HKS2
LRBET

1S$200,000

200,00037T

US$3,500,000

3,500,00037T

Ordinary US$1
TaRiET

Ordinary HKS2
LBRBT

18. RKTB AR Z2RE (&)

TEMBRARZFBNT

Percentage of equity
attributable to
the Company
ERFEERE
BEEIL
2013
—EB-=f

(EETES

100

100

100

100

100

100

100

100

ES

100

100

100

100

100

100

100

EBRAR

Principal activities

IREK

Provision of human resources
management and product
development services

REANEREERER
FE R

Investment holding

BEEK

Provision of IT solutions
development and
implementation services,
investment holding and
treasury investments

REBARBBANRER

Btk - REZRR
EBRE

Provision of system and
network integration services

RERSR L BEEA RS

Sale of computer networks and
system platforms
HEBMBRRARTA

Provision of system and network
integration services

RERS L BEEA R

Investment holding and treasury
investments

RARBLEHRE

Property holding
RANE

- BERLE
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18. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

C&T (Hong Kong) Investment
Limited

B (BB REBRAT]

C&T (Nanjing) Investment Limited
M (AR REFR AT

C&T (Shanghai) Investment Limited
B (L8 REBB AR

Computer And Technologies
Solutions Limited

B ARAR

Computer & Technologies Solutions
(Shenzhen) Co,, Ltd##
BiEE ORI BR DA

Global e-Business Services (BVI)
Limited

Global e-Business Services Limited

BRETHERBERAR

Global e-Trading Services Limited

BEPRBEERRT

IPL Research Limited

114  ANNUAL REPORT 2013

Place of
incorporation/
registration
and business

MR,
SR EE L

British Virgin Islands/
Hong Kong

EBRAHE/TE

Hong Kong
BA
Hong Kong
BA

Hong Kong
BB

PRC/Mainland China
HE/ R

British Virgin Islands/
Hong Kong

RBRAHE/BE

Hong Kong
&R

Hong Kong
BE

Hong Kong
&R

Nominal value

of issued

share capital/
registered capital
BRITRE/
TfER 2 HE

Ordinary US$1
LEkIET

Ordinary HKS2
LRRET

Ordinary HKS2
EERAET

Ordinary HK$10,000
TiBR10000E 7T

US$1,128,000
1,128,000 7T

Class A US$1,600
Class B US$400
A$B1,600%TT
BiB400ETT

Ordinary HK$1,010,000
Ei@ik1,01000087T

Ordinary
HK$2,501,000
TiER
2,501,0007T

Ordinary HK$100
Non-voting deferred**
HK$300,000
EER1008TT
BREEET
30000078 7T

Computer And Technologies Holdings Limited

Percentage of equity

attributable to
the Company
AN FEAL R
BEEAL

100

100

100

100

100

100

100

100

2012

100

100

100

100

100

100

100

100

18. RIBLRT 2RE(F)

Principal activities

IREK

Property holding
RLRUES

Property holding
REME

Property holding
BANE

Provision of IT solutions
development and
implementation services

REBARBRANRER
RE MRS

Provision of IT solutions
development and
implementation services

REBARBRANRER
RE MRS

Investment holding

RERK

Provision of enterprise software
applications services

Rt XA B AR

Provision of e-business
related services, including
government electronic
trading services

REETEHRBRY -
BRUGETE 5 R%

Provision of enterprise software
applications and related
operation outsourcing
services

R ER AR
2EIMIRT
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18. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

Place of Nominal value
incorporation/ of issued
registration share capital/
and business registered capital
BRI A BRITRE
TR EE A TEERZHE
Vitova Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$10,000
SERBARRT BA LiBiR10,0007% T
HEBRREARR R PRC/Mainland China Ordinary
VT US5450,000
4500003 7T
# The subsidiary is registered as a Sino-foreign equity joint venture under PRC law.
i The subsidiaries are registered as wholly-foreign-owned enterprises under PRC

law.

*%

The non-voting deferred shares, which are not held by the Group, carry no rights

to dividends or to receive notice of or to attend or vote at any general meeting.
In the winding-up of the subsidiaries, the holders of the deferred shares carry
the rights to receive a return of capital after the holders of the ordinary shares
have received a sum of HK$1,000,000,000 per ordinary share.

Except for Computer And Technologies (BVI) Limited, all of the above
subsidiaries are indirectly held by the Company.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in

the opinion of the directors, principally affected the results for the

year or formed a substantial portion of the net assets of the Group
or of particular importance to the Group. To give details of other
subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors, result in particulars

of excessive length.

18. RMTB AR Z2RE (&)

B

Percentage of equity
attributable to
the Company

4
Y|

Principal activities

KA REERE

2013
—g-=

it

*%

ERADL TEXRH

2012

—E——F

100 - Provision of enterprise software
applications and related
operation

RECEEMERAR
HRRE

100 100 Provision of enterprise software
applications and related
operation outsourcing
services

RELEEER AR
LEIHIRE

ZMBARDRBEPEEEZMARINEGE
-

ZEME AR REHBEDEREMAINEE
Bz o

ZEWHAAREBFA 2 BREREELERHD
BMEZEERRE ZET - NEEZHERER
AR RAGBREXEEEABRASINE £
BEZERN - MHBAREE  BERNDE
BABER L BRFSE ARSI @R ER
4 #£1,000,000,000/8 7014 + IAEEIRIEEA o

BrComputer And Technologies (BVI) Limited
A -

L pr A B ARG A R B R

Ko

EREIHEERASHAREFARERE

REBZE

BRAKEEEFEERND

IHAEEBRBEEEZARBMNBR

A EER R EMHBARCERES

FIRBERILK -

3
i

ESEBEERAQA]

—B =R
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19. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS 19. AMtHERE
Group
AEH
2013
—E=—=
HK$’000
FEx
Debt investments, at fair value BATERE 2 EBRE 39,973 =
Club membership debenture, at fair value BATEFE 2 EMeEES 2,100 2,100
42,073 2,100
Portion classified as current assets DERREEES D (29,862) =
Portion classified as non-current assets DERIEREEESS 12,211 2,100
During the year, the net loss in respect of the Group’s available- FA - AEAEEREMEERATERZ
for-sale investments recognised in other comprehensive income AEEERE 2 FEER303,0008T(ZF
amounted to HK$303,000 (2012: gross gain of HK$100,000). —Z=4F : EF100,0007T) °
20. INVENTORIES 20. 78
Group
AEEH
2013 2012
—E—= —E— 4
HK$’000 HKS$'000
FER FET
Work in progress TS 10,212 11,300
21. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES 21. BREZRAREWE
Group
rEH
2013 2012
—E—=F —FT——4F
HK$’000 HKS$'000
FExT T
Trade and bills receivables B E SRR RN EE 24,822 28,854
Impairment TRE (1,611) (1,591)
23,211 27,263
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21. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED)

For system integration projects and the provision of maintenance
services and software development services, the Group's trading
terms with its customers vary from contract to contract or
depending on the specific arrangements with individual customers,
and may include cash on delivery, advance payment and on credit.
For those customers who trade on credit, the overall credit period
is generally within 120 days, except for certain projects with longer
implementation schedules where the period may extend beyond
120 days, or may be extended for major or specific customers. The
Group seeks to maintain strict control over its outstanding trade
receivables and overdue balances are reviewed regularly by senior
management. The Group does not hold any collateral or other credit
enhancements over these balances. Trade and bills receivables are
non-interest-bearing.

An aged analysis of the trade and bills receivables as at the end
of the reporting period, based on the invoice date and net of
provisions, is as follows:

Within 1 month —(EAA

11to 3 months —Z=={@A
410 6 months mZE7NEA
More than 6 months NEA

The movements in provision for impairment of trade receivables are
as follows:

21.

BWE SRR R EREE (&)

ShRBER IR B LA RIR RS RIS MR
ERBME - AREZXZEFEEER S
#Y AR - BRI R P 2 B B e HEM R - AJRE
BRERERMNR - AEMNKEERR - BazFA
BREVAETRIZEPME - BRERH
—RAZI120K - WA TIEB i THER
& RIEEHATERERBI20K - A5
ITEFIRERFPEREEY - ARE—HE
RIEHIEAREE 2 RUE 5 RS BN ER
% SREEEINVERMAMNZIALE o
ARER B B AR A (R R E
HEMEERERE - BEE SRR REK
REA NS -

RERHAFLEER - BRE SERLERE
BIREE BRI EMBREE 2 Rk DT 10
™

Group
AEE
2013 2012
—B-=F —E—_F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FEx FAT
20,622 17,432
1,447 6,932
883 2,031
259 868
23,211 27,263

FEE Z IR REREBESINT -

mR—A—H
ERERREEE (Mie)

At 1 January
Impairment losses recognised (note 6)

Impairment losses reversed (note 6) B VR EEE (Miis)
Amount written off as uncollectible HsH A eI Bl 2 58
Exchange realignment M 34, 38 B

At 31 December Wn+=ZA=+—H”H

Included in the above provision for impairment of trade receivables
is a provision for individually impaired trade receivables of
HKS$1,611,000 (2012: HKS$1,591,000) with a carrying amount before

provision of HK$1,611,000 (2012: HK$1,591,000).

B

tRREEERAA]

Group
AEHE
2013
—E—=
HK$’000
THET
1,591 1,495
140 198
(143) (59)
- (48)
23 5
1,611 1,591

it FEIE 5 ER 2 RE B B T B AR
AIBRTEI{E A1,611,000/8 T (=T — — 4 -
1,591,000/ 70) Z AR E R AR W E 5 ERK
EE 2 BE1611,008 T (ZZF——4F -
1,591,000 7T ) ©

- LY
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21. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED)

The individually impaired trade receivables relate to amounts that
were long outstanding and/or customers that were in financial
difficulties/in default.

The aged analysis of the trade and bills receivables that are not
considered to be impaired is as follows:

21. BWEZRAREVRRE (&)

18 5l 2 080 B FE U 2 55 B 5k B2 = 3 R A SR8
&/ SEETBRE,REZEFEH

RPARRAREZ B E B RS EWE R
BRI DTN -

Neither past due nor impaired
Less than T month past due

1 to 3 months past due

4to 6 months past due

Over 6 months past due

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate to a
number of diversified customers, including certain departments/
units of the Government of the Hong Kong Special Administrative
Region (“HKSAR"), for whom there was no recent history of default.

Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate to a number
of independent customers that have a good reputation and/or have
a good track record with the Group. Based on past experience, the
directors of the Company are of the opinion that no provision for
impairment is necessary in respect of these balances as there has not
been a significant change in credit quality and the balances are still
considered fully recoverable.

22. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES

REHIERIE

BN —EA
BH—E={EA
B = X fE A
NEA A E

Group
EE
2013 2012
—E_=5 =
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET T
14,805 20,361
5,938 2,811
1,326 2,043
883 1273
259 775
23,211 27,263

RN SORUE 2 FEWGRR IR = 22 BT HANS
Rk Z2TREFER - BEEBN
TR E([EBER])BAE T M, &

fi ©

BEMBE R E < FEYGIREREERIF &3
EREEAE RIFERRHETBULES
B - REBAEER  ARARESFRR - ©
WMEEERWEEABE - ARFERIDK
BRAIEERE - BBARZEAERIELR
B -

22, FEMNFIE > RERHEMEWRFE

Group Company
EEE AR

2013 2013 2012
—g2—= —E—=F —E——F
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FHT TFHT FAT
Prepayments TR EIR 2,916 1,920 253 255
Deposits and other receivables 1% N E b fE Ug /I8 3,115 4122 - —
6,031 6,042 253 255

None of the above assets is either past due or impaired. The financial
assets included in the above balances relate to receivables for which
there was no recent history of default.

it EMES ST IREE - 2ER i
REBRIN Z AT & B BT D SR R RO 8k 2 B
WERIABR -
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23. CONTRACTS FOR SERVICES

Contract costs incurred plus recognised
profits less recognised losses to date
Less: Progress billings

/ﬁﬁﬂﬁEﬁEwEﬁTE
B IRERE R RS

Gross amounts due from contract customers EWEHREI
Impairment BUIE
Gross amounts due to contract customers ENEHRFPRIE

The movements in provision for impairment of amounts due from

contract customers are as follows:

At 1 January R—H—H
Impairment losses reversed (note 6) BBl E e 1A (i Te)
Amount written off as uncollectible MEs AT eelk e SRR
At 31 December Rt+—-—A=+—H

Included in the above provision for impairment of amounts due from
contract customers is a provision for individually impaired contract
receivables of HK$1,581,000 (2012: HK$1,999,000) with a carrying
amount before provision of HK$1,581,000 (2012: HKS$1,999,000). The
individually impaired contract receivables relate to amounts that
are long outstanding and the receivables are not expected to be
recoverable.

23. fREEW

Group
HEM
2013 2012
s — 4
HK$'000
FHET

—g-=
HK$’000
T

SEEERHRAINCHER

247,234 233,871
(247,097) (233,031)
137 840
6,726 5,350
(1,581) (1,999)
5,145 3,351
(5,008) (2,511)
137 840
Rl EHNEPFIRRERE 2 ZFNT
Group
&M
2013 2012
—F—= ——F
HK$’000 HKS$'000
THET THET
1,999 4,940
(418) -
- (2,941)
1,581 1,999

FHERENRFRIERERERIEED
B BRI S BREE 51,581,0008 L (ZE——
F : 1,999,000 7T ) Z {8 Bl B (B FE & #I 5K
TEEE 2 B #1,581,00008 T ( — T — — 4 ¢
1,999,000/ 7T ) ° 1R BIE B E B U A KR IR
HRHARE B TB R T RE U Bl 2 B UL
RIEHEER -

R R R E AR A] —T=FFR 119
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23.

24,

120

CONTRACTS FOR SERVICES (CONTINUED)

Amounts due from contract customers that were not impaired were
not past due and relate to a number of independent customers
that have a good track record/relationship with the Group and/
or for whom there was no recent history of default. Based on past
experience, the directors of the Company are of the opinion that no
provision for impairment is necessary in respect of these balances
as there has not been a significant change in credit quality and
the balances are still considered fully recoverable. The Group does
not hold any collateral or other credit enhancements over these
balances.

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH
PROFIT ORLOSS

23. RBFEH (&)

W ERE < RIS KB P RRIB R - I
RS EAREE A RIS BER
ST EAY B R Lk BB P AR - IRIB
BERR > ARFESERABANZFTER

EHRERE KB EREERYEEX
g - MABSRDER AR 28E - K

SEW B % FEHT A TAET RS
EERITRE

BRAFEKBESARZUBEE

mmERE
EMEFEZEE LMRARE

Debt investments, at market value
Listed equity investments in Hong Kong,
at market value

Portion classified as current assets

Portion classified as non-current assets

The debt investments were designated upon initial recognition
as financial assets at fair value through profit or loss as they are
managed and their performance is evaluated on a fair value basis,
in accordance with a documented risk management or investment
strategy, and information about the investments is provided
internally on that basis to the Group's key management personnel.
Debt investment classified as a current asset at 31 December 2012
and 2013 was a debt with maturity date falls within one year from
the end of the reporting period.

The listed equity investments were all included under current assets

at 31 December 2012 and 2013 and were classified as held for
trading.

ANNUAL REPORT 2013

DERRBEERD
DERIEREBEER D

Computer And Technologies Holdings Limited

Group

rEE
2013 2012

—E—=

HK$’000 HK$'000
TET FHET
8,740 11,109
9,245 14,933
17,985 26,042
(15,569) (17,487)
2,416 8,555

ERNEBIRE DR B TRRE R ER
B DR NP EEEEE RAHHERIE - 800
IRHERE S E AR A ELERI AR 2B
WEE  MBBZREREZERIZARE
ERAEEZ ETEEREABRERE - K=
T —FR-ZT—=F+ZRA=+—HED
HEARBBEEZEBREE N ARRSHRAE
HART—FAEHZER

TTRAREEFARE——FR_F
—=F+-A=t—HzZRBEE I
BIEFEES -
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25. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND PLEDGED 25. BeRERBESEEURCEH

BANK DEPOSITS RITER
Group Company
AEE PN
2013 2012 2013 2012
“E-=F - =B-=F E=—=f
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
THExT FHET FHET AT
Cash and bank balances e RIRITHER 219,051 119,440 2,163 1,651
Time deposits TEHTF 97,996 215463 - =
317,047 334,903 2,163 1,651
Less: Pledged time deposits for i : SLIRTTBLIRE
performance bonds/ BREEH
guarantees issued by FEHIFER
banks (6,195) (10,049) - -
Pledged deposits for MIRTTREZ
banking facilities granted RITRE
by a bank* FrE #F 5 (6,075) (50,048) - =
Cash and cash equivalentsas st ABIRARRIREK 2
stated in the statement of ReERERRESEE
financial position 304,777 274,806 2,163 1,651
* The bank facility has not been utilised as at the end of the reporting period. * RBEHEEER » ZETEEREILEE
HWENA -

At the end of the reporting period, the cash and bank balances
and time deposits of the Group denominated in Renminbi ("RMB”)
amounted to approximately HK$256,475,000 (2012: HK$251,187,000).
The RMB is not freely convertible into other currencies. However,
under Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and
Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange
Regulations, the Group is permitted to exchange RMB for other
currencies through banks authorised to conduct foreign exchange
business.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank
deposit rates. Short term time deposits are made for varying periods
of between one and six months depending on the immediate cash
requirements of the Group, and earn interest at the respective short
term time deposit rates. The bank balances and time deposits are
deposited with creditworthy banks with no recent history of default.

B

4
Y|

RFEREEER  AEEUAARB (AR
¥ AR e MIRTEE R ESERLY B
256,475,000/ 70( ZZF—=4F : 251,187,000/
TL) e ARBIATHAERARMER - A
R B INE B IAEG] R AETE - E[E RS
EIIAT  ANEEE AR B IEITINESE
%2 RITIB AR BB E AN -

RITRSREE RRTEHNRIZZBFIR
R BHEMERNEREN F—2NE
ATE  REAKERRSFRLKME » I
RRRAREMERERMEGG R - RITEFR
EREFEFENMEERF LIS R
FOERZ SRT ©

FRGEREERAT —T=FFR
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26.

122

TRADE PAYABLES, OTHER PAYABLES AND 26. ENESRM HttEARER
ACCRUALS PESTFRIE

Company
RAF]

2013 2012
—E—=F —E——F
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FHIT FEx FAET
Trade payables FERTE SR 22,899 33,037 - -
Other payables H b e IB 29,031 24,191 - -
Accruals FEETFIR 12,556 12,487 409 337
64,486 69,715 409 337

An aged analysis of the trade payables as at the end of the reporting
period, based on the payment due date, is as follows:

RBEHEEER - BNESRFIRD BN
KEAE| D ZRE DM -

Current BNHA

1 to 3 months —Z=={dA
410 6 months U EYN S
Over 6 months ~NME A E

The trade payables are non-interest-bearing and are normally settled
on 30-day terms.
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Group
rEE
2013 2012
—E—Z=F 2
HK$’000 HK$'000
TET FET
19,756 29,405
2,025 3,020
210 109
9208 503
22,899 33,037

NESERL TR - —ARIZ0REIREE

==
/A °
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27. DEFERRED TAX

The movements in deferred tax liabilities during the year are as

follows:

Deferred tax liabilities

Group

At 1 January 2013

Deferred tax charged to the
statement of profit or loss
during the year (note 10)

Gross deferred tax liabilities at
31 December 2013

N-—Z—=%—H—H

FARBRRINRZ
EEF A (FIFE10)

27. EERIE

FR BREHERBEZEHNT -

ELHEE A
rEE
2013
—Eg—=
Revaluation Withholding

of properties taxes Total
MEE L B et
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FHT THET TET
549 496 1,045
920 - 20
639 496 1,135

At 1 January 2012

Deferred tax charged to the FRARBEERIRZ
statement of profit or loss FEFERIE (FI7E10)
during the year (note 10)

Gross deferred tax liabilities at RZE——F
31 December 2012 +=—A=+—82

RIETIE B R4

RZZE—=—F—H—H

2012
—E——fF
Revaluation Withholding
of properties taxes Total
MERE AN #5t
HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET FHET
421 496 917
128 = 128
549 496 1,045
M RREEFR AR —E=FFR 123
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27.

124

DEFERRED TAX (CONTINUED)

Deferred tax liabilities (continued)

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, a 10% withholding
tax is levied on dividends declared to foreign investors from the
foreign investment enterprises established in Mainland China.
The requirement is effective from 1 January 2008 and applies to
earnings after 31 December 2007. A lower withholding tax rate may
be applied if there is a tax treaty between Mainland China and the
jurisdiction of the foreign investors. For the Group’s subsidiaries
established in the Mainland China, the applicable rate is 5% or 10%.
The Group is therefore liable for withholding taxes on dividends
distributed by those subsidiaries established in Mainland China in
respect of earnings generated from 1 January 2008.

At the end of the reporting period, in respect of certain subsidiaries
of the Group established in Mainland China, no deferred tax has
been recognised for withholding taxes that would be payable on
the unremitted earnings that are subject to withholding taxes. In the
opinion of the directors of the Company, it is not probable that these
subsidiaries will distribute such earnings in the foreseeable future.
The aggregate amount of temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries in Mainland China for which deferred
tax liabilities have not been recognised totalled approximately
HK$1,247,000 at 31 December 2013 (2012: HKS$1,296,000).

There are no income tax consequences attaching to the payment of
dividends by the Company to its shareholders.

Tax losses not recognised

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had unrecognised
tax losses arising in Hong Kong of approximately HK$ 1,673,000
(2012: HK$1,471,000), subject to the agreement by the Hong Kong
Inland Revenue Department, that are available indefinitely for
offsetting against future taxable profits arising in Hong Kong of the
companies in which the losses arose. Deferred tax assets have not
been recognised in respect of these losses as they have arisen in
subsidiaries that have been loss-making for some time and/or due to
the unpredictability of future taxable profit streams of the companies
in which the losses arose, and it is currently not considered probable
that taxable profits will be available against which the tax losses can
be utilised.

ANNUAL REPORT 2013

Computer And Technologies Holdings Limited

27. IEFEBIE ()

EEHEEE(E)
BIER B EERHRE - RPBERATZ
SNE D ERGINEE B E IR E EIR10%TE
MBEHH - BERAEE ST NF—A
—BRAER WEAR-_ZTZELF+_A
=+ —BZEREEREF o fHHEApEIN
R B & T Al AR R B IER RIS 163K - B
AERAREK 2 AR R - KEBRFE A
WiZW% REEF 2 BE 55%3K10% ° A
“EEN\F-H—HB# AEEEH
M#W¢IWmW42W% RIFTEE BT
Dk 2 B BB TR o

RBEHELEER  AEEBTESRENSP
Bl N 37 2 B T BB A R R EE H 2B B4R
ﬁﬂﬁmﬂF%Zﬁmm%kamﬁ $

RAIBERA  RARRK  EHBA
PRATBED RZEEF] - R *:¢+—
A=+—RH BERBERZ B ARIRE
R 2 R EREA £ 491,2470008 0 (=
— 4 1 1,296,000/ 7T ) °

AATNEERERRIKAR
i o

RERNBRIEER

RFEHEEE R AEEREBELERTE
RIHIBEERL1,673,0008 T (ZT— 4% :
1471,000870) @ AJERHAEERE EBE
EBEARZ RIRERFEF - EREFES
RIERERA - ARZEEEREEE —BH
TEBEEZHBAR R, SEHRZEN
JB R B R IR B SR AR A BR8N 1] T8 )RI LA
NIRRT AR 88 FE kA 1| AT AR
SHTRTSES R - BT AR Bk S S 1B R R IE R
BEE -

EMELME
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28. SHARE CAPITAL 28. A
Shares &)
2013
—E-=
HK$'000
TExT
Authorised: ETERRA
1,000,000,000 (2012: 1,000,000,000) 1,000,000,0000% (=& — =4 :
ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each 1,000,000,000/% )
BREEI0ETT B 100,000 100,000
Issued and fully paid: BT RAUERA ¢
244,194,198 (2012: 245,288,198) 244,194,198 (ZF— % :
ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each 245,288,198H% )
BREE0I10B T2 BiEAR 24,419 24,529
A summary of the movements in the Company's issued ordinary RAREETERRAE - RO GEERMIRE
share capital, share premium account and shares held under the BRI RZEET BB 2 IR EE) 2 B2
restricted share award scheme is as follows: LUl
Shares held
under the
Number Share restricted
of shares Issued premium  share award
inissue capital account scheme
REERH
BRI B8fT Rt RO%E:HE
Ordinary shares j g | A wEER BEzRA @t
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000
TAL THL THL AT
At 1 January 2012 WZE-—F-f-H 246,040,198 24604 38493 (5,176) 57921
Repurchase of shares AEl) 28(a) (752,000) (75) - = (75)
Purchase of shares held under the BEERHRN e
restricted share award scheme AN 30 - - - (1372) (1372)
Vesting of shares held under the BRI REEET
restricted share award scheme k58 30 - - = 958 958
At 31 December 2012 and R=B——F+-R=+-RAK
t 1 January 2013 WZE-—=%-F—-H 245,288,198 24529 38493 (5,590) 57432
Repurchase of shares AEl) 28(b) (1,094,000) (110) - = (110)
Vesting of shares held under the ERER g EET
restricted share award scheme RhEE 30 = - - 855 855
At 31 December 2013 RIE-=£+ZA=1-H 244,194,198 24419 38493 (4,735) 58,177
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28. SHARE CAPITAL (CONTINUED)

Notes:

@)

(b)

During the year ended 31 December 2012, the Company repurchased its own
ordinary shares on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited as follows:

28. IRA< (%)

HE-_T——-F+-_A=1+—HLLFER "
RRRREEMAEZHAERAAELHE
BRZIERWT -

Number Highest Lowest Aggregate
of shares price paid price paid consideration
repurchased per share per share paid
ERER BEAER
Month/year BERAEE R EE RIEER ENERE
HKS HKS
BT BT
August 2012 —T——F)\A 310,000 163 162 507
September 2012 —T——FhA 228,000 1.71 1.66 390
October 2012 —T——%+A 214,000 1.72 1.70 368
752,000 1,265

The repurchased shares were cancelled and accordingly, the issued share
capital of the Company was reduced by the nominal value of these shares of
HK$75,000. The premium paid on the repurchase of the shares of HK$1,190,000
was charged to the contributed surplus.

During the year ended 31 December 2013, the Company repurchased its own
ordinary shares on the Stock Exchange as follows:

Number
of shares
repurchased

Month/year BERGEE

April 2013 1,094,000

The repurchased shares were cancelled and accordingly, the issued share
capital of the Company was reduced by the nominal value of these shares of
HKS$110,000. The premium paid on the repurchase of the shares of HK$1,854,000
was charged to the contributed surplus.

Share options
Details of the Company’s share option schemes and the share

options issued under the schemes are included in note 29 to the

financial statements.

Restricted shares

BRIRG D EHE  AREIEBITRAIAR
ZERG 2 EER 49750007 7T © BB
BT <8 (E1,190,00078 7T E B BA B ©

HE_ZT-—=F+-A=+t—HLEER "

Z/NCTN RS AE B S el ) g D
Highest Lowest

price paid

Aggregate

price paid consideration

paid

per share
ENER
BEER
HK$
BT
1.80

per share
ENER
RIEER
HK$
BT
1.78

ERAE
HK$’000
FHET
1,964

BRIRG B AR BB BITRAINAIR
ZERD ZEER 21100007 T © BEE G
Fir {4 81,854,000/ 70 E B A BERINRR ©

B
BRAA R RIEIER 8 MR BLAT BB THE
Pt 2 FEIE BN B TS R M 29

AR R
ARE ARSI B 8 RARIR AT 8IS

Details of the Company's restricted share award scheme and the
restricted shares held under the scheme are included in note 30 to
the financial statements.

B2 BRI 2 FE B B B wmR M T
30°
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29. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES 29. BRAETE

The Company operates a share option scheme for the primary RARRMN—IBRERETS - TZEAE
purpose of providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants AREBEBKMIELERMZ A ERIHAEIR
who contribute to the success of the Group's operations. The share HHE R AEE - ZEERESSIE TIHER
option scheme entitles the holders of share options granted under BZATBIFT IR TR 2 A TR - REER
the scheme to subscribe for ordinary shares of the Company at any BEMITEEIR - BERRE AN R TR
time during the exercisable periods of the options. Share options B AR AN R B A MEUR B IR K
do not confer rights on the holders to dividends or to vote at e HREo

shareholders’ meetings.

(a) Share option scheme adopted in 2002 (@) R-EZE_FHRHPNZERE
BE !
The Company adopted a share option scheme (the “2002 AABAFRM—EERETEI([ =
Scheme”). Eligible participants of the 2002 Scheme included TE_FAE]) —TEE_FEHEIZ
the Company’s directors, including independent non- EERSEEBEARTES(RIEE
executive directors, other employees of the Group, suppliers VIEHITES)  AEEHEHAMES -
of goods or services to the Group, customers of the Group, the mAEBHEERNXIRSE 2 HER
Company's shareholders, and any non-controlling shareholder REBEERFE - AARIIRE kAR 7l
in the Company’s subsidiaries. The 2002 Scheme became B AR Z M FEEFIMERE - —FBF
effective on 30 May 2002 and, unless otherwise cancelled or ZEFER=ZEE=FRAA=1THAE
amended, will remain in force for 10 years from that date. B AN BRIEBITEHEEER] 0 &

A BRI Z R R T FRDAER -

The maximum number of unexercised share options currently BIE-TT - F:12 - REERER
permitted to be granted under the 2002 Scheme was an B2 MARITEERESE =S HESE
amount equivalent, upon their exercise, to 10% of the shares HEITER (AR RMEIR E B 3T
of the Company in issue at any time. The maximum number AR 210% ° AR+ =@ AEH -

of shares issuable under share options to each eligible BiE T - FiBRSAEKRRH
participant in the 2002 Scheme within any 12-month period BREZBRER T 2R EE &

was limited to 1% of the shares of the Company in issue at any
time. Any further grant of share options in excess of this limit
was subject to shareholders’ approval in a general meeting.

Share options granted to a director, chief executive or
substantial shareholder of the Company, or to any of their
associates, were subject to approval in advance by the
independent non-executive directors. In addition, any
share options granted to a substantial shareholder or an
independent non-executive director of the Company, or to
any of their associates, in excess of 0.1% of the shares of the
Company in issue at any time or with an aggregate value
(based on the price of the Company’s shares at the date of
grant) in excess of HKS5 million, within any 12-month period,
were subject to shareholders’ approval in advance in a general
meeting.

LA AR REMREE 2 BEETRDZ
1% o (Efa[E— S BB AR 5 2 A%
B RN A EHbE -

KYARRBIESE  (THAHKEER
R RS MBMBEAT 2 BRERS
SRS B IEHITESHE - &té?\\'
WMAEM @A BERFAA
Eﬂxijzéﬁ_LéHﬂfTi%mﬁwEﬁ
BEATZERNEREBERA A
PMERFE 2 B BT 20.1% » 3%
EREERE BE(BEAARRKN
REBRERTE B2 ERE)BE
50000007 @ AIZBESE R ERR RS
FESARER AL o

R R R E AR A] —T=FFR 127
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29. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (CONTINUED)

128

(a)

(b)

ANNUAL REPORT 2013

Share option scheme adopted in 2002
(continued)

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted within
28 days from the date of the offer, upon payment of a nominal
consideration of HKS$1 in total by the grantee. The exercise
period of the share options granted was determinable by the
directors, and commences after certain vesting period and
ends on a date which was not later than 10 years from the
date of offer of the share options or the expiry date of the
2002 Scheme, whichever is earlier.

The exercise price of share options was determinable by the
directors, but may not be less than the higher of (i) the Stock
Exchange closing price of the Company's shares on the date of
offer of the share options; and (i) the average Stock Exchange
closing price of the Company's shares for the five trading days
immediately preceding the date of offer.

No share option of the Company was outstanding, granted,
exercised, cancelled or lapsed during the current and prior
years and subsequent to the end of the reporting period
under the 2002 Scheme.

Share option scheme adopted in 2012

As the 2002 Scheme expired on 30 May 2012, the Company
adopted a new share option scheme in 2012 (the “2012
Scheme”). Eligible participants of the 2012 Scheme include the
Company's directors (whether executive or non-executive and
whether independent or not), other employees of the Group,
consultants or advisers of the Group, suppliers of goods or
services to the Group, customers of the Group, the Company’s
shareholders, and any other person, at the sole discretion
of the directors. The 2012 Scheme became effective on 19
November 2012 and, unless otherwise cancelled or amended,
will remain in force for 10 years from that date.

The maximum number of unexercised share options currently
permitted to be granted under the 2012 Scheme is an amount
equivalent, upon their exercise, to 10% of the shares of the
Company in issue at any time. The maximum number of
shares issuable under share options to each eligible participant
in the 2012 Scheme within any 12-month period is limited
to 1% of the shares of the Company in issue at any time. Any
further grant of share options in excess of this limit is subject
to shareholders’ approval in a general meeting.

Computer And Technologies Holdings Limited

29. BBRERTEI(E)

(a)

(b)

R-ZBEZ_FERMBZERE
=8I (&)

RE2FM 2 BB NIRL A #iest
28E M - TR ABS A 308
TZRBARME - TR LBREZ 1T
M ERET  WHETHBEE%
BgA - MR BT SRR E2 B
HESEHTFR_TT_FiHEZ
BIHA (A BRRERE) -

BREZITEEHESSEE A1
ARRTIMER 2REE : VAR
AN 2 B B IR R
WiE « R()ARBIRONERIES
B 8T AL 832 5 B R 32 P 2 F U

N

miE °

ARRBRAFEERBEFEARRE
HRTERBMBTAERITE  EX
b BT EEEIERBZ-F
TSR TR

R-E——FHMAZERE
Bl
HR-ZEE_FHER = ——Fh
B=+B8E®R  8ARRRH—EFH
BIEE( -2 ——F528]) - —
T —FFE A ERREEREAR
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FEEHEIEET - BAFF BB R Z B RET
FERIRER

RIE—F——F518 - REEHER
HZ MARTTERBRER R RZ AT HE
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29. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (CONTINUED)

(b) Share option scheme adopted in 2012

(continued)

Share options granted to a director or substantial shareholder
of the Company, or to any of their associates, are subject
to approval in advance by the independent non-executive
directors. In addition, any share options granted to a
substantial shareholder or an independent non-executive
director of the Company, or to any of their associates, in excess
of 0.1% of the shares of the Company in issue at any time or
with an aggregate value (based on the price of the Company's
shares at the date of grant) in excess of HKS5 million, within
any 12-month period, are subject to shareholders’ approval in
advance in a general meeting.

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted within
10 days from the date of offer, upon payment of a nominal
consideration of HKS1 in total by the grantee. The exercise
period of the share options granted is determinable by the
directors, and commences after certain vesting period and
ends on a date which is not later than 10 years from the date
of offer of the share options or the expiry date of the 2012
Scheme, whichever is earlier.

The exercise price of share options is determinable by the
directors, but may be at least highest of (i) the Stock Exchange
closing price of the Company’s shares on the date of offer of
the share options; (ii) the average Stock Exchange closing price
of the Company's shares for the five trading days immediately
preceding the date of offer; and (iii) the nominal value of the
Company's shares.

No share option of the Company was outstanding, granted,
exercised, cancelled or lapsed during the current and prior
years and subsequent to the end of the reporting period
under the 2012 Scheme.

30. RESTRICTED SHARE AWARD SCHEME

On 22 May 2008, the Company adopted a restricted share award
scheme (the “Award Scheme”) under which shares of the Company
(the “Awarded Shares”) may be awarded to selected employees
(including directors) of any members of the Group (the “Selected
Employees”) in accordance with the provisions of the Award Scheme
and an irrevocable trust (the “Trust”) was also established by the
Company for the purpose of the Award Scheme. The Award Scheme
became effective on the adoption date and, unless otherwise
terminated or amended, will remain in force for 10 years from that
date. Further details of the Award Scheme are also set outin a
circular of the Company dated 29 April 2008.

29. BBRERTEI(E)

b)) R—ZFE—_—_FHEHZERE
TEI(E&)
RYADRRESREZRESFET
BB A L BRREAS LIS B
SEMITE FHLE o UESN - R T
+—EAHERE T AR EBRER
BUIEATESHFSEMBEEAL
AR BERAERE AR ) A E AR
Z BTN 201% ¢ 5 A BB IR
2 BEBRIEAD RO B
HH 2 B8 515 ) #83815,000,00078 7T -
BIEE IR R A S FEVSAREALAE

RERB ZBRETNIZZE AR
10R RER - MERABXNEHVE
TTZEBARE - FIRHEREZTT
EHREZSET  YHETHEY
®Fe - mEmABNSERNREZRE
PR TR T~ —F5tE
ZEHH(AREERE) -

BREZTEEHESET  BED
ARTNI=FFRZ&E=RE  ()ARF
B IR 2B RE B SR ATz U
MmE : (NARRRNREZIRZBH
Al B8R 5 B B X B 2 SF M T
& RARBIIDEIE

RAFEFBEFENRREHEES
BHE ARB_FT—_FEET
BMELAERTRE ERLE BT
% - SEHEHD KB BAE -

30. BIRFIR {752 B 5T 2

ARBR-_ZEZN\FHEA-+_HEMH—IA
BRI 2R T8 ([ 22BITE ) - 3t -
R B A AR IE 2R AT &l 2 R M AN R E LA
KRERRIZEERER(BEER)([KEE
BB ) EEARQTRMN ([ZERM ) » AR
AL B2 At B — IR A AT EMERE([{E
FE1) o SRR EIE RN B BIAER - BRIFIN
RRIESMER] - A5 B R% AR THRAER - 82
BEEE—PHBTERARREHS=F
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30.

130

RESTRICTED SHARE AWARD SCHEME
(CONTINUED)

The aggregate number of Awarded Shares currently permitted to
be awarded under the Award Scheme throughout the duration of
the Award Scheme is limited to 10% of the issued share capital of
the Company from time to time. Subject to the aforesaid limit, the
maximum number of Awarded Shares which may be awarded under
the Award Scheme shall not exceed 2% of the issued share capital
of the Company as at the year end date of the preceding financial
year of the Company for any 12-month period up to and including
the date of the relevant grant. The maximum number of Awarded
Shares which may be awarded to a Selected Employee under the
Award Scheme shall not exceed 1% of the issued share capital of the
Company as at the year end date of the preceding financial year of
the Company.

Pursuant to the rules governing the operation of the Award Scheme
(the “Scheme Rules”), the board of directors of the Company (the
“Board”) shall select the Selected Employees and determine the
number of Awarded Shares to be awarded. The Board shall cause to
pay the trustee of the Trust (the “Trustee”) the purchase price and
the related expenses from the Company’s resources for the shares of
the Company to be purchased by the Trustee. The Trustee is a third
party appointed by the Board for the administration of the Award
Scheme. The Trustee shall purchase from the market such number
of shares of the Company awarded as specified by the Board and
shall hold such shares until they are vested in accordance with the
Scheme Rules.

When a Selected Employee has satisfied all vesting conditions, which
might include service and/or performance conditions, specified by
the Board at the time of making the award and become entitled to
the shares of the Company forming the subject of the award, the
Trustee shall transfer the relevant vested Awarded Shares to that
employee at no cost. The Selected Employee however is not entitled
to receive any income or distribution, such as dividend derived
from the unvested Awarded Shares allocated to him/her. The said
income or distributions shall be used by the Trustee for payment of
the Trustee’s fees or expenses or for purchase of further shares of the
Company for the Award Scheme.

The Trustee shall not exercise the voting rights in respect of any
shares of the Company held under the Trust, including, inter alia, the
Awarded Shares and further shares of the Company acquired out of
the income derived therefrom.
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30. RESTRICTED SHARE AWARD SCHEME 30. BRI EEETEI(E)

(CONTINUED)

The fair value of the Awarded Shares awarded was based on the
market value of the Company’s shares at the grant date and the
Group recognised an equity-settled share-based payment expense
of HK$843,000 for the year ended 31 December 2013 (2012:
HK$633,000).

During the year ended 31 December 2013, 816,000 Awarded Shares
(2012: 936,000 Awarded Shares) were vested and transferred to
certain executive directors of the Company and certain employees
of the Group. During the year ended 31 December 2013, upon the
vesting of certain Awards Shares, the carrying value of the shares
held under the restricted share award scheme account of the
Company was reduced by HK$855,000 (2012: HK$958,000) and such
amount was transferred to the share-based payment reserve of the
Company.

During the year ended 31 December 2013, no ordinary shares of
the Company were acquired by the Trustee for the Award Scheme.
During the year ended 31 December 2012, the Trustee acquired for
the Award Scheme 806,000 ordinary shares of the Company through
purchases on the open market at a total cost (including related
transaction costs) of approximately HK$1,372,000.

During the year ended 31 December 2013, 500,000 and 1,200,000
Awarded Shares were awarded to one executive director and certain
employees of the Group, respectively, which will be transferred
to the executive director and the employees at nil consideration,
subject to the satisfaction of certain service conditions, upon vesting
in various tranches, with the last tranches ending on 30 April 2018
and 30 September 2018, respectively.

HE-ZE—=F+-A=+—HBIFEE B
RSB GD 2 AFERAQRRMRE L
BEIB I MENRAEBATERAREEE
LAREAD 32 < B 843,000/ T (B — — 4 -
633,000/ 70 ) 5T & o

REBEZZT—=F+-A=+—HILFE -
ARABETHOTESRASEETREE
558 M B E816,000 R HE)RH (ZE—=
F 1 936,000/ SEE) I () - REAZE=Z—=
F+-A=+—HIFE  ATEERMHE
FB% - RARE BRI G REE SR E
T 2R A ERE{ER 48550008 L (=%
— 4 : 958000/87T) ' ZEeHEEEER
DRI

REE-_T—=F+_A=+—HIFE -
AL EF R EBARRR 2 LB
R-RBEZZT——F+-A=+—HIF
B ZEARBREFEEATEARAMSIZ
#91,372,0008 LB A (BIFEEAR S A)
B85 A 806,000f% AN~ &) A% o

RBEZZ—=F+"A=+—HILFE -
REB—R2HTESRETREREDFIERDY
500,0008% }2.1,200,000 MZAEENAR 17 - HERHAR
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T N\FLA=THRE
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30.

31.

132

RESTRICTED SHARE AWARD SCHEME 30.
(CONTINUED)

The following Awarded Shares were awarded and outstanding
under the Award Scheme during the year:

AR IR A0 SR B E & (&)

FA - RBEREFIERERRARTTER 2R
BRI

2013 2012
—E—=F T4
Weighted Weighted
average Number of average Number of
fair value at unvested fair value at unvested
grant date Awarded grant date Awarded
per share Shares per share Shares
R H B # s gsR:il
ER N KREFE RN R
FHRATE RBROBE FHLTE ZBRHEE
HK$ HKS
BT BIT
At 1 January »w—A—8 0.91 2,034,000 091 3,406,000
Awarded during the year FRRT 1.48 1,700,000 = =
Vested during the year FHNHE 0.83 (816,000) 081 (936,000)
Forfeited during the year FARI 1.21 (994,000) 1.11 (436,000)
At 31 December KR+-—A=+—H~ 1.29 1,924,000 091 2,034,000

Out of the total of 8,660,000 Award Shares awarded in prior years,
2,750,000 Awarded Shares were awarded to the executive directors
of the Company.

At the date of approval of these financial statements, the Company
had 1,924,000 Awarded Shares unvested under the Award Scheme,
which represented approximately 0.8% of the Company’s ordinary
shares in issue at that date.

RESERVES 31.

(a) Group
The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movements
therein for the current and prior years are presented in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity on pages 51 to
52 of the financial statements.

The Group's contributed surplus originally represented the
excess of the aggregate net asset value of the subsidiaries
acquired at the date of their acquisition pursuant to the Group
reorganisation on 29 April 1998, over the nominal value of the
Company's shares issued in exchange therefor.

Pursuant to the relevant PRC laws and regulations for wholly-
foreign-owned enterprises, a portion of the profits of the
Group's subsidiaries, which are established in the PRC, has
been transferred to reserve funds which are restricted as to use.
The subsidiaries are not required to effect any further transfer
when the amount of the reserve funds reaches 50% of their

registered capital.
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31. RESERVES (CONTINUED)

(@) Group (continued)
The Group's goodwill reserve represents goodwill which arose
on the acquisition of certain subsidiaries in prior years and
remains eliminated against consolidated reserves, as further

explained in note 16 to the financial statements.

(b) Company

At1 January 2012

Profit for the year

Repurchase of shares

Vesting of shares held under the restricted
share award scheme

Share award arrangements

Final 2011 dividend declared

Interim 2012 dividend

Proposal final and special 2012 dividends

At 31 Decernber 2012 and at 1 January 2013

Loss for the year

Repurchase of shares

Vesting of shares held under the restricted
share award scheme

Share award arrangements

Finaland special 2012 dividends declared

Interim 2013 dividend

Proposal final and special 2013 dividends

At 31 December 2013

R_E-—F-f-A

TER &R

BERS

BRHRAREEET
Ri%E

R TG

ER-E——FRERE

“E-—FhfRe

RE-E——ERERERIRE

RZE-——F+-A=+-AR
R-E-=%£-B-H

AEEER

BERG

BRHROREEET
]

ke

ER-E-—EREREIRE

“E-ZEhERE

BR-E-—EREREIRS

RZE-=F+-A=1-H

The Company'’s contributed surplus originally represented
the excess of the aggregate net asset value of the subsidiaries
acquired at the date of their acquisition pursuant to the Group
reorganisation on 29 April 1998, over the nominal value of the
Company's shares issued in exchange therefor.

Under the Bermuda Companies Act 1981, a company may
make distributions to its members out of the contributed
surplus in certain circumstances.

28()

30
30

12
12

28(b)

30
30

12
12

31. @#E(E)

(a) FA&H(&)
AN TSR M 163 — M - K
SEZBERBERNEEFEWES
THBARELAZBHE  SEERLR

BfFEELHE o
(b) ARF
Share Share-based
premium  Contributed payment Retained

account surplus reserve profits Total

LURES
it ait
HKS' HKS000
j TEL
38493 104770 2,704 404 146,371
= = = 2 2
= (1,190) = = (1190)
= = (958) = (958)
- - 633 - 633
- 27 - - 2
= (14483) = = (14483)
= (21,666) = = (21,660)
38493 67458 2379 41 108761
= = = (6) (6)
= (1.854) = = (1.854)
- - (855) - (855)
= = 843 = 843
= 81 = = 81
= (14425) = = (14425)
= (21.641) = = (21,641)
38493 29619 2367 45 70904
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A ERBENBAR B %%
B AE A& EFEBHANREM

eI MBI T < H1E -

B—NAN—FBRERQRE  RAR
ETERTAIABARSREBRRED

DK °

M RAEEERA

A CEocasR
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32.

134

BUSINESS COMBINATION

On 31 May 2013, the Group acquired the entire equity interest
in Vitova Limited (“Vitova”). Vitova is engaged in the provision
of enterprise software applications and related operation. The
acquisition was made as part of the Group's strategy to expand
the Group's application services business and its existing product
offering. The purchase consideration for the acquisition was in the
form of cash, with HK$1,000,000 paid at the acquisition date and the
remaining HK$600,000 paid on 11 November 2013.

The fair values of the identifiable assets and liabilities of Vitova as at
the date of acquisition were as follows:

32.

EBE6

AEFR -_ZT—=FRA=+—RKEZE
BRAERAR([EE )2 PRz - ZE
Tt ERECETHEARBEER - Wi
ThAEET A EBERRGESTIREAIRA
EREEZ NEBERIRET - WEZES
RETDABSZM - 10088 TE R
BASN @ MBRKOBETLER T —=F
+—A+—BXfte

2E A HBEERBEZ A FERKEB
HAZONT -

Fair value
recognised on
acquisition

gz AFE
HK$'000
THT

Property, plant and equipment L E N E 23
Cash and bank balances B RIRITHER 1,037
Trade receivables FEUE SRR 1,497
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables TENFIE - e REMEWKIE 801

Trade payables, other payables and accruals FERE SRR - A FE 5IE R FERHRIE (1,944)
Due to contract customers ERE&HEFPRIE (117)
Deferred revenue PEIELIA (3,101)
Total identifiable net liabilities at fair value AFRaEFEEREC ATE (1,798)
Goodwill on acquisition (note 16) Wi 2 B (Miske) 3,398
Satisfied by cash AR & 2 1+ 1,600

The fair values of the trade receivables and other receivables as at
the date of acquisition amounted to HK$1,497,000 and HK$801,000,
respectively. The gross contractual amounts of trade receivables and
other receivables were HK$2,203,000 and HK$801,000, respectively,
of which trade receivables of HK$706,000 are expected to be
uncollectible.

Included in the goodwill of HKS$3,398,000 recognised above is the
value of expected synergies arising from combining operations of
the Group and Vitova. None of the goodwill recognised is expected
to be deductible for income tax purposes.
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RUBE B ER 2 FEURE B R R N H b FE UL ZR IR
NFEED B A1,497,0007 7T 52801,00078 T °
EWE SRR R EMERFIBE BE0SHE
2 Bl 52,203,000 7T }2.801,000/8 7T » E A &
I S8R 3(706,00078 LA ER-R AT UL E] -

it B R 2 FEE3,398,000/8 T B FERE A A
AEEHREE 7 EKMEEBRRREURE
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32. BUSINESS COMBINATION (CONTINUED) 32. EKE/(E)
An analysis of the cash flows in respect of the acquisition of a BRABENB AR ZEERENTAT

subsidiary is as follows:

HK$'000
TAT

Cash consideration RERE (1,600)
Cash and bank balances acquired BUHEIR & MIRTTAE R 1,037
Net outflow of cash and cash equivalents included in FFAREESMBRERE
cash flows from investing activities ReRERReEERLFE (563)
Transaction costs of the acquisition included in RURBETME £ 2 R KA
cash flows from operating activities EErALZEBBRERE (83)
(646)
Since the acquisition, Vitova contributed HK$4,790,000 to the BUWEEBR  ZBEEREZE—_ZT—=F1+—_A4
Group's turnover and HK$2,281,000 to the consolidated profit for the =T —HIEFERAKE EEBREE R
year ended 31 December 2013. F 5 Bl & BR4,790,0007 7T % 2,281,000/ 7T °
Had the combination taken place at the beginning of the year, the WEHERFENTK REEAKEZIK
revenue of the Group and the profit of the Group for the year would A RS B ) fE 5 511 7189,757,0007% 7T K.
have been HK$189,757,000 and HK$47,875,000, respectively. 47,875,000 7T °
33. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS 33. REMERH
(a) Aslessor (@) ERHEEA
The Group leases its investment properties (note 15) under AEBRBEEHELHHEERRE
operating lease arrangements, with leases negotiated for MEMFE15) BFEZHBNF—=
terms ranging from one to two years. The terms of the leases MERE - HEBRKR—MERMEPX
generally also require the tenants to pay security deposits and NREBEZE  WERBERRITMR
provide for periodic rent adjustments according to the then EHFAEEE o

prevailing market conditions.

At 31 December 2013, the Group had total future minimum N\_E—=F+"HA=+—H K&
lease receivables under non-cancellable operating leases with EREEEAPETTN NI HRER
its tenants falling due as follows: Z AR R EHEMR AREK
HEESEENT -
Group
rEH
2013 2012
et —EB——F
HK$'000 HKS$'000
FTET FAT
Within one year —FR 1,506 1,829
In the second to fifth years, inclusive FEFAFT(BIEEERT) 293 1,181
1,799 3,010
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33. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS
(CONTINUED)

(b) Aslessee

The Group leases certain of its office properties under
operating lease arrangements. Leases for properties are
negotiated for terms ranging from one to two years.

At 31 December 2013, the Group had total future minimum
lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases falling
due as follows:

—FR
F_EERF(BREEMST)

Within one year
In the second to fifth years, inclusive

34. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

136

At the end of the reporting period, contingent liabilities not provided
for in the financial statements were as follows:

(a)

ANNUAL REPORT 2013

Guarantees have been given to certain banks by the Company
for performance bonds/guarantees issued by the banks
in relation to certain contracts undertaken by the Group
amounting to HK$51,915,000 (2012: HK$19,050,000), of which
HK$2,818,000 (2012: HKS$3,191,000) were utilised as at 31
December 2013.

Guarantees have been given to a bank by the Company
and certain subsidiaries of the Company in connection with
certain banking facilities granted to a subsidiary amounting
to HKS$127,225,000 (2012: HK$118,500,000), and none of the
banking facilities were utilised as at 31 December 2013 (2012:
Nil).

Computer And Technologies Holdings Limited

33. KEMERH(E)

(b) fEREMEA

AEERBKEHELHHEEST
WAEME - REMEMAETZHEE
HNF—2mF -

N-ZEBE—=F+-"A=+—H " K&
ERER T 5 HAR fEm 2 T A A
EHEMRBEREN 2 RERS2E
N

Group

AEE
2013 2012
—E—= T4
HK$’000 HKS$'000
THET FHET
2,513 5,305
61 2,196
2,574 7,501

34. HARBE

RBEPEEER - WARRPBHRRAED
B HARELT ¢

(@)

RARERAEEFAEZE ZETEHR
BT RITIREAE51,915,0008 L (=
T — —£F : 19,050,00078 7T ) Z B 4%
%R HB2818,0000E T (ZF
—Z%F : 3,191,000 L) ER = —=
F+_A=1+—HHH -

AAE RARRETHBARH—H
BB N B TR A E0127,225,0007 7T
—Z— 4 11850000058 7T ) 2 R
TRERRITREER  RZT—=
F+_A=Z+—HEX ' ZFHRTH
BXWERBEWEBR(ZE——F &)
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35. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

In addition to the transactions, arrangements and balances detailed

35. BEALRS

R SMBRREMEHFA LIRS - L5

elsewhere in these financial statements, the Group had the following REERRIN - NEBFERNLET N EEAT
transactions with related parties during the year: R :
Compensation of key management personnel of the Group: AEBFEBEBEAS 2T ¢
2013 2012
—E—=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Short term employee benefits EHEERA 9,982 10,867
Equity-settled share-based payment expense I 48 E AR D B 2 367 282
Post-employment benefits BB 21T 88 33
Total compensation paid to key management TNTEEBRAEZ
personnel < 42 (E 10,437 11,232

Further details of directors’ emoluments are included in
financial statements.

note 8 to the E=Me O — HHIEER MR MTES

MMAGEEERAR TS FFR
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36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 36. IR TEZHME

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial ZERFE T AN HREER ZEmE
instruments as at the end of the reporting period are as follows: BT :

2013 Group —E-=fF REE
Financial assets HiSEE

Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss
BATESERAR
ZHKEE
Designated
as such
upon initial
recognition
RAT IR
EREZRAR
HK$'000
THEx

Available-
for-sale

Held for
trading

Loans and financial

receivables Total

EXR
i e
HK$'000

TR

assets
HEE
HK$'000
ThR

BtrRE
HK$'000
i85

EH
HK$'000
TR

Available-for-sale investments AfHERE - - - 42,073 42,073
Trade and bills receivables EWE SRR R ENEE - - 23,211 - 23,211
Deposits and other receivables TR RE MY FIE - - 3,115 - 3,115
Financial assets at fair value BATFESBRARZ
through profit or loss BREE 8,740 9,245 - - 17,985
Pledged bank deposits BERRIER - - 12,270 - 12,270
Cash and cash equivalents ReRhERREEE - - 304,777 - 304,777
8,740 9,245 343,373 42,073 403,431
Financial liabilities Ey =R

Financial
liabilities at
amortised cost

BAFIRZ

A=l

HK$’000

T

Trade payables FERTE SRR 22,899
Other payables A fETRRIR 29,031
Financial liabilities included in accruals FTABRRIEZ BB E 3,657
55,587
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36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 36. I TR HE(E)
(CONTINUED)
2012 Group — KEE
Financial assets MKEEE

Financial assets at fair value

through profit or loss

BATFELS
ZIBEE

Designated Available-

as such for-sale

upon initial Held for Loans and financial
recognition trading receivables asset Total

N s Exk A E
EEEZA®Z HEEE YR HHEE @5t
HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AL THL THL THT THT
Available-for-sale investment AR ERE - - - 2,100 2,100
Trade and bills receivables R E ST R RN EE = = 27,263 = 27,263
Deposits and other receivables FRRE WA = - 4122 - 4122

Financial assets at fair value BRAFELERARZ
through profit or oss I AE 11,109 14933 - - 26,042
Pledged bank deposits BEMEITER = = 60,097 = 60,097
Cash and cash equivalents ReRhERREEE - - 274,806 - 274,806
11,109 14,933 366,288 2,100 394,430
Financial liabilities g 3R

Financial
liabilities at
amortised cost
LABE SH
RATRZ
AR
HK$'000
AT
Trade payables FERE SRR 33,037
Other payables HAbpERIRIE 24,191
Financial liabilities included in accruals A RIEZMEAE 2,654
59,882
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36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 36. IR T E2H¥E(E)
(CONTINUED)
Financial assets BiEEE
Company
PN
Loans and receivables
EXREERRE
2013 2012
—E—= T4
HK$’000 HKS$'000
FExT FHET
Cash and cash equivalents RekFRREEE 2,163 1,651
Financial liabilities HKasE

Company
AT
Financial liabilities
at amortised cost

LU SE R ARz R E

2013 2012
—E—=F =

HK$'000 HKS$'000

FEx FBTT

Accruals FEEtFUA 409 337
37. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF 37. R TEAQAFERQIFEFRE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS B

At the end of the reporting period, the carrying amounts of the R EHEEER - AEBRARRTKE
Group's and the Company's financial assets and liabilities reasonably ErBEZEMEREAQNFESEES

approximated to their fair values.

Management has assessed that the fair values of cash and cash ERECNEReRERREEE  BER
equivalents, pledged bank deposits, trade and bills receivables, RITEHIE - [EWE SRR REREE - &
deposits and other receivables, trade payables, financial liabilities & REMEWGRIE - BRNE SR - 5t AR
included in other payables and accruals approximate to their FIRIE U BEEC AT EEEREEER
carrying amounts largely due to the short term maturities of these H - FZHRZEIANIHBERRE -
instruments.
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37. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF 37. BT EAEAFERLAFESHE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are included
at the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in a
current transaction between willing parties, other than in a forced or
liquidation sale. The following methods and assumptions were used
to estimate the fair values:

The fair values of listed equity and debt investments are based on
quoted market prices.

The fair values of the available-for-sale investments are based on
available market prices.

Fair value hierarchy

The following tables illustrate the fair value measurement hierarchy
of the Group's financial instruments:

Assets measured at fair value:

Group

As at 31 December 2013

B (%)

M AERABY ATENZTAEERS
7 (AR ERHERIN R RS T2 AR
SEBAE o THFERBRAMEA
T -

R R S A 2 A TAE TR S R
B -

R Y ATETRTISERE -
AN EERERS

TRETAEEVBEIARTEAEZER
RiE

RATEIHRIRE -
AR
{—F—=F+=A=t—H

Fair value measurement using

NHEFERAUT SR

Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
EXTEE EAFUEE
SEERMIZRE BARE WARE
($18) (21E) (%3[E) st
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TET T#ET TET TET
Available-for-sale investments: AMEHERE -
Club membership debenture ggRESF - 2,100 - 2,100
Debt investments BEFRE 39,973 - - 39,973
Financial assets at fair value BAFELEEARZ
through profit or loss: MISEE :
Listed equity investments R EE 9,245 - - 9,245
Debt investments BEFIEE 8,740 - - 8,740
57,958 2,100 - 60,058
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37. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF 37. BT AQAFERAFEERE
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED) B(&E)
Fair value hierarchy (continued) AT EEREE(E)
Assets measured at fair value: (continued) BAPENBRZEE : (M)
Group (continued) AEEE ()
As at 31 December 2012 REZF—=—Ff+=-HA=1—H

Fair value measurement using

A EFTEHRANUATEIE
Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable  unobservable
markets inputs inputs

(Level 1) (RSYE ) (Level 3)

EAREE  EANAUEER

AR IS ME AR BAZE
(FEE) (F22) (%38) st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAET FAET FH&T FA&T

Available-for-sale investment: A HERE -

Club membership debenture @ FT& &S - 2,100 - 2,100
Financial assets at fair value BAFELERARZ
through profit or loss: WEEE :
Listed equity investments ETRAEE 14,933 = = 14,933
Debt investments EHRE 11,109 - - 11,109
26,042 2,100 - 28,142
The Company did not have any financial assets measured at fair RARARZE—=FR=ZF—=-F+=H
value as at 31 December 2013 and 2012. =+ —HYEAAEAFEAECHBEE
E o
Liabilities measured at fair value: RATHEFAEZERE
The Group and the Company did not have any financial liabilities AEERARNARZE—=ZFR-_F——F
measured at fair value as at 31 December 2013 and 2012. T A=+ —BHUEEMIEAFETEZH
BEE-
During the year, there were no transfers of fair value measurements FAN - BBEB2EGHERYBEERIAH
between Level 1 and Level 2 and no transfers into or out of Level 3 BEEHATEFECER  MEIEINE
for both financial assets and financial liabilities (2012: Nil). FAEEA R (=T ——F : ) -
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38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

AND POLICIES

The Group's principal financial instruments include pledged bank
deposits and cash and cash equivalents. The main purpose of these
financial instruments is to finance the Group’s operations. The Group
has various other financial assets and liabilities such as trade and
bills receivables, deposits and other receivables, trade and other
payables, financial liabilities included in accruals, financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss, and available-for-sale investments,
which mainly arise directly from its operations.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments are
interest rate risk, foreign currency risk, credit risk, equity price risk and
liquidity risk. The board of directors reviews and agrees policies for
managing each of these risks and they are summarised below.

Interest rate risk

The Group's exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates
relates primarily to the Group's cash at banks and time deposits with
floating interest rates.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably
possible change in interest rates, with all other variables held
constant, of the Group's profit before tax (through the impact on
floating rate bank balances and time deposits).

2013 —=—=f
Hong Kong dollar BT

United States dollar ETT

RMB ARHE
Hong Kong dollar BIT

United States dollar e

RMB AR
2012 —T——fF
Hong Kong dollar BIT

United States dollar e

RMB ARHE
Hong Kong dollar HBIT

United States dollar e

RMB AR

MRS EE B R RBUR

AEEZ T 2HMBTABECERRITER
UERERERBLEE - WEFHTAZ
TERRDAAEBZEGHE - A5EH
HiZBHHEERAR  MEKEFERK
REWEE - e REMBYKIR - BHE
SRR R EMENFIR - 5H AR IR Z B
BaE  BRATFELBE ARZMBEER
AEHERE  HWEMBEERABTIER
BEELARBGZE -

$%I MBETAELZ T ERRANEME
NERRR - EERR - RAERRER K
miﬁé’fﬂ EA%E@EH%T‘XFHE%
AIERIEIH:%H 2 BUR

A =@
AEREREE TSI BB =S 2 BB

SR EE I BT R I B IR B ZIE
& NERFRBRE -

TREIEMEERMEBG R TE 2B

T RE lZB%%%ﬁﬁ?’F'J(‘&E&E)%EJﬁU%@E

REMR R EMTE RS E) SRR S IER]
ijﬁﬁ“@bZ@kW&F‘

Group
A

Increase/
Increase/ (decrease)
(decrease) in in profit

basis points before tax

Egm BREE AR
CR2)  #®m/ CRd)

HK$'000

FAT

(25) (114)
(25) (10)
(25) (613)
25 114
25 10
25 613
(25) (136)

5 (80)
(25) 617)
25 136
25 80
25 617

ERSEEERAA] —T=FFR 143



Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
B RS sR S MY EE (48)

31 December 2013 —Z—=F+_HA=+—H

38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 38. A EREBERBEKE)
AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Interest rate risk (continued) R == b (48)
There is no impact on the Group's equity except on the retained Br IR BB FISN - 7N £ (B % AN 48 A T {e] 52
profits. g
Foreign currency risk SN FE B
The Group has transactional currency exposures. Such exposures AEEBER S EHEEER - tEMREER
mainly arise from revenue generated and/or costs and expenses BREEEMEAZEMIEEE NG
incurred by operating units in currencies other than the units’ TR 2 WA K REELEZNARFASL °
functional currencies.
The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at the end of TREFIEMEEMERERTE ZBER
the reporting period to a reasonably possible change in the RMB T NEBERREEEE B 2BRBRTET
exchange rates, with all other variables held constant, of the Group's (REBEERBEATEAE)HARKIE
profit before tax (due to changes in the fair value of monetary assets REBAIREHIR BB 2 BRKIEE -
and liabilities).

Group

TEE
Increase/
Increase/ (decrease)
(decrease) in in profit

exchange rate before tax
ExtHR MRBE AR
(FF2) @i/ CR2)

% HK$'000
FHET
2013 —2—=F
If Hong Kong dollar weakens against RMB ST AR (B 5 3,955
If Hong Kong dollar strengthens against RMB BT AREBHE (5) (3,955)
2012 —T——F
If Hong Kong dollar weakens against RMB BT H ARERE 5 3,405
If Hong Kong dollar strengthens against RMB AT ARBHE (5) (3,405)
There is no impact on the Group's equity except on the retained MR BB AN AN - 7K &= B RE AN 8E & (o] 52
profits. 2o
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38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Credit risk

The Group primarily trades on credit terms with recognised
and creditworthy third parties. It is the Group’s policy that most
customers who wish to trade on credit terms are to a certain
extent subject to certain credit verification procedures. In addition,
receivable balances are monitored by the Group’s management on
an ongoing basis.

The credit risk of the Group's other financial assets, which comprise
pledged bank deposits, cash and cash equivalents, debt investments
and deposits and other receivables, mainly arises from default of
the counterparties, with a maximum exposure equal to the carrying
amounts of these instruments. The Company is also exposed to
credit risk through the granting of financial guarantees, further
details of which are disclosed in note 34 to the financial statements.

Since the Group primarily trades on credit terms with recognised
and creditworthy third parties, there is no requirement for collateral.

Concentration of credit risk are managed by customers/counter
party, by geographical region and by industry sector. At the end of
the reporting period, the Group had certain concentration of credit
risk as 29.5% (2012: 16.0%) of the total trade and bills receivables
of the Group were due from certain departments/units of the
Government of the HKSAR, the Group's largest customer.

Further quantitative data in respect of the Group's exposure to credit
risk arising from trade and bills receivables are disclosed in note 21
to the financial statements.

Equity price risk

Equity price risk is the risk that the fair values of equity securities
decrease as a result of changes in the levels of equity indices and the
value of individual securities. The Group is exposed to equity price
risk arising from individual equity investments classified as financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss - listed equity investments
in Hong Kong (note 24) as at 31 December 2013 and 2012. The
Group's listed equity investments are listed on the Stock Exchange
and are valued at quoted market prices at the end of the reporting
period.

MR EMRERE B FERBER(E)

FERR

AEBEZRER A REERFZFE=TH#ET
X5  BRASENBE - KO BIZER
1%§KLTT><%E’J%:)5 ERIEE EBBES
ETEEEZEFE  HARE - 1 K
SEERESRBRRBRERNER

AEEEMMBEE  BREERRITHE
P HERFRREEE - BHRENANRER
@&ﬁwﬁ%ml@z fo IEXE;&%
ETE ZK”&TJTITxHjﬁﬂ&W%Hﬁ%@NZT
R - E— BRI RKRME4EE

AR AEE T ZEBAINEERFZE=T
REEGTETRS - WBARRR

FEESETRR EE%}E/iﬁm;ziﬁz@&hz
TESHESPERE - RIREHBELEE

AR ASEEEIE ZRR R BN E 54 %,EEP
BH295%( —FE——F 1 160%) BEWETE
BEITTHREBRT (AEBEARF)EM,
BUZHIE  HAEEEAZ—EEEEFE

G o
2

BRAAKE AR WS PR R R IR AT
X EERRZE-TEEONEE - RY
ﬂ‘%i&i’%wﬁzﬁ&ﬂg °

MRAE 18 E B

B ANEAR [ R i R DO AR 18 BT () Bl 75 25
EBENBCEBBRAZTSF 2 A HEREZE
“°$El2k$LWHBﬁFE =
FR_E——F+t-_A=T—"BFAIER
BATERERARCUMBEE-—BELT
B AIE (i E24) VBRI AR E - AEE
Z EMBRAKE R AT BT - R ¥RE HE
EE RIS REFHE
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38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Equity price risk (continued)

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to every 10%
change in the fair values of the Group's listed equity investments,
with all other variables held constant and before any impact on tax,
based on their carrying amounts at the end of the reporting period.

38. BIEERE R FERBUER(H)

B ASE A% B (4E)
TREIEMBEMEHERFTE ZIBRAT
MARGTERBE T ER - LWERmEAE
% REE ETMRAKRERREHEEER
Z A ESED0%R - HRFTER 2 UK
J‘gr °

Carrying Increase/
amount decrease
of equity in profit

investments before tax
BAREZ BRBE AR R
RREE B, md>

HKS'000 HK$'000
FAIT THT
2013 —EB-Z=F
Equity investments listed in Hong Kong: EBBLEMZBAKRE :
— Held-for-trading —FHEEE 9,245 925
2012 —T—F
Equity investments listed in Hong Kong: RSB LM ZRAIEE
— Held-for-trading —FHEEE 14,933 1,493

There is no impact on the Group's equity except on the retained
profits.
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38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 38. AR EREBERBEKE)
AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Liquidity risk REE LR
The Group's objective is to ensure there are adequate funds to AEEZ BETRREFEHAHES AEMNE
meet its contractual payments for financial liabilities in the short REARRAZHMBEEESLNNK - EERE
and long term. In the management of liquidity risk, the Group BEoEMRE  NEBERKMGSEERERAS
monitors and maintains a level of cash and bank balances, and time THREAEEEEMTRS MIRITEBR K
deposits deemed adequate by management to finance the Group’s EHFER - WRREARESRE RBEK 2
operations and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash flows. Cash TR  SREEERERYERALE R
flows of the Group are closely monitored by senior management on BIME ©

an ongoing basis.

The maturity profile of the Group's financial liabilities at the end RmERREAEER - AEERBSLORFTER
of the reporting period, based on the contractual undiscounted NRPETE 2 B aEREBERNT

payments, is as follows:

Group NEH
2013
—E—=F
Less than 3 to less than
On demand 3 months 12 months Total
RERHEE LR=ER ==2+=EAR #at
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’'000 HK$’000
TFHT THET THET FET
Trade payables BN E SRR 19,756 2,025 1,118 22,899
Other payables H {th FE < kI8 - 29,031 - 29,031
Financial liabilities included in STABEIRIEZ KA E
accruals - 3,657 - 3,657

Guarantees given to banks for RAEBEFEREZET
performance bonds/guarantees & #)3 B AR &

issued in relation to certain BERmAERITRE
contracts undertaken by the R
Group 2,818 - - 2,818

22,574 34,713 1,118 58,405
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38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 38. A EREBERBEKE)
AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Liquidity risk (continued) FEHESRKR(E)
Group EH
2012
—E-—F
Less than 3 to less than
On demand 3 months 12 months Total
BRERER PREEA ZE+=EAR wast
HKS$'000 HKS'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000
THT THIT THT THIT
Trade payables [ENE SRR 29,727 3,020 290 33037
Other payables Hptn (T 5018 = 24,191 - 24,191
Financial liabilities included in accruals 5T AJETZUBZ IS & E - 2,654 - 2,654
Guarantees given to banks for AAEEAZEZET
performance bonds/guarantees BRBLEORE
issued in relation to certain ERMmARITRE
contracts undertaken by the Group 1R 3,191 - - 3,191
32918 29,865 290 63,073
The maturity profile of the Company's financial liabilities as at the REAHAEER - AARREBASLARTE
end of the reporting period, based on the contractual undiscounted AR E 2 M aEREE RN T

payments, is as follows:

Company RAF
2013
—E—=F
Less than
On demand 3 months Total
REREE PR=EA st
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
THET TFET TFHT
Other payables and accruals Hith BN R IE K E ST ROE - 409 409
Guarantees given to banks for MAEBRERE AT
performance bonds/guarantees BB HBLHIRE
issued in relation to certain BERMmARITIREZ
contracts undertaken by the Group ~ #&{% 2,818 - 2,818
2,818 409 3,227
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
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38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Liquidity risk (continued)

Company (continued)

38. MR ERE R R RBUER(E)

Ho At AR08 S FEET IR

Other payables and accruals

Guarantees given to banks for IASEAE AT
performance bonds/guarantees BB HBHRE
issued in relation to certain ERMmMRITRE 2

contracts undertaken by the Group R

Capital management

The primary objectives of the Group's capital management are to
safeguard the Group's ability to continue as a going concern and to
maintain healthy capital ratios in order to support its business and
maximise shareholders’ value.

The Group regularly reviews and manages its capital structure and
makes adjustments to it in light of changes in economic conditions
and the risk characteristics of the underlying assets. To maintain
or adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the dividend
payment to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue new
shares. The Group is not subject to any externally imposed capital
requirements. No changes were made in the objectives, policies or
processes for managing capital during the years ended 31 December
2013 and 2012.

Capital of the Group comprises all components of shareholders’
equity.

39. APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by
the board of directors on 21 March 2014.

REES RS (E)
ARAT (&)
2012
—E——fF
Less than

On demand 3 months Total
BEREE DPR=EA 5t
HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000
FAIT FAIT AT
- 337 337
3,191 - 3,191
3,191 337 3,528

EXEE
AEEEAEENEIEENRAREASRE
FBQEMBE L ISR B AL - A
SFHEBRASRREREAEE -

AEBRBEEARNBENEBEEE L
R - EHREM R EEEANERERE
HAAE - AEE ] LGRBRAEYBRRIKEDN
BE  RBCREEE ARSI TH AR
ABENGRE - AKEWED ISP
BB EARET HE_T—=FN_F
——Ft+-A=+t—RLFER ~EBZ
BEAREEBR  BORSIZFIU BB

AEE 2 EARRMABRER AP DA

39. HLAEBERE

EEgR_TNEF=A - t+—BHERK
RETIEE R 53R -
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Particulars of Properties

ZENES

31 December 2013 —Z—=F+_A=+—H

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES
Attributable
interest of
the Group
AEBEEMN
Location 2 EZEDL
1. Units 1,2 and 3 on 11th Floor a8 Industrial Long term 100%
Westlands Centre B0 T%HR lease
No. 20 Westlands Road FEFRL05% REIMHE
Quarry Bay L
Hong Kong 1481~ 2M3%E
2. UnitNo. Al on Level 21 FEAREMBE(HE]) Commerdial Long term 100%
Golden Eagle International Plaza IERE [EESE lease
No. 89 Hanzhong Road R REIHE
Jianye District B
Nanjing JE R BE895%
Jiangsu Province © B B K
People’s Republic of China (“PRC") AT
3. Unit No. 2601 on Level 26 2] Commercial Medium term 100%
South Tower ERAE [EES= lease
Guangzhou World Trade Centre Complex /N REIE
Nos. 371-375 Huanshi East Road RilE
Dongshan District IR R 5371 237555
Guangzhou BNt RE SR OKRE
Guangdong Province 7 2
PRC 26182601 %
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Five Year Financial Summary

HFEREHE

A summary of the results and of the assets, liabilities and non-controlling NTAAEEBRERTEVREEZXEURE
interests of the Group for the last five financial years, as extracted from the E - BERIEZEHEES2RHE - DREsaET)
published audited financial statements and reclassified as appropriate, is B REIZBISHER  WEEEMEHRDLE It
set out below. This summary does not form part of the audited financial BN T EREEZIIERREFP IS -
statements.

RESULTS ES

Year ended 31 December

BEt-HA=t—HLEE

2013 2012 2011 2010
—B-=F —T——F ZT-FF -
HK$’000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHERT THT FHT TAT FHIT
REVENUE WA 187,110 206,708 391,209 338,851 400,012
Cost of sales HEMAK (85,989) (113,118) (284,194) (225,741) (280372)
Gross profit EF 101,121 93,590 107,015 113,110 119,640
Other income and gains, net H A R Ues 558 17,212 9,550 24,262 8,152 2823
Fair value gains/(losses), net: N EYE (BR) %
Financial assets at fair value BATELEEAR L
through profit or loss TS EE (171) 6,262 (5.858) 615 4,272
Derivative instruments - transactions ~ $TAEB T E — T4 B
not qualifying as hedges R 2R 5 - 130 72 (202) -
Investment properties BEME 2,558 16,610 9,068 7,440 2,836
Selling and distribution expenses SEERDHEAX (23,065) (30,306) (33,097) (31,797) (33,069)
General and administrative expenses ~ —#% R TEU RS (42,483) (44,634) (44,424) (41,572) (45,711)
Finance costs HEER (56) (100) (545) (39) =
PROFIT BEFORE TAX BRBLAD R R 55,116 51,102 56493 55,707 50,791
Income tax expense FriS B (6,970) 4,100) (5,517) (5,554) (5,815)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR REEHR 48,146 47,002 50976 50,153 44,976
Attributable to: THIA LG
Owners of the parent BRAEBEA 48,146 47,002 50,976 50,153 44973
Non-controlling interests eI R RS - _ _ _ 3
48,146 47,002 50,976 50,153 44976
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Five Year Financial Summary (continued)

EEHMBEME(E)
ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND NON-CONTROLLING BE - BERFEFHERS
INTERESTS
As at 31 December
W+=A=+—8H
2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
—E-=f —T——-fF ZT—F ZZ-TF ZTTNF
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FiEx FHET FET FEIT FHET
TOTAL ASSETS BEEHEE 511,637 494,079 524,018 515,582 459,900
TOTAL LIABILITIES BE%E (99,219) (93,834) (137,860) (143,248) (107,358)

NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS JF 2 i 14 #E 25 - = - - -

412,418 400,245 386,158 372,334 352,542
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